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equipment is included in customer rates in base rates or through a rider mechanism. Inclusion in customer rates generally occurs when Columbia 
of Ohio files its next rate proceeding following the in-service date of the property, plant and equipment. 

EERM operation and maintenance and depreciation deferral - Northern Indiana obtained approval from the IURC to recover certain 
environmental related costs including operation and maintenance and depreciation expense once the environmental facilities become operational. 
Recovery of these costs will continue until such assets are included in rate base through an electric base rate case. The EERM deferred charges 
represent expenses that will be recovered from customers through an annual EERM Cost Tracker which authorizes the collection of deferred 
balances over a twelve month period. 

MISO- As part of Northern Indiana's participation in the MISO transmission service, wholesale energy and ancillary service markets, certain 
administrative fees and non-fuel costs have been deferred. The IURC authorized the deferral of certain non-fuel related costs until new electric 
rates were implemented on December 27, 20 II. The deferred balances are being amortized over four years commencing January 2012. 

Sugar Creek carrying charges and deferred depreciation - The IURC approved the deferral of debt-based carrying charges and the deferral of 
depreciation expense for the Sugar Creek assets. Northern Indiana continued to defer such amounts until new electric rates were approved and 
implemented on December 27, 20I I. Balances are being amortized over five years beginning January 2012. As of December 31, 2012, the 
remaining unamortized balance is $57.3 million. An additional $13.9 million is deferred for consideration in Northern Indiana's next electric 
rate case. 

LiabiUties: 

Overrecovered gas and fuel costs- Represents the difference between the costs of gas and fuel and the recovery of such costs in revenues, and is 
the basis to adjust furure billings for such recoveries on a basis consistent with applicable state-approved tariff provisions. Refunding of these 
revenues is achieved through tracking mechanisms. 

Cost of removal- Represents anticipated costs of removal that have been, and continue to be, included in depreciation rates and collected in the 
service rates of the rate-regulated subsidiaries for future costs to be incurred. 

Regulatory effects of accounting for income taxes- Represents amounts owed to customers for deferred taxes collected at a higher rate than the 
current statutory rates and liabilities associated with accelerated tax deductions owed to customers that are established during the rate making 
process. 

Other postretirement costs - Primarily represents cash contributions in excess of postretirement benefit expense that is deferred as a regulatory 
liability by certain subsidiaries in accordance with regulatory orders. 

Percentage of income plan - Represents the difference between costs incurred under a customer assistance program by Columbia of Ohio for 
targeted low income customers and the recovery of such costs through cost tracking mechanisms per regulatory orders. For 2012 and 2011, 
Columbia of Ohio was in an overcollected position for this program, resulting in a regulatory liability to be refunded through furure billings. 

Off-system sales margin sharing - Revenue generated from off-system sales and capacity release programs are subject to incentive sharing 
mechanism in which NiSource shares a defined percentage of its margins with customers . Refunding of these revenues is achieved through rate 
refund mechanisms. 

Emission allowances- Represents proceeds from the banked emission allowances sold into the EPA auction market. 

Gas Distribution Operations Regulatory Matters 

Significant Rate Developments . On March I5, 2012, the IURC approved a settlement agreement with Northern Indiana and all participating 
parties to extend its product and services contained in its current gas ARP indefinitely. 

On December 28, 20I I, the IURC issued an Order approving Northern Indiana's proposed gas energy efficiency programs and budgets, 
including a conservation program and recovery of all start-up and deferred cost. A three year budget of $42.4 million was approved. Northern 
Indiana received IURC approval ofDSM on June 27,2012 authorizing recovery of$7.5 million for the six month period ending December 20I2. 
On December 27, 2012, the IURC approved a second DSM authorizing the recovery of program expenses of $6.5 million for the six month 
period ending June 2013. 
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On June 27, 201 I, Northern Indiana filed a settlement agreement with the IURC in which regulatory stakeholders agreed that Northern Indiana 
should adopt the W ACOG accounting methodology for gas in storage instead of LIFO, Northern Indiana's historical method. On August 3 I, 
20 II, the JURC approved the settlement and Northern Indiana transitioned to W ACOG accounting methodology beginning January I, 2012. 

On May 3, 20 I 0, Northern Indiana filed a natural gas rate case with the IURC. Northern Indiana entered into a comprehensive settlement with all 
parties on August 24, 2010. The Settlement Agreement was approved in entirety by Order issued on November 4, 2010 and new rates were 
placed into effect November 5, 2010. The Order resulted in a decrease in revenue of approximately $14.9 million when compared to a 
normalized test year ended December 31, 2009. The IURC authorized Northern Indiana to increase the monthly fixed charge for residential 
customers from $6.36 to $I 1.00 . The IURC also approved revised depreciation accrual rates for gas plant and authorized Northern Indiana to 
reduce current period gas plant depreciation expense by up to $25.7 million annually for the next four years or until further order of the IURC, 
whichever occurs first. 

On November 30, 2012, Columbia of Ohio filed a Notice of Intent to file an application to adjust rates associated with its IRP and DSM Riders. 
The Notice of Intent indicated that Columbia of Ohio would be seeking to increase revenues by approximately $29 million . 

In 2009, the PUCO granted Columbia of Ohio an exemption from the regulation of natural gas commodity prices. The 2009 Order also shielded 
Columbia of Ohio's capacity contract levels from prudency audits for three years, and approved a mechanism for sharing off-system sales and 
capacity release revenues for three years. On October 4, 2012, Columbia of Ohio and other parties filed a non-unanimous stipulation that would 
extend key provisions of the 2009 agreement for an additional five years, i.e., Columbia of Ohio's capacity contracts, capacity allocation process, 
off-system sales and capacity release revenue sharing mechanism. The stipulation also provides a process for the possible exit of the merchant 
function. On November 27, 2012, Columbia of Ohio filed an amended stipulation that removed the opposition of the Ohio Consumer's Counsel. 
By Order dated January 9, 2013, the PUCO approved the stipulation. 

On December 9, 2011, Columbia of Ohio filed a Notice of Intent to file an application to extend its Infrastructure Replacement Program. 
Columbia of Ohio filed an amended Notice of Intent and an amended Motion for Waiver on March 5, 2012. On May 8, 2012, Columbia of Ohio 
filed its application and supporting exhibits and testimony. On September 26, 2012, the parties filed a Joint Stipulation and Recommendation 
that provided for the extension of Columbia of Ohio's 1RP process for an additional five years and settlement of all issues. On November 28, 
2012, the PUCO issued an Opinion and Order in which it approved the stipulation. 

On September 9, 201 I, Columbia of Ohio filed an application with PUCO to continue and expand its DSM program. In its application, Columbia 
of Ohio proposed to spend $20 million annually (adjusted for inflation) on weatherization programs for residential and commercial customers for 
calendar years 2012 through 2016. Columbia of Ohio will continue to recover program expenses through Rider DSM and has proposed a shared 
savings incentive not to exceed $3.9 million over the five-year program. By Order dated December 14, 201 l, the PUCO approved a stipulation 
filed in the case. 

On April30, 2012, Columbia of Ohio filed an application to adjust its Interim, Emergency and Temporary Percentage oflncome Payment Plan 
Rider ("PIPP") from $0.1274 per Mcf to $0.0294 per Mcfto provide for the passback of an overrecovery of approximately $I 0.9 million and the 
recovery of its annual change in PIPP arrears. The PUCO approved the application and the revised PIPP Rider went into effect for the first 
billing unit of July 2012. 

On April 19, 2012, Columbia of Ohio filed an application that requests authority to increase its uncollectible expense rider rate in order to 
generate an additional $14.6 million in annual revenue in order to offset anticipated increases in uncollectible expenses. On May 30, 2012, the 
PUCO issued an Entry that provided for approval of Columbia of Ohio's April19, 2012 application for adjustment of its uncollectible expense 
rider with the new rate effective May 30, 2012. 

On January 30, 2009, Columbia of Ohio filed an application with the PUCO to implement a gas supply auction. The auction replaced Columbia 
of Ohio's current GCR mechanism for providing commodity gas supplies to its sales customers. By Order dated December 2, 2009, the PUCO 
approved a stipulation that resolved all issues in the case. Pursuant to the stipulation. Columbia of Ohio conducted two consecutive one-year 
long standard service offer auction periods starting April I, 2010 and April I, 2011. On February 23, 2010, Columbia of Ohio held the first 
standard service offer auction which resulted in a final retail price adjustment 
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of $1.93 per Mcf. On February 24, 2010 the PUCO issued an entry that approved the results of the auction and directed Columbia of Ohio to 
proceed with the implementation of the standard service offer process. On February 8, 2011, Columbia of Ohio held its second standard service 
offer auction which resulted in a retail price adjustment of $1.88 per Mcf. On February 9, 2011, the PUCO issued an entry that approved the 
results of the auction with the new retail price adjustment to become effective April!, 2011. Several parties have challenged the transition from 
a standard service offer auction to a standard choice offer auction and on September 7, 2011, the PUCO issued an Order authorizing Columbia of 
Ohio to implement a standard choice offer auction in February 2012. On October 7, 2011, the OCC ftled an application for rehearing of the 
PUCO's Order. By Entry on Rehearing dated November 1, 2011, the PUCO denied the OCC's Application for Rehearing. On February 14, 2012, 
Columbia of Ohio held its first standard choice offer auction which resulted in a retail price adjustment of $1.53 per Mcf. On February 14, 2012, 
the PUCO issued an entry that approved the results of the auction with the new retail price adjustment to become effective April 1, 2012. With 
the implementation of the standard choice offer, Columbia of Ohio will report lower gross revenues and lower cost of sales. There is no impact 
on net revenues. 

On January 2, 2013, Columbia of Pennsylvania filed a petition with the Pennsylvania PUC, seeking authority to implement a Distribution 
System Improvement Charge ("DSIC"), with a proposed effective date of March 3, 2013. DSIC has been available to water companies in 
Pennsylvania for several years, and was authorized for other utilities as of January l, 2013 with the passage of Act ll of 2012. Columbia of 
Pennsylvania is the first natural gas utility in Pennsylvania to seek DSIC approval. If approved, by tariff, Columbia of Pennsylvania would be 
able to recover the cost of infrastructure not previously reflected in rate base that has been placed in service during the three-month period 
ending one month prior to the effective date of the DSIC. After the initial charge is established, the DSIC is updated quarterly to recover the cost 
of further plant additions. The DSIC cannot exceed 5% of distribution revenues. Once new base rates are established under a base rate 
proceeding, the DSIC will be set back to zero. This represents a significant opportunity to mitigate rate lag by permitting recovery of 
infrastructure costs without seeking that recovery in a full base rate proceeding. 

On September 28, 2012, Columbia of Pennsylvania filed a base rate case with the Pennsylvania PUC, seeking a revenue increase of 
approximately $77.3 million annually and providing three options for residential rate design in order to mitigate revenue volatility associated 
with usage based rates. Columbia of Pennsylvania is the first utility in Pennsylvania to seek Pennsylvania PUC approval to design rates to 
recover costs that are projected to be incurred after the implementation of those new rates. as recently authorized by the Pennsylvania General 
Assembly with the passage of Act II of2012. Accordingly, Columbia of Pennsylvania's filing sought to implement rates in July 2013 under 
which Columbia of Pennsylvania would inunediately begin to recover costs that are projected for the twelve-month period ending June 30, 2014. 
On February 8, 2013, the parties reached a unanimous settlement in principle on all issues in the case, which the parties publicly disclosed to the 
Pennsylvania PUC on February 13, 2013. The terms of the settlement will be made public when the parties to the case submit a joint petition for 
approval of that settlement to the Pennsylvania PUC, which is due on March 18, 2013. Columbia of Pennsylvania expects that the Pennsylvania 
PUC will issue an order in the second quarter of2013, with rates going into effect in the third quarter of2013. 

On January 14, 20 II, Columbia of Pennsylvania filed a base rate case with the Pennsylvania PUC, seeking a revenue increase of approximately 
$37.8 million annually. The parties jointly filed a petition for approval of a partial settlement on July I, 2011. The partial settlement resolved all 
issues except residential rate design and a challenge to the structure of one of Columbia of Pennsylvania's customer programs. The settlement 
provides for an annual revenue increase of $17.0 million . The Pennsylvania PUC issued an order on October 14, 2011 approving the annual 
revenue increase of $17.0 million. New rates went into effect on October 18, 2011. The Pennsylvania PUC's ruling increased the minimum 
residential customer charge from $12.25 to $18.73 , which includes an allowance for 20 Ccf of distribution charges. However, the customer pays 
for gas commodity on all usage. 

On May 3, 2010, Columbia of Virginia filed a base rate case with the VSCC seeking an annual revenue increase of$13.0 million to recover an 
updated level of costs upon the expiration of its Performance Based Regulation Plan on December 31,2010. Columbia of Virginia also sought a 
Weather Normalization Adjustment ("WNA"), cost recovery of certain gas-related items through its Purchased Gas Adjustment ("PGA") 
mechanism rather than base rates, and forward looking adjustments predicted to occur during the rate year ending December 31, 2011. On 
November 16, 2010, Columbia of Virginia, the VSCC Staff and the other parties filed a Proposed Stipulation and Recommendation 
("Stipulation") that would result in an annual revenue increase of $4.9 million , including authorization of the WNA and recovery of certain gas­
related items through the PGA mechanism. The Chief Hearing Examiner issued a Report on December 2, 2010 recommending approval of the 
Stipulation. The VSCC issued a Final Order on December 17, 2010 adopting the Stipulation. New rates became effective January l, 2011. 
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On April !3, 2012, Columbia of Massachusetts submitted a filing with the Massachusetts DPU requesting an annual revenue requirement 
increase of$29.2 million which was subsequently adjusted to $27.4 million. Columbia of Massachusetts filed using a historic test year ended 
December 31, 2011. Additionally, Columbia of Massachusetts proposed "rate-year, rate base" treatment for recovery of defmed capital 
expenditures beyond the end of the historic test year, as well as expansion of eligible facilities to be recovered through modification to the 
Targeted Infrastructure Reinvestment Factor ("TIRF"). The Massachusetts DPU issued an order on November I, 2012 approving an annual 
revenue increase of$7.8 million, effective November 1, 2012, rejecting the rate-year, rate-base proposal, but approving the expansion of eligible 
facilities to be recovered through the TIRF. 

Columbia of Massachusetts filed its application for approval of its second Off-peak Period RDAF on March 16,2012. The DPU issued its final 
order approving $1.7 million of decoupling revenue for the Off-peak Period RDAF on November 15, 2012. On September I 7, 2012, Columbia 
of Massachusetts filed a petition for approval of its third Peak Period RDAF, with a proposed effective date for recovery of November I, 2012. 
This RDAF filing proposes $16.4 million of decoupling revenue, of which $10.5 million falls under the current season recovery cap, with the 
remaining $5.9 million deferred for recovery in subsequent Peak Period. On October 23, 2012, the Massachusetts DPU approved the November 
2012 through April 2013 recovery of the $10.5 million through the application of Columbia of Massachusetts' proposed adjustment factor 
subject to further investigation and reconciliation. 

On August 2, 2012, Columbia of Massachusetts filed its Peak Period Local Distribution Adjustment Factor ("LDAF") and on September 14, 
2012, Columbia of Massachusetts filed its Pension Expense Factor and Residential Assistance Adjustment Factor, each with a proposed effective 
date of November I, 2012. The Peak Period LDAF of $33.0 million in additional costs beginning on November I, 2012 was approved on 
October 31,2012. The Pension Expense Factor and Residential Assistance Adjustment Factor components ofthe LDAF were approved subject 
to further investigation and reconciliation. 

Cost Recovery and Trackers . A significant portion of the distribution companies' revenue is related to the recovery of gas costs, the review and 
recovery of which occurs via standard regulatory proceedings. All states require periodic review of actual gas procurement activity to determine 
prudence and to permit the recovery of prudently incurred costs related to the supply of gas for customers. NiSource distribution companies have 
historically been found prudent in the procurement of gas supplies to serve customers. 

Certain operating costs of the NiSource distribution companies are significant, recurring in nature, and generally outside the control of the 
distribution companies. Some states allow the recovery of such costs via cost tracking mechanisms. Such tracking mechanisms allow for 
abbreviated regulatory proceedings in order for the distribution companies to implement charges and recover appropriate costs. Tracking 
mechanisms al1ow for more timely recovery of such costs as compared with more traditional cost recovery mechanisms. Examples of such 
mechanisms include GCR adjustment mechanisms, tax riders, and bad debt recovery mechanisms. 

Comparability of Gas Distribution Operations line item operating results is impacted by regulatory trackers that allow for the recovery in rates of 
certain costs such as bad debt expenses. Increases in the expenses that are the subject of trackers, result in a corresponding increase in net 
revenues and therefore have essentially no impact on total operating income results. 

Certain of the NiSource distribution companies have completed rate proceedings involving infrastructure replacement or are embarking upon 
regulatory initiatives to replace significant portions of their operating systems that are nearing the end of their useful lives. Each LDC's approach 
to cost recovery may be unique, given the different laws, regulations and precedent that exist in each jurisdiction. 

Gas Transmission and Storage Operations Regulatorv Matters 

Columbia Transmission Customer Settlement. Columbia Transmission reached an agreement with a majority of its customers and filed a 
customer settlement in support of its comprehensive interstate natnral gas pipeline modernization program with the FERC on September 4, 2012. 
Only one party, the PSC of Maryland, filed a (limited) protest to the Settlement. On October 4, 2012, Columbia Transmission filed its reply 
addressing the issues raised by the PSC of Maryland. Columbia Transmission expects to invest approximately $1.5 billion over a five-year 
period to modernize its system to improve system integrity and enhance service reliability and flexibility. The settlement with firm customers 
includes an initial five-year term with provisions for potential extensions thereafter. The settlement proposes initial refunds totaling $50.0 
million , adjustments to base rates and depreciation, and a Capital Cost Recovery Mechanism (CCRM), a tracker mechanism that provides 
recovery and retnm on the $1.5 billion program investment. Additional details of the settlement are as follows: 
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A $50.0 million refund to max rate contract customers. The payment will be paid in the next monthly billing cycle that is at least 15 
days after Columbia Transmission received the final FERC order approving the settlement; 
Base rate reductions, the first retroactive to January 1, 2012, which equates to approximately $35 million in revenues annually and the 
second beginning January I, 2014, which equates to approximately $25 million in revenues annually thereafter; 
The CCRM will allow Columbia Transmission to recover, through an additive capital demand rate, its revenue requirement for capital 
investments made under Columbia Transmission1s long-term plan to modernize its interstate transmission system. The mechanism 
provides for a 14% revenue requirement with a portion designated as a recovery of increased taxes other than income taxes. The 
additive demand rate is earned on costs associated with projects placed into service by October 31 each year. The CCRM will give 
Columbia Transmission the opportunity to recover its revenue requirement associated with $1.5 billion investment in the modernization 
program, while maintaining competitive rates for its shippers. The CCRM recovers the revenue requirement associated with qualifying 
modernization costs that Columbia Transmission incurs after satisfying the requirement associated with $100.0 million in annual capital 
maintenance expenditure. The CCRM applies to Columbia Transmission's transportation shippers. The CCRM will not exceed $300.0 
million per year, subject to a 15% annual tolerance and a total cap of $1.5 billion for the entire five-year Initial Term; 
Depreciation rate reduction to 1.5% and elimination of negative salvage rate, retroactive to January 1, 2012, which equates to 
approximately $35 million in reduced annual expenses that is linked to the base rate reduction above; 
A revenue sharing mechanism pursuant to which Columbia Transmission will share 75% of specified revenues earned in excess of an 
annual threshold; 
A moratorium through January 31, 2018 on changes to Columbia Transmission's rednced transportation base rates; and 
A commitment from Columbia Transmission that it will file a general NGA Section 4(e) rate application to be effective no later than 
February I, 2019. 

In 2012, Columbia Transmission recorded the $50.0 million refund obligation and a pro rata share of the retroactive base rate reduction, which 
amounted to $31.7 million , and the pro rata reduction in depreciation expense that amounted to $33.4 million . The FERC approved the 
settlement on January 24,2013. Refunds to customers are expected in March 2013. 

Columbia Gulf Rate Case. On October28, 2010, Columbia Gulffi1ed a rate case with the FERC, proposing a rate increase and tariff changes. 
Among other things, the filing proposed a revenue increase of approximately $50 million to cover increases in the cost of services, which 
includes adjustments for operation and maintenance expenses, capital investments, adjustments to depreciation rates and expense, rate of return, 
and increased federal, state and local taxes. On November 30, 2010, the FERC issued an Order allowing new rates to become effective by May 
2011, subject to refund. Columbia Gulf placed new rates into effect, subject to refund, on May I, 2011. Columbia Gulf and the active parties to 
the case negotiated a settlement, which was filed with the FERC on September 9, 2011. On September 30, 2011, the Chief Judge severed the 
issues relating to a contesting party for separate hearing and decision. On October 4, 2011, the Presiding Administrative Law Judge certified the 
settlement agreement as uncontested to the FERC with severance of the contesting party from the settlement. On November I, 2011, Columbia 
Gulf began billing interim rates to customers. On December I, 2011, the FERC issued an order approving the settlement without change. The 
key elements of the settlement, which was a "black box agreement", include: (I) increased base rate to $0.1520 per Dth and (2) establishing a 
postage stamp rate design. No protests to the order were filed and therefore, pursuant to the Settlement, the order became final on January I, 
2012 which made the settlement effective on February 1, 2012. On February 2, 2012, the Presiding Administrative Law Judge issued an initial 
decision granting a joint motion terminating the remaining litigation with the contesting party and allowing it to become a settling party. The 
FERC issued an order on March 15, 2012, affmning the initial decision, which terminated the remaining litigation with the contesting party. 
Refunds of approximately $16.0 million, accrued as of December 31, 2011, were disbursed to settling parties in March 2012. 
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Cost Recovery Trackers and other similar mechanisms. A significant portion of the transmission and storage regulated companies' revenue is 
related to the recovery of their operating costs, the review and recovery of which occurs via standard regulatory proceedings with the FERC 
under section 7 of the Natural Gas Act. However, certain operating costs of the NiSource regulated transmission and storage companies are 
significant and recurring in nature, such as fuel for compression and lost and unaccounted for gas. The FERC allows for the recovery of such 
costs via cost tracking mechanisms. These tracking mechanisms allow the transmission and storage companies' rates to fluctuate in response to 
changes in certain operating costs or conditions as they occur to facilitate the timely recovery of its costs incurred. The tracking mechanisms 
involve a rate adjustment that is filed at a predetermined frequency, typically annually, with the FERC and is subject to regulatory review before 
new rates go into effect. Other such costs under regulatory tracking mechanisms include upstream pipeline transmission, electric compression, 
environmental, and operational purchase and sales of natural gas. 

The CCRM will allow Columbia Transmission to recover, through an additive capital demand rate, its revenue requirement for capital 
investments made under Columbia Transmission's long-term plan to modernize its interstate transmission system. 

Electric Operations Regulatory Matters 

Significant Rate Developments. On July 18, 2011, Northern Indiana filed with the IURC a settlement in its 2010 Electric Rate Case with the 
OUCC, Northern Indiana Industrial Group, NLMK Indiana and Indiana Municipal Utilities Group. The settlement agreement limited the 
proposed base rate impact to the residential customer class to a 4.5% increase. The parties also agreed to a rate of return of 6.98% based upon a 
10.2% return on equity. The settlement resolved all pending issues related to compliance with the August 25, 2010 Order in the 2008 Electric 
Rate Case. On December 21, 2011, the IURC issued an Order approving the Settlement Agreement as filed, and new electric base rates became 
effective on December 27, 2011. 

Northern Indiana received a favorable regulatory order on February 18,2009, related to its actions to increase its electric generating capacity and 
advance its electric rate case. Acting on a settlement reached among Northern Indiana and its regulatory stakeholders, the IURC ruled that 
Northern Indiana's Sugar Creek electric generating plant was in service for ratemaking purposes as of December I, 2008. The IURC also 
approved the deferral of depreciation expenses and debt-based carrying costs associated with the $330.0 million Sugar Creek investment. 
Northern Indiana purchased Sugar Creek on May 30, 2008 and effective December I, 2008, Sugar Creek was accepted as an internal designated 
network resource within the MISO. The annual deferral for Sugar Creek was reduced by the annual depreciation on the Mitchell plant of $4.5 
million, pursuant to the FAC-71 settlement. On December 21, 201 I the IURC issued an Order in the Electric rate case and new customer rates 
became effective on December 27, 2011. The deferral of Sugar Creek debt based carrying charges and the deferral of depreciation ceased 
December 2011 and the deferred balances are being amortized over five years beginning January 2012. As of December 31.2012, the remaining 
balance to be amortized is $57.3 million. An additional $13.9 million is deferred for consideration in Northern Indiana's next electric base rate 
case. 

During 2002, Northern Indiana settled certain regulatory matters related to an electric rate review. On September 23, 2002, the IURC issued an 
Order adopting most aspects of the settlement. The Order approving the settlement provided that certain electric customers of Northern Indiana 
wonld receive bill credits of approximately $55.1 million each year. The credits continued at approximately the same annual level and per the 
same methodology, until the IURC approval and implementation of new customer rates, which occurred on December 27, 2011. Credits 
amounting to $51.0 million and $60.5 million were recognized for electric customers for 201 I and 2010, respectively. A final reconciliation of 
the credits was completed in the fourth quarter of2012, which resulted in recoveries of$6.6 million in 2012. 

Cost Recovery and Trackers . A significant portion of Northern Indiana's revenue is related to the recovery of fuel costs to generate power and 
the fuel costs related to purchased power. These costs are recovered through a FAC, a standard, quarterly, "summary" regulatory proceeding in 
Indiana. 

As part of a multi-state effort to strengthen the electric transmtsswn system serving the Midwest, Northern Indiana anticipates making 
investments in two projects that were authorized by the MISO and are scheduled to be in service during the latter part of the decade. On July 19, 
2012 and December 19, 2012, the FERC issued an order approving construction work in progress in rate base and abandoned plant cost recovery 
requested by Northern Indiana, for the 100-mile, 345 kV transmission project and its right to develop 50 percent of the 66-mile, 765 kV project. 
On December 19, 2012, the FERC issued an order authorizing Northern 
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Indiana's request to transition to forward looking rates, allowing more timely recovery of Northern Indiana's investment in transmission assets. 

On February 8, 2012, Pioneer Transmission, LLC filed a complaint with the FERC, seeking to obtain 100 percent of the investment rights in this 
second project. In response on July 19, 2012, the FERC issued an order which denied the complaint filed by Pioneer Transmission, LLC and 
affirmed that Northern Indiana and Duke Energy are the appropriate parries to share equally in the development of the 66-mile, 765 kV 
transmission project extending between Reynolds, Indiana and Greentown, Indiana. On August 20, 2012, Pioneer Transmission, LLC, Northern 
Indiana, and MISO filed a settlement agreement resolving the Pioneer complaint case establishing Northern Indiana's right to develop 50 percent 
of the project. The Settlement is currently pending at the FERC. 

As participants in the MISO transmission service, wholesale energy and ancillary service markets, Northern Indiana incurs certain ongoing non­
fuel costs and revenues. Prior to the December 21, 2011 Order, IURC orders authorized the deferral for consideration in a future rate case 
proceeding all non-fuel related costs and revenues incurred after Northern Indiana's rate moratorium, which expired on July 31, 2006. In the 
Order issued on December 21, 2011, Northern Indiana was authorized to recover through new electric base rates the cumulative amount of non­
fuel costs and revenues that were deferred as of June 30, 2011 over a period of four years. The deferral of these costs ceased during December 
2011 and the amortization of the deferred costs and revenues commenced in January 2012. As of December 31,2012, Northern Indiana had a 
remaining balance of deferred net MISO costs of $28.8 million . 

On December 9, 2009, the IURC issued an Order in its generic DSM investigation proceeding establishing an overall annual energy savings goal 
of2% to be achieved by Indiana jurisdictional electric utilities in 10 years, with interim savings goals established in years one through nine. On 
May 25,2011, the IURC issued an Order approving a tracker mechanism to recover the costs associated with these energy efficiency programs. 
On July 27, 2011, the IURC issued an order approving Northern Indiana's portfolio of electric energy efficiency programs and on August 8, 
2012, approved recovery oflost margins associated with those programs through semi-annual tracker filings. 

On December 27, 2012, the IURC approved DSM-3 authorizing the recovery of program expenses and lost margins in the amount of 
approximately $4.4 million and $6.6 million , respectively, to be recovered over six months beginning January 2013. 

In the Order issued on December 21, 2011, the IURC also approved a semi-annual RTO tracker for recovery of MISO non-fuel costs and 
revenues and off-system sales sharing and ordered that purchased power costs and fuel-related MISO charge types be recovered in the FAC. The 
IURC also authorized the recovery, through the RTO tracker, of all net costs deferred between July I, 2011 and the IURC's approval of new 
electric base rates. On October 31, 2012, the IURC approved RT0-2 authorizing the recovery of non-fuel costs and revenues in the amount of 
$5.0 miUion, to be recovered over six months commencing November I, 2012. On August 22, 2012, the IURC issued an order authorizing 
Northern Indiana to retain certain revenues under MISO Schedule 26-A to support investments in Northern Indiana's Multi-Value Projects under 
MISO's 20 II transmission expansion plan. 

In the Order issued on December 21, 2011, the IURC also approved a semi-armual RA tracker for recovery of certain capacity charges and costs 
associated with credits paid for interruptible load. On October 31, 2012, the IURC approved RA-2 authorizing the recovery of charges and 
credits in the amount of$14.1 million, to be recovered over six months commencing November I, 2012. 

Northern Indiana has approval from the IURC to recover certain environmental related costs through an ECT. Under the ECT, Northern Indiana 
is permitted to recover (I) AFUDC and a return on the capital investment expended by Northern Indiana to implement environmental 
compliance plan projects through an ECRM and (2) related operation and maintenance and depreciation expenses once the environmental 
facilities become operational through an EERM. The IURC approved the continued use of the ECRM and the EERM trackers in its 
December 21, 2011 Order. As a result of new customer rates, the cost relating to environmental projects that were in service as of June 30, 2010, 
will be recovered through base rates and will no longer be tracked through the ECRM and EERM. 

On March 22, 2011, Northern Indiana filed a petition with the IURC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity and associated relief 
for the construction of additional environmental projects required to comply with the NOV consent decree lodged in the United States District 
Court for the Northern District of Indiana on January 13, 2011 and EPA Regulations. Refer to Note 
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20-D, "Environmental Matters," for additional information. This petition was trifurcated into three separate phases. On December 28, 2011, 
February 15, 2012 and September 5, 2012, the IURC issued orders approving estimated project costs of approximately $800.0 million and 
granting the requested ratemaking and accounting relief associated with these projects through annual and semi-annual tracker filings. 

On November 21, 2012, the IURC approved ECR-20 for net capital expenditures of $227.1 million . On February I, 2013, Northern Indiana 
filed ECR-21, the flling implementing the ECT, which included $376.4 million of net capital expenditures and operation and maintenance and 
depreciation expenses of$1.1 million for the period ended December 31,2012. 

9. Risk Management and Energy Marketing Activities 

NiSource is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed by using derivative instruments are 
commodity price risk and interest rate risk. Derivative natural gas contracts are entered into to manage the price risk associated with natural gas 
price volatility and to secure forward nattrral gas prices. Interest rate swaps are entered into to manage interest rate risk associated with 
NiSource 's fixed-rate borrowings. NiSource designates some of its commodity forward contracts as cash flow hedges of forecasted purchases of 
commodities and designates its interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of fixed-rate borrowings. Additionally, certain NiSource subsidiaries 
enter into forward physical contracts with various third parties to procure or sell natural gas or power. Certain forward physical contracts are 
derivatives which qualifY for, and for which NiSource may elect, the normal purchase and normal sales exception which do not require mark-to­
market accounting. 

Accounting Policy for Derivative Instruments. The ASC topic on accounting for derivatives and hedging requires an entity to recognize all 
derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value, unless such contracts are exempted such as a normal 
purchase and normal sale contract under the provisions of the ASC topic. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on 
the intended use of the derivative and resulting designation. 

NiSource uses a variety of derivative instruments (exchange traded futures and options, physical forwards and options, basis contracts, financial 
commodity swaps, and interest rate swaps) to effectively manage its commodity price risk and interest rate risk exposure. ff certain conditions 
are met, a derivative may be specifically designated as (a) a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or 
an unrecognized firm commitment, or (b) a hedge of the exposure to variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction. In order for a derivative 
contract to be designated as a hedge, the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item or transaction must be highly 
effective. The effectiveness test is performed at the inception of the hedge and each reporting period thereafter, throughout the period that the 
hedge is designated. Any amounts determined to be ineffective are recognized currently in earnings. For derivative contracts that qualify for the 
normal purchase and normal sales exception, a contract's fair value is not recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements until the contract 
is settled. 

Unrealized and realized gains and losses are recognized each period as components of AOCI, regulatory assets and liabilities or earnings 
depending on the designation of the derivative instrument. For subsidiaries that utilize derivatives for cash flow hedges, the effective portions of 
the gains and losses are recorded to AOCJ and are recognized in earnings concurrent with the disposition of the hedged risks. If a forecasted 
transaction corresponding to a cash flow hedge is no longer probable to occur, the accumulated gains or losses on the derivative are recognized 
currently in earnings. For fair value hedges, the gains and losses are recorded in earnings each period together with the change in the fair value of 
the hedged item. As a result of the rate-making process, the rate-regulated subsidiaries generally record gains and losses as regnlatory liabilities 
or assets and recognize such gains or losses in earnings when both the contracts settle and the physical commodity flows. These gains and losses 
recognized in earnings are then subsequently recovered or passed back to customers in revenues through rates. When gains and losses are 
recognized in earnings, they are recognized in revenues or cost of sales for derivatives that correspond to commodity risk activities and are 
recognized in interest expense for derivatives that correspond to interest-rate risk activities. 

NiSource has elected not to net fair value amounts for its derivative instruments or the fair value amounts recognized for its right to receive cash 
collateral or obligation to pay cash collateral arising from those derivative instruments recognized at fair value, which are executed with the 
same counterparty under a master netting arrangement. NiSource discloses amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral within 
"Restricted cash" and amounts recognized for the right to return cash collateral within "Other accruals" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Commodity Price Risk Programs. NiSource and NiSource's utility customers are exposed to variability in cash flows associated with natural 
gas purchases and volatility in natural gas prices. NiSource purchases natural gas for sale and delivery to its retail, 
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commercial and industrial customers, and for most customers the variability in the market price of gas is passed through in their rates. Some of 
NiSource's utility subsidiaries offer programs where variability in the market price of gas is assumed by the respective utility. The objective of 
NiSource's commodity price risk programs is to mitigate this gas cost variability, for NiSource or on behalf of its customers, associated with 
natural gas purchases or sales by economically hedging the various gas cost components by using a combination of futures, options, forward 
physical contracts, basis swap contracts or other derivative contracts. Northern Indiana also uses derivative contracts to minimize risk associated 
with power price volatility. These commodity price risk programs and their respective accounting treatment are described below. 

Northern Indiana, Columbia of Pennsylvania, Columbia of Kentucky, Columbia of Maryland and Columbia of Virginia use NYMEX futures and 
NYMEX options to minimize risk associated with gas price volatility. These derivative programs must be marked to fair value, but because these 
derivatives are used within the framework of the companies' GCR or FAC mechanism, regulatory assets or liabilities are recorded to offset the 
change in the fair value of these derivatives. 

Northern Indiana and Columbia of Virginia offer a fixed price program as an alternative to the standard GCR mechanism. These services provide 
certain customers with the opportunity to either lock in their gas cost or place a cap on the gas costs that would be charged in future months. In 
order to hedge the anticipated physical purchases associated with these obligations, forward physical contracts, NYMEX futures and NYMEX 
options are used to secure forward gas prices. The accounting treatment elected for these contracts is varied in that certain of these contracts have 
been accounted for as cash flow hedges while some contracts are not. The accounting treatment is based on the election of the company. The 
normal purchase and normal sales exception is elected for forward physical contracts associated with these programs where delivery of the 
commodity is probable to occur. 

Northern Indiana also offers a DependaBill program to its customers as an alternative to the standard tariff rate that is charged to residential 
customers. The program allows Northern Indiana customers to fix their total monthly bill in future months at a flat rate regardless of gas usage or 
commodity cost. In order to hedge the anticipated physical purchases associated with these obligations, forward physical contracts, NYMEX 
futures and NYMEX options have been used to secure forward gas prices. The normal purchase and normal sales exception is elected for 
forward physical contracts associated with these programs where delivery of the commodity is probable to occur. 

Northern Indiana enters into gas purchase contracts at first of the month prices that give counterparties the daily option to either sell an additional 
package of gas at first of the month prices or recall the original volume to be delivered. Northern Indiana charges a fee for this option. The 
changes in the fair value of these options are primarily due to the changing expectations of the future intra-month volatility of gas prices. These 
written options are derivative instruments, must be marked to fair value and do not meet the requirement for hedge accounting treatment. 
However, Northern Indiana records the related gains and losses associated with these transactions as a regulatory asset or liability. 

Columbia of Kentucky, Columbia of Ohio and Columbia of Pennsylvania enter into contracts that allow counterparties the option to sell gas to 
them at first of the month prices for a particular month of delivery. These Columbia LDCs charge the counterparties a fee for this option. The 
changes in the fair value of the options are primarily due to the changing expectations of the future intra-month volatility of gas prices. These 
Columbia LDCs defer a portion of the change in the fair value of the options as either a regulatory asset or liability based on the regulatory 
customer sharing mechanisms in place, with the remaining changes in fair value recognized currently in earnings. 

As part of the MISO Day 2 initiative, Northern Indiana was allocated or has purchased FTRs. These FTRs help Northern Indiana offset 
congestion costs due to the MISO Day 2 activity. The FTRs are marked to fair value and are not accounted for as a hedge, but since congestion 
costs are recoverable through the fuel cost recovery mechanism, the related gains and losses associated with marking these derivatives to market 
are recorded as a regulatory asset or liability. In the second quarter of2008, MISO changed its allocation procedures from an allocation ofFTRs 
to an allocation of ARRs, whereby Northern Indiana was allocated ARRs based on its historical use of the MISO administered transmission 
system. ARRs entitle the holder to a stream of revenues or charges based on the price of the associated FTR in the FTR auction, so ARRs can be 
used to purchase FTRs in the FTR auction. ARRs are not derivatives. 

NiSource is in the process of winding down its unregulated natural gas marketing business, where gas financial contracts are utilized to 
economically hedge expected future gas purchases associated with forward gas agreements. These financial contracts, as well as the associated 
forward physical sales contracts, are derivatives and are marked-to-market with all associated gains and losses recognized to income. NiSource 
established a reserve of$ 0.7 million and$ 25.6 million against certain derivatives as of December3I, 2012 and December3I, 2011, 
respectively. This amount represents reserves related to the creditworthiness of certain 
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customers, fair value of future cash flows, and the cost of maintaining significant amounts of restricted cash. The physical sales contracts 
marked-to-market had a fair value of approximately $ 35.4 million at December 31, 2012 and $ 136.8 million at December 31, 2011, while the 
financial derivative contracts marked-to-market had a fair value loss of $ 33.2 million at December 31, 2012, and $ 155.5 million at 
December 31, 201!. During the fourth quarter of20ll, NiSource recorded a reserve of$22.6 million on certain assets related to the wind down 
of the unregulated natural gas marketing business. During 2012, NiSource settled a majority of the contracts related to the reserve noted above 
and wrote off$ 43.8 million of price risk assets. Additionally, NiSource has a notes receivable balance related to the settlements of$ 12.1 
million as of December 31, 2012. 

On October 31, 2011, cash and derivatives broker-dealer MF Global filed for Chapter II bankruptcy protection. MF Global brokered NYMEX 
hedges of natural gas futures on behalf of NiSource. At the date of bankruptcy, NiSource affiliates had contracts open with MF Global with 
settlement dates ranging from November 2011 to February 2014. On November 3, 2011, these contracts were measured at a mark-to-market loss 
of approximately $ 46.4 million . NiSource affiliates had posted irtitial margin to open these accounts of $ 6.9 million and adrutional 
maintenance margin for mark-to-market losses of $46.4 million, for a total restricted cash balance of$ 53.3 million. Within the first week after 
the filing, at the rurection of the Bankruptcy Court, a transfer of assets was initiated on behalf of NiSource affiliates to a court-designated 
replacement broker for future trade activity. The existing futures positions were closed and then rebooked with the court-designated replacement 
broker at the new closing prices as of November 3, 201!. Initial margin on deposit at MF Global of$ 5.7 million was transferred to the court­
designated replacement broker. The maintenance margin was retained by MF Global to offset the loss positions of the open contracts on 
November 3, 2011. NiSource affiliates are monitoring the activity in the bankruptcy case and have filed a proof of claim at the Court's direction. 
As of December 31, 2012, NiSource affiliates maintained a reserve for the$ !.2 million difference between the initial margin posted with MF 
Global and the cash transferred to the court-designated replacement broker as a loss contingency. 

Commodity price risk program derivative contracted gross volumes are as follows: 

December 31, 2012 December 3!, 20ll 

Commodity Price Risk Program: 

Gas price volatility program derivatives (MMDth) 

Price:P£o@t\QP,$~!:)!ice p[ogram derivatiVes (MMI>th) :u;mlllllllllllmllllllllllllll 
DependaBill program derivatives (MMDth) 

ll.eguiatotj mcentive program derivatives (MMDth) 

Gas marketing program derivatives (MMDth) '" 

Gas Illlliketing f.j~ard p~y~iiE~l derivatives (MMDth) a> 
Electric energy program FTR derivatives (mwh) ''l 

26.3 

1.2 

0.3 

9.1 

8.4 
8,927.3 

(I) 

(2) 

Basis contract volumes not included in the above table were 8.2 MMDth and 15.9 MMDth as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. 

Basis contract volumes not included in the above table were 9.2 MMDth and 29.9 MMDth as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. 
(J) Megawatt hours reported in thousands. 

26.1 

1.0 

0.3 

0.9 

28.5 

27.1 

8,578.5 

Interest Rate Risk Activities . NiSource recognizes that the prudent and selective use of derivatives may help it to lower its cost of debt capital 
and manage its interest rate exposure. NiSource Finance has entered into various "receive fixed" and "pay floating" interest rate swap 
agreements which modify the interest rate characteristics of a portion of its outstanding long-term debt from fixed to variable rate. These interest 
rate swaps also serve to hedge the fair market value ofNiSource Finance's outstanding debt portfolio. As of December 31, 2012, NiSource had$ 
7.1 billion of outstanding fixed rate debt, of which $ 500 million is subject to fluctuations in interest rates as a result of the fixed-to-variable 
interest rate swap transactions. These interest rate swaps are designated as fair value hedges. NiSource had no net gain or loss recognized in 
earnings due to hedging ineffectiveness for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 and 201!. 

On July 22, 2003, NiSource Finance entered into fixed-to-variable interest rate swap agreements in a notional amount of$ 500 million with four 
counte:rparties with an eleven -year term. NiSource Finance receives payments based upon a fixed 5.40% interest rate and pays a floating interest 
amount based on U.S. 6-month BBA LIBOR plus an average of 0. 78% per annum. There was no exchange of premiuro at the initial date of the 
swaps. In addition, each party has the right to cancel the swaps on July 15, 2013. 
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Contemporaneously with the issuance on September 16, 2005 of$ I billion of its 5.25% and 5.45% notes, NiSource Finance settled $ 900 
million of forward starting interest rate swap agreements with six counterparties. NiSource paid an aggregate settlement payment of$ 35.5 
million which is being amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss to interest expense over the term of the underlying debt, resulting 
in an effective interest rate of 5.67% and 5.88% , respectively. As of December 31, 2012, accumulated other comprehensive loss includes$ 9.8 
million related to forward starting interest rate swap settlement. These derivative contracts are accounted for as a cash flow hedge. 

As of December 31, 2012, NiSource holds a 47.5% interest in Millennium. As NiSource reports Millennium as an equity method investment, 
NiSource is required to recognize a proportional share of Millennium's OCl. NiSource's proportionate share of the remaining unrealized loss 
associated with a settled interest rate swap is $ 18.7 million, net of tax, as of December 31, 2012. Millennium is amortizing the unrealized loss 
related to these terminated interest rate swaps into earnings using the effective interest method through interest expense as interest payments are 
made. NiSource records its proportionate share of the amortization as Equity Earnings in Unconsolidated Affiliates in the Statements of 
Consolidated Income. 

NiSource's location and fair value of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets were: 

Asset Derivatives (in millions) 

Balance Sheet Location 

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments 

Interest rate risk activities 
Price risk management assets (current) 

~t"ffiii·••••mcensk'mailareiiient.SsetttD.Oifcurrent) 

Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments 

J:)~~y~!fves n'!~d.~stgnat~ a~hedging instruments 
Commodity price risk programs 

Price riskm8DBgerlumt .Sseti (current) 
Price risk management assets (noncurrent) 

Total derivatives not deslgnate<rllsb.edglng instruments 

Total Asset Derivatives 

Deeember 31, 2012 

Fair Value 

$ 92.2 

15.6 

$ 107.8 

$ 148.2 

December 31, 2011 

Fair Value OJ 

$ 141.8 

150.0 

$ 291.S 

$ 348.5 

'"During the fourth quarter of 20 II, NiSource recorded a reserve of $ 22.6 million ($ 4.6 million current and $ 18.0 million noncurrent) on 
certain assets related to the wind down of the unregulated natural gas marketing business. During 2012, NiSource wrote off these impaired 
derivative contracts as all contracts have been settled. The write-off was consistent with the reserve recorded in 20 II. The non-designated price 
risk asset amounts above are shown gross and have not been adjusted for the reserves. 
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Liability Derivatives (in millions) 

Balance Sheet Location 

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments 

Commodity price risk programs 
Price risk management liabilities (current) 
Price risk management liabilities (noncurrent) 

Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments 

Derivatives not desigoated as bedgiog instrumellt$ 

Commodity price risk programs 

!:*~ risk IJl:llll"gement .liabilities (current) 
Price risk management liabilities (noncurrent) 

Total derivatives not deSignated as bedgiog instruments 

Total Liability Derivatives 

The effect of derivative instruments on the Statements of Consolidated Income were: 

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships 

Twelve Months Ended (in millions) 

Derivatives in Cash Flow 
Hedging Relationships 

Coinmodi!Y"Pfice risliprogfairiS 

Interest rate risk activities 
Tofu! 

Cost of sales 

Interest expe115e, net 

Total 

Location of Gain (Loss) 
Reclassified from AOCI 

into Income (Effective Portion) 

89 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

December 31, 2012 December 31, 20 II 

Fair Value 

0.1 $ 

0.1 $ 

95.1 $ 

20.3 

115.4 $ 

115.5 $ 

Fair Value 

Amount of Gain 
Recognized in OCI on 

Derivative (Effective Portion) 

0.4 

0.1 

0.5 

167.4 

138.8 

306.2 

306.7 

Dec. 31,2012 Dec. 31,2011 Dec. 31,2010 

s 0.7 $ $ 0.1 

$ 

1.5 1.6 

2.2 $ 1.6 $ 

Amount of Gain (Loss) 
Reclassified from AOCI into 
Income (Effective Portion) 

1.5 

1.6 

Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31,201 I Dec. 31,2010 

s (0.9) $" EI $ 1.2 

(2.6) (2.6) (2.6) 

$ (3.5) $ (l.5) $ (1.4) 
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Twelve Months Ended (in millions) 

Derivatives in Cash Flow 
Hedging Relationships 

Commooit)i'j>rice·risk programs • 
Interest rate risk activities 

Total 

Location of Gain Recognized in Income 
on Derivative (Ineffective 

Portion and Amount Excluded from 
Effectiveness Testing) 

Cost of Sales 
Interest expense, net 

Amount of Gain 
Recognized in Income 

ofDerivative (Ineffective 
Portion and Amount Excluded 
from Effectiveness Testing) 

Dec 31,2012 Dec 31, 20IO 

s -

s $ $ 

It is anticipated that during the next twelve months the expiration and settlement of cash flow hedge contracts will result in income statement 
recognition of amounts currently classified in accwnulated other comprehensive income (loss) of approximately $ 0.2 million of loss, net of 
taxes. 

Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships 

Twelve Months Ended (in millions) 

Derivatives in Fair Value 
Hedging Relationships 

Interest rate risk activities 

Total 

Twelve Months Ended ( in millions ) 

Hedged Item in Fair Value Hedge 
Relationships 

Interest rate risk activities 

Total 

Location of Loss Recognized in Income 
on Derivatives 

Interest expense, net 

Location of Gain 
Recognized in Income on Related Hedged 

Item 

Interest expense, net 

90 

Amount of Loss Recognized 
in Income on Derivatives 

Dec. 31,2012 Dec. 31,2011 Dec. 31,2010 

$ (16.3) $ (4.4) $ (8.7) 

s (16.3) $ (4.4) $ (8.7) 

Amount of Gain Recognized in Income on Related Hedged 
Items 

Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31,2011 Dec. 31,2010 

$ 16.3 $ 4.4 $ 8.7 

$ 16.3 $ 4.4 $ 8.7 
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Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 

Twelve Months Ended ( in millions ) 

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging 
Instruments 

Commodity price risk progtams: 

Commodity price risk programs 

coml'nodity pricll'!isk prllgmms 
Total 

Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized in 
Income on Derivatives 

Gas DiStribUtion revenues 

Other revenues 
cost'of'$'3l~s1'~11' 

$ 

$ 

Amount of Realized/Unrealized 
Gain (Loss) Recognized in 
Income on Derivatives tll 

Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31,2011 Dec. 31,2010 

0.3 

27.5 

(46.1) 

$ 

(18.3) $ 

62.6 

(66.9) 
(4.3) 

$ (55.6) 

115.3 

(95:4) 

$ (35.7) 

(11 For the amounts of realized/unrealized gain (loss) recognized in income on derivatives disclosed in the table above, losses of$ 20.3 million,$ 
33.9 million, and$ 36.7 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, were deferred per regnlatory orders. These amounts will be amortized to 
income over future periods of up to twelve months per regulatory order. 

NiSource has not made any material reclassifications to earnings from AOCI to Cost of Sales due to the probability that certain forecasted 
transactions would not occur for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. 

NiSource's derivative instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 do not contain any credit-risk-related contingent 
features. 

Certain NiSource affiliates have physical commodity purchase agreements that contain "ratings triggers" that require increases in collateral if the 
credit mting of NiSource or certain of its affiliates are mted below BBB- by Standard & Poor's or below Baa3 by Moody's. These agreements 
are primarily for the physical purchase or sale of natural gas and electricity. As of December 31, 2012, the collateral requirement from a 
downgrade below the ratings trigger levels would amount to approximately$ 0.9 million . In addition to agreements with ratings triggers, there 
are some agreements that contain "adequate assurance" or «material adverse change" provisions that could result in additional credit support 
such as letters of credit and cash collateral to transact business. 

NiSource had $ 45.7 million and$ 158.2 million of cash on deposit with brokers for margin requirements associated with open derivative 
positions reflected within "Restricted cash" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. 

10. Variable Interest Entities and Equity Method Investments 

A. Variable Interest Entitles. In general, a VIE is an entity which (I) has an insufficient amount of at-risk equity to permit the entity to 
fmance its activities without additional financial subordinated support provided by any other parties, (2) whose at-risk equity owners, as a group, 
do not have power, through voting rights or similar rights, to direct activities of the entity that most significantly impact the entity's economic 
performance or (3) whose at-risk owners do not absorb the entity's losses or receive the entity's residual return. A VIE is required to be 
consolidated by a company if that company is determined to be the primary beneficiary of the VIE. 

NiSource consolidates those VIEs for which it is the primary beneficiary. Prior to the adoption of the new F ASB guidance on consolidation of 
variable interest entities, the prevalent method for determining the primary beneficiary was through a quantitative method. With the adoption of 
the guidance, NiSource also considers qualitative elements in determining the primary beneficiary. These qualitative measures include the ability 
to control an entity and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits. 

NiSource's analysis under GAAP includes an assessment of guarantees, operating leases, purchase agreements, and other contracts, as well as its 
investments and joint ventures. For items that have been identified as variable interests, or where there is involvement with an identified variable 
interest entity, an in-depth review of the relationship between the relevant entities and NiSource is made to evaluate qualitative and quantitative 
factors to determine the primary beneficiary, if any, and whether additional disclosures would be required under the current standard. 
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Northern Indiana has a service agreement with Pure Air, a general partnership between Air Products and Chemicals, Inc. and First Air Partners 
LP, under which Pure Air provides scrubber services to reduce sulfur dioxide emissions for Units 7 and 8 at the Bailly Generating Station. 
Services under this contract commenced on July I, 1992 and expired on June 30, 2012. The agreement was renewed effective July I, 2012 for 
ten years and Northern Indiana will continue to pay for the services under a combination of fixed and variable charges. NiSource has made an 
exhaustive effort to obtain information needed from Pure Air to determine the status of Pure Air as a VIE. However, Northern Indiana has not 
been able to obtain this information and as a result, it is unclear whether Pure Air is a VIE and if Northern Indiana is the primary beneficiary. 
Northern Indiana will continue to request the information required to determine whether Pure Air is a VIE. Northern Indiana has no exposure to 
loss related to the service agreement with Pure Air and payments under this agreement were $ 21.6 million and $ 23.2 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. In accordance with GAAP, the renewed agreement was evaluated to determine whether the 
arrangement qualifies as a lease. Based on the terms of the agreement, the arrangement qualified for capital lease accounting. As the effective 
date of the new agreement was July 1, 2012, NiSource capitalized this lease beginning in the third quarter of2012. 

B. Equity Method Investments . Certain investments of NiSource are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. lncome and 
losses from Millennium and Hardy Storage are reflected in Equity Earnings in Unconsolidated Affiliates on NiSource's Statements of 
Consolidated Income. These investments are integral to the Gas Transmission and Storage Operations business. Income and losses from all other 
equity investments are reflected in Other, net on NiSource's Statements of Consolidated lncome. All investments shown as limited partnerships 
are limited partnership interests. 

The following is a list ofNiSource's equity method investments at December 31,2012: 

The Wellingshire Joint Venture 

Hardy Storage Company, L.L.C. 

Pellnant Midstream, L.L.C. 

Millennium Pipeline Company, L.L.C. 

Investee 

House lnvestments"- Midwest Corporate Tax Credit Fund, L.P. 

Nth Power Technologies Fund II, L.P. 

Nth Power Technologies Fund II-A, L,P. 

Nth Power Technologies Fund IV, L.P. 

Type of Investment 

Geneial Partnership 

LLC Membership 

u;c 'Membership 
LLC Membership 

Limited Partnership 

Limited Partnership 

Limited Partnership 

Limited Partnership 

%of Voting Power or 
Interest Held 

50:0% 
50.0% 

50.0% 

47.5% 

12.2% 

4.2% 

4.2% 

1.8% 

As the Millennium and Hardy Storage investments are considered integral to the Gas Transmission and Storage Operations business, the 
following table contains condensed summary financial data. These investments are accounted for under the equity method of accounting and, 
therefore, are not consolidated into NiSource's Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Consolidated Income. These investments are 
recorded within Unconsolidated affiliates on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and NiSource's portion of the results are reflected in Equity 
Earnings in Unconsolidated Affiliates on the Statements of Consolidated Income. 
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Given the immaterial nature of the other equity method investments, a condensed summary of financial data was determined not to be necessary. 

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 

Millennium 

Statement oflocome Data: 
Net Revenues 
Operating Income 

Net Incomti:!m::;:;m;;:" 

Balance Sheet Data: 

Total Asse•~llllllllllllll ..... . 
Total Liabilities 

Total Members';Equity 

Hardy Storage 
Statemenf!lfll!"come Data: 
Net Revenues 

Operating Income 

Net Income 

B~nce SJ!,~~.Ii!!!'t!!L ... ~. 
Total Assets 

Total Liabiil!t.,"$"""" 

Total Members' Equity 

2012 

s 152.3 

97.7 

57.1 

1,047.1 

674.1 

373.0 

s 24.4 

16.4 

10.0 

173.8 

109.4 

64.4 

2011 

$ 119.3 
63.7 

20.5 

1,045.0 

703.4 

341.6 

$ 24.4 

16.5 

9.7 

176.1 

114.8 

61.3 

~ 

$ 

103.9 

55.9 

725.5 

335.1 

23.9 

16.2 

9.0 

184.8 
12:u;; 

60.7 

Equity in the retained earnings of Millennium and Hardy Storage at December 31, 2012 was$ 19.1 million and$ 7.5 million, respectively. 
Contributions to Millennium, Hardy Storage and other equity investees were$ 20.4 million,$ 6.4 million, and$ 87.9 million for 2012, 2011 
and 2010, respectively. Millennium distributed$ 31.4 million and$ 14.3 million of earnings to Columbia Transmission during 2012 and 2011, 
respectively. Hardy Storage distributed$ 3.5 million and $ 4.5 million of earnings to NiSource during 2012 and 20 II, respectively. 

11. Income Taxes 

The components of income tax expense were as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 

Income Taxes 

Current 

Federal 

State 

Total Current 

Deferred 

Federal 

State 

Total Deferred 

Deferred Investment Credits 

Income Taxes from Continning Operations 

93 

2012 

s (94.8) 

5.7 

(89.1) 

289.9 
18.8 

308.7 

(4.1) 

s 215.5 

2011 2010 

$ (19.1) $ (66.2) 

(2.1) 2.2 

f21.2) (64.0) 

151:8 182.3 

31.4 17.4 

183.2 199.7 

(4.8) (5.9) 

$ 157.2 $ 129.8 
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Total income taxes from continuing operations were different from the amount that would be computed by applying the statutory federal income 
tax rate to book income before income tax. The major reasons for this difference were as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2012 2011 2010 

Book income from Continuing Operations before income taxes $ 626.1 $ 452.0 $ 406.6 

Tax expense at statutory federal income tax rate 219.1 35.0% 158.2 35.0% 142.3 35.0% 

Increases (reductions) in taxes resulting from: 

State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 15.9 2.5 19.3 4.2 I 1.9 3.0 

Regulatof)l' treatment of depneciation differences (0.9) (~.2) (1.8) (16.2) (4.0) 
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits (0.7) (4.8) (1.1) (5.9) (1.5) 

Nondedufljl>Ie ~xp~~es ,. ():J 
25 0.6 . LS 0.4 

Employee Stock Ownership Plan Dividends (3.4) (0.5) (3.1) (0.7) (2.9) (0.7) 

Regulatof)l' treatmenfof AFUDC-Equity (0.5) (0.6) (0.1) (1.9) (0.5) 
Tax accrual adjustments and other, net (4.7) (0.8) (6.1) (1.3) 0.7 0.2 

Income T.Xes from Contin.uing Operations $ 215.5 34.4% $ 157.2 34.8% $ 129.8 31.9% 

The effective income tax rates were 34.4% , 34.8% and 31.9% in 2012 , 2011 and 20 I 0 , respectively. The change in the overall effective tax rate 
in 2012 versus 2011 was minimal. The 2011 rate increased compared to 2010 rate due to the 2010 rate settlement in Pennsylvania and for the 
change in Indiana state taxes, discussed below. 

On Janu8[)1' 2, 2013, the President signed into law the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 (ATRA). ATRA, among other things, extends 
retroactively the research credit under Internal Revenue Code section 41 until December 31, 2013, and also extends and modifies 50% bonus 
depreciation for 2013.1n general, 50% bonus depreciation will be available for property placed in service before JanDaf)l' I, 2014, or in the case 
of certain property having longer production periods, Janu8[)1' I, 2015. NiSource will record the effects of ATRA in the flrst quarter 2013. 
NiSource does not believe that the retroactive extension of the research credit wil1 have a significant effect on net income. At December 31, 
2012, NiSource is reflecting $162.8 million of current deferred tax assets related to federal net operating loss carryforwards based upon when it 
expected to use net operating losses according to the tax law in effect as of the balance sheet date. The extension of bonus depreciation under 
A TRA will more likely than not change the timing of the usage of the federal net operating loss to a period beyond 12 months from the balance 
sheet date. Accordingly, NiSource expects that in the flrst quarter of 2013, the majority of the deferred tax asset related to the federal net 
operating loss carryforward will be presented as non-current. 

During the third quarter of 2009, NiSource received permission from the IRS to change its tax method of capitalizing certain costs which it 
applied on a prospective basis to the federal and state income tax returns flied for its 2008 tax year. As a result of the new tax accounting 
method, NiSource recorded federal and state income tax receivables of $295.7 million. Refunds of $263.5 million were received in October 
2009, with additional refunds of $25.3 million received in December 2009 and Janu8[)1' and Febru8[)1' 20 I 0. The balance of the refunds was 
received during 2010. 

On August 19, 2011, the IRS issued Revenue Procedure 2011-43, which provided a safe harbor method that taxpayers may use to determine 
whether certain expenditures related to electric transmission and distribution assets must be capitalized. This revenue procedure provided 
procedures for obtaining automatic consent from the IRS to adopt the safe harbor method for the flrst or second taxable year beginning after 
December 30, 2010. NiSource changed its method of tax accounting related to certain expenditures, including those related to electric 
transmission and distribution assets, in 2008. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, NiSource had $80.9 million and $107.4 million, respectively, of 
unrecognized tax benefits related to this method change pending resolution on audit or further guidance from the IRS or United States TreasUT)I' 
Department. As a result of the issuance of the revenue procedure NiSource revised its estimates and recorded tax benefits of$12.9 million in the 
third quarter of 2011. Excluding minor amounts of interest, the revision of estimate did not impact total income tax expense. On its 2011 federal 
income tax return filed in September 2012, NiSource included an automatic change in tax accounting method related to electric transmission and 
distribution repairs in conformity with Revenue Procedure 2011-43. 
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On December 27, 20 II, the United States Treasury Department and the IRS issued temporary and proposed regulations effective for years 
beginning on or after January I, 2012 that, among other things, provided guidance on whether expenditures qualified as deductible repairs (the 
"Tangible Property Regulations"). In addition to repairs related rules, the proposed and temporary regulations provided additional guidance 
related to capitalization of tangible property. Among other things, these rules provide guidance for the treatment of materials and supplies, 
dispositions of property, and related elections. On March 15, 2012, the IRS issued a directive to discontinue exam activity related to positions on 
this issue taken on original tax returns for years beginning before January I, 2012 (commonly referred to as the "Stand-down Position"). 

On October 2, 2012 and later incorporated by reference in the Revenue Agent's Report dated November 14,2012 for the 2008 to 2010 tax years, 
NiSource received an audit adjustment that adopted the Stand-down Position. The effect of this adjustment is to allow the repairs claims as filed 
and to defer review until a new method is adopted in 2012 or a subsequent acceptable year. 

On November 20, 2012, the Treasury Department and IRS issued Notice 2012-73, which in relevant part stated that (i) final regulations would 
be issued in 2013, and (ii) the fmal regulations will contain changes from the temporary regulations. The Notice in essence defers the 
requirement of adopting the temporary regulations until 2013 and the fmal regulations until 2014. NiSource will evaluate the final regulations 
when issued and at that time will assess the proper period for adoption. 

On May 12, 2011, the governor oflndiana signed into law House Bill 1004, which among other things, lowered the corporate income tax rate 
from 8.5% to 6.5% over four years beginning on July I, 2012. The reduction in the tax rate impacted deferred income taxes and tax related 
regulatory assets and liabilities recoverable in the rate making process. In addition, other deferred tax assets and liabilities, primarily deferred tax 
assets related to Indiana net operating loss carry forward, was reduced to reflect the lower rate at which these temporary differences and tax 
benefits will be realized. In the second quarter 2011, NiSource recorded tax expense of$6.8 million to reflect the effect of this rate change. The 
expense is largely attributable to the re-measurement of the Indiana net operating loss at the 6.5% rate. The majority of the Company's tax 
temporary differences are related to Northern Indiana's utility plant. There-measurement of these temporary differences at 6.5% was recorded as 
a reduction of a regulatory asset. 

In the fourth quarter of 20 I 0, NiSource received permission from the IRS to change its method of accounting for capitalized overhead costs 
under Section 263A of the Internal Revenue Code. The change was effective for the 2009 tax year. The Company recorded a net long-term 
receivable of $31.5 million, net of uncertain tax positions, in the fourth quarter of 2010 to reflect this change. There was no material impact on 
the effective tax rate as a result of this method change. In 20 II, the Company revised its calculation related to the change in method and 
recorded an increase to the net long-term receivable of$3.3 million, net of uncertain tax positions, to reflect the change in estimate. Excluding 
minor amounts of interest, the revision in estimate did not impact total income tax expense. In 2012, the IRS completed fieldwork for the audit 
for the years 2008-2010. The audit is subject to Joint Committee review, which is expected to be completed in 2013. The Company has revised 
its estimate of unrecognized tax benefit related to this issue to incorporate 2012 activity and has reflected $34.4 million as a current receivable. 

In the third quarter of 2010, NiSource recorded a $15.2 million reduction to income tax expense in connection with the Pennsylvania PUC 
approval of the Columbia of Pennsylvania base rate case settlement on August 18, 20 I 0. The adjustment to income tax expense resulted from the 
settlement agreement to flow through in current rates the tax benefits related to a tax accounting method change for certain capitalized costs 
approved by the IRS. As a result of the Pennsylvania Commission Order on October 14,2011, Columbia of Pennsylvania will continue to flow 
through in rates unamortized tax benefits of approximately $15.6 million through January 2014 related to the writ of property tax method 
change. The amortization of excess tax benefits was $14.9 million in 2012. On a prospective basis, Columbia of Pennsylvania will recognize 
deferred tax expense rather than flow through in rates the tax benefits resulting from this method change. 

The 2010 Health Care Act includes a provision eliminating, effective January I, 2013, the tax deductibility of retiree health care costs to the 
extent of federal subsidies received under the Retiree Drug Subsidy program. When the Retiree Drug Subsidy was created by the Medicare 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of2003, NiSource recorded a deferred tax asset reflecting the exclusion of the expected 
future Retiree Drug Subsidy from taxable income. At the same time, an offsetting regulatory liability was established to reflect NiSource's 
obligation to reduce income taxes collected in future rates. ASC Topic 740 - Income Taxes requires the impact of a change in tax law to be 
immediately recognized in continuing operations in the income statement for the period that includes the enactment date. In the first quarter of 
2010, NiSource reversed its deferred tax asset of$6.2 million related to previously excludable Retiree Drug Subsidy payments expected to be 
received after January I, 2013, which was completely offset by the reversal of the related regulatory liability. 
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Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets 
and liabilities. The principal components ofNiSource's net deferred tax liability were as follows: 

At December 31, (in millions) 2012 2011 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Accelerated depreciation and other property differences $ 3,306.6 $ 2,943.0 

Unrecovered gas and fuel co.stsu• 23.2 14.\i 
Other regulatory assets 840.0 858.8 

PreuuUm8'and disrounls'as$9ela!ed withlorig-term debt 12.1 12.8 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 4,181.9 3,829.2 

Deferred tax assets : 

Deferred investment tax credits and other regulatory liabilities (191.5) (73.9) 

Cost of removal (523.4) (557.9) 

Pension and other benefits (353.6) (369.8) 

Environmental liabilities (49.0) (63.6) 

Net operating loss carryforward and AMT credit carryforward (218.9) (250.3) 

Other accrued liabilities (55.4) (45.7) 

Other, net (55.9) (56.9) 

Total Deferred Tax Assets (1,447.7) (1,418.1) 

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities 2,734.2 2,411.1 

Les~r.Pefefted i'ncc'n:ri~ taxes rehited to current"assets and liabilities 0 > (219.1) (130.8) 

Non-Current Deferred Tax Liability $ 2,953.3 $ 2,541.9 

"'Current deferred taxes is located in Prepayments and other on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

State income tax net operating loss benefits were recorded at their realizable value. NiSource anticipates it is more likely than not that it wil1 
realize $39.4 million and $35.8 million of these benefits as of December31, 2012 and December31, 2011, respectively, prior to their 
expiration. The remaining net operating loss carry forward represents a Federal carry forward of $176.5 million that will expire in 2032 and an 
Alternative Minimum Tax credit of $3.0 million that will carry forward indefinitely. The state amounts are primarily for Indiana, Pennsylvania, 
and West Virginia. The loss carryforward periods expire in various tax years from 2024 through 2032 . 

The following table reconciles the change in the net accumulated deferred income tax liability to the deferred income tax expense included in the 
income statement for the period: 

(in millions) 

Beginning net accumulated deferred tax liability 

Deferred income tax expense for the period 

Change in tax effects of income tax related regulatory assets and liabilities 

Deferred taxes recorded to other comprehensive income/(loss) 

Deferred taxes transferred to taxes accrued and other charges 

Ending net accumulated deferred tax liability per above table 

96 

s 
2012 

2,411.1 

308.7 

·23.5 
(3.8) 

(5.3) 

2011 

$ 2,230.2 

183.2 

3.2 

1.0 

(6.5) 

$ 2,411.1 
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows: 

Reconciliation of Unrecognized Tax Benefits (in millions) 

Unreeognized Tax Benefits- Opening Balanee 
Gross increases - tax positions in prior period 
Gross deereases - tax positions in prior period 

Gross increases - current period tax positions 

Unreoognil;ed Tax Benefits- Ending Balanee 

Offset for outstanding IRS refunds 

Offset for net operating loss carryforwards 

Balance- Net of Refunds and NOL Carryforwards 

2012 

$ 

$ 

105.3 $ 

0.2 

(85.4) 
8.4 

$ 

2011 2010 

129.2 $ 117.7 

5.7 1.2 

(29.6) (8.2) 

18.5 

105.3 $ 129.2 

(87.9) (114.2) 

(13.3) (17.2) 

4.1 $ (2.2) 

As discussed above, NiSource was granted permission to change its tax method of accounting for capitalizing certain costs and has taken certain 
positions related to this change in its 2008 income tax return. NiSource's determination of what constitutes a capital cost versus ordinary expense 
was subject to revision on audit by the IRS. As such, the status of this tax return position was uncertain. Dnring 2009, NiSource added $114.4 
million to its liability for unrecognized tax benefits for uncertain tax positions related to this issue. On August 19, 2011, the IRS issued Revenue 
Procedure 2011-43, which provided a safe harbor method that taxpayers may use to detennine whether certain expenditures related to electric 
transmission and distribution assets must be capitalized. This revenue procedure provided procedures for obtaining automatic consent from the 
IRS to adopt the safe harbor method for the first or second taxable year beginning after December 30, 20 I 0. As a result of the issuance of the 
revenue procedure, NiSource revised its estimates and recorded tax benefits of $12.9 million in the third quarter of 2011. Excluding minor 
amounts of interest, the revision in estimate did not impact total income tax expense. 

Based upon its intent to comply with Internal Revenue Procedures, Tangible Property Regulations and the Stand-down Position audit 
adjustment, NiSource has detemtined that the unrecognized tax benefit associated with the requested change in tax accounting method filed for 
2008 related to electric generation and gas transmission and distribution required are-measurement under the provisions of ASC 740. Therefore, 
in the fourth quarter of2012 NiSource recognized an income tax receivable of$85.7 million related to the 2008 and 2009 tax years and increases 
in net operating loss carryforwards of$6.8 million for the tax years 2010-2012, previously unrecognized. Except for interest recorded on the tax 
receivables, the recognition of the receivables and net operating loss carryforwards did not materially affect tax expense or net income. 

In 2010, NiSource received pennission to change its method of accounting for capitalizing overhead costs. The Company recorded an 

unrecognized tax benefit related to this uncertain tax position of$17.6 million in 2010.1o 2011, this estimate was revised to $19.9 million. In 

2012, the IRS completed fieldwork for the audit for the years 2008-2010, which is pending Joint Committee review. The Company has revised 

the unrecognized tax benefit related to this issue to incorporate 2012 activity. At December 31, 2012, the unrecognized tax benefits were $21.1 

million. 

Offsetting the liability for unrecognized tax benefits are $26.2 million of related outstanding tax receivables and net operating loss carryforwards 
resulting in a net balance of $3.2 million , including interest, related to the tax method change issues. 

Except as discussed above, there have been no other material changes in 2012 to NiSource's uncertain tax positions recorded as of December 31, 
2011. 

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31,2012,2011 and 2010 that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is 
$2.2 million, $2.4 million and $3.9 million, respectively. As of December 31,2011, NiSource did not anticipate any significant changes to its 
liability for unrecognized tax benefits over the twelve months ended December 31,2012. It is reasonably possible that a $20.5 million decrease 
in unrecognized tax benefits could occur in 2013 due primarily to Joint Committee on Taxation review of the 2008-2010 federal audit. Other 
amounts that are reasonably possible to be settled in 2013 are not significant. 

NiSource recognizes accrued interest on unrecognized tax benefits, accrued interest on other income tax liabilities, and tax penalties in income 
tax expense. With respect to its unrecognized tax benefits, NiSource recorded $0.2 million , $(0.1) million and $0.1 million in interest expense in 
the Statements of Consolidated Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
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respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, NiSource reported $0.9 million and $0.7 million o respectively, of 
accrued interest payable on unrecognized tax benefits on its Consolidated Balance Sheets. There were no accruals for penalties recorded in the 
Statement of Consolidated Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and there were no 
balances for accrued penalties recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011. 

NiSource is subject to income taxation in the United States and various state jurisdictions, primarily Indiana, West Virginia, Virginia, 
Pennsylvania, Kentucky, Massachusetts, Louisiana, Mississippi, Maryland, Tennessee, New Jersey and New York. 

Because NiSource is part of the IRS's Large and Mid-Size Business program, each year's federal income tax return is typically audited by the 
IRS. As of December 31, 2012, tax years through 2007 have been audited and are effectively closed to further assessment. The audit of tax years 
2008,2009, and 2010 is now in Joint Committee review. 

The statute of limitations in each of the state jurisdictions in which NiSource operates remain open until the years are settled for federal income 
tax purposes, at which time amended state income tax returns reflecting all federal income tax adjustments are filed. As of December 31, 2012, 
there were no state income tax audits in progress that would have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

l2o Pension and Otber Postretirement Benefits 

NiSource provides defined contribution plans and noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans that cover the majority of its employees. 
Benefits under the defined benefit retirement plans reflect the employees' compensation, years of service and age at retirement. Additionally, 
NiSource provides health care and life insurance benefits for certain retired employees. The majority of employees may become eligible for 
these benefits if they reach retirement age while working for NiSource. The expected cost of such benefits is accrued during the employees' 
years of service. Current rates of rate-regulated companies include postretirement benefit costs, including amortization of the regulatory assets 
that arose prior to inclusion of these costs in rates. For most plans, cash contributions are remitted to grantor trusts. 

NiSource Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans' Asset Management . NiSource employs a total return investment approach 
whereby a mix of equities and fixed income investments are used to maximize the long-term return of plan assets for a prudent Level of risk. Risk 
tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status, and asset class volatility. The investment portfolio 
contains a diversified blend of equity and fixed income investments. Furthermore, equity investments are diversified across U.S. and non-U.S. 
stocks, as well as growth, value, small and large capitalizations. Other assets such as private equity and hedge funds are used judiciously to 
enhance long-term returns while improving portfolio diversification. Derivatives may be used to gain market exposure in an efficient and timely 
manner; however, derivatives may not be used to leverage the portfolio beyond the market value of the underlying assets. Investment risk is 
measured and monitored on an ongoing basis through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, annual liability measurements, and periodic 
asset/liability studies. 

NiSource utilizes a building block approach with proper consideration of diversification and rebalancing in determining the long-term rate of 
return for plan assets. Historical markets are studied and long-term historical relationships between equities and fixed income are analyzed to 
ensure that they are consistent with the widely accepted capital market principle that assets witb higher volatility generate greater return over the 
long run. Current market factors such as inflation and interest rates are evaluated before long-term capital market assumptions are determined. 
Peer data and historical returns are reviewed to check for reasonability and appropriateness. 

The most important component of an investment strategy is the portfolio asset mix, or the allocation between the various classes of securities 
available to the pension plan for investment purposes. The asset mix and acceptable minimum and maximum ranges established for the 
postretirement welfare plan assets represents a long-term view and are listed in the following table. 

In 2012, a dynamic asset allocation policy for the pension fund was approved. Tbis policy calls for a gradual reduction in the allocation to return­
seeking assets (equities, real estate, private equity and hedge funds) and a corresponding increase in the allocation to liability-hedging assets 
(fixed income) as the funded status of the plans increase above 90% (as measured by the Projected Benefit Obligations of the qualified pension 
plans divided by the market value of qualified pension plan assets). The asset mix and acceptable minimum and maximum ranges established by 
the policy for the pension fund at the pension plans funded status on December 31, 2012 are as follows: 
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Asset Mix Policy of Funds: 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan Postretirement Welfare Plan 

Asset Category Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum 

Domestic Equities 25% 45% 35% 55% 

International Equities 15% 25% 15% 25% 

Fixed Income 23% 37% 20% 50% 

Real Estate/Private Equity/Hedge Funds 0% 15% 0% 0% 

Short' Term InvestmenlS 0"/o 10% 0% 10% 

Pension Plan and Postretirement Plan Asset Mix at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 : 

Postretirement 
Defmed Benefit Welfare Plan 

(in millions) Pension Assets 12/31/2012 Assets 12/31/2012 

Asset Class Asset Value % ofT otal Assets Asset Value % of Total Assets 

Domestic Equities $ 809.0 37.4% $ 171.0 45.3% 

International Equities 453.3 21.0% 72.9 19.3% 

Fixed Income"' 662.6 132.2 

Real Estate/Private Equity/Hedge Funds 222.4 

Cash/Other 0.4% 

Total 100.0% 

Postretirement 
Defined Benefit Welfare Plan 

(in millions) Pension Assets 12/31/2011 Assets 12/31/2011 

Asset Class Asset Value % ofT otal Assets Asset Value 0/o of Total Assets 

Domestic Equities $ 788.6 37.8% $ 149.7 45.4% 

International Equities 427.3 20.5% 60.0 18.2% 

Fixed Income 618.7· 29.6%E ll7.1 35.5% 

Real Estate/Private Equity/Hedge Funds 219.8 10.5% 

Cash/Other 33.4 1.6% 3.0 0.9% 

Total $ 2,087.8 100.0% $ 329.8 100.0% 

The categorization of investments into the asset classes in the table above are based on definitions established by the NiSource Benefits 
Committee. As of December 31, 2012 , $814.4 million of defined benefit pension assets and $23.7 million of other postretirement benefit assets 
included in international equities, domestic equities or fixed income asset classes in the table above would be considered alternative investments, 
as that term is defmed by the AICPA, in addition to those investments in the real estate/private equity/hedge funds asset class. As of 
December 31, 2011 , $670.2 million of defined benefit pension assets and $21.3 million of other postretirement benefit assets included in 
international equities, domestic equities or fixed income asset classes in the table above would be considered alternative investments, in addition 
to those investments in the real estate/private equity/hedge funds asset class. Alternative investments are defined by the AICPA practice aid, 
Alternative Investments-Audit Considerations, as investments not listed on national exchanges or over-the-counter markets, or for which quoted 
market prices are not available from sources such as financial publications or the exchanges. 

Fair Value Measurements. The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Master Trust and OPEB investment assets 
at fair value as of December 31, 2012 and 20 I I . Assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. Total Master Trust and OPEB investment assets at fair 
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value classified within Level 3 were $326.7 million and $326.8 million as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 20 II , respectively. Such 
amounts were approximately 13% and 14% of the Master Trust and OPEB's total investments as reported on the statement of net assets available 
for benefits at fair value as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. 

Valuation Techniques Used to Detennine Fair Value: 

Level 1 Measurements 

Most common and preferred stock are traded in active markets on national and international securities exchanges and are valued at closing 
prices on the last business day of each period presented. Cash is stated at cost which approximates their fair value, with the exception of 
cash held in foreign currencies which fluctuates with changes in the exchange rates. Government bonds, short-term bills and notes are 
priced based on quoted market values. 

Level 2 Measurements 

Most U.S. Government Agency obligations, mortgage/asset-backed securities, and corporate fixed income securities are generally valued 
by benchmarking model-derived prices to quoted market prices and trade data for identical or comparable securities. To the extent that 
quoted prices are not available, fair value is detennined based on a valuation model that includes inputs such as interest rate yield curves 
and credit spreads. Securities traded in markets that are not considered active are valued based on quoted market prices, broker or dealer 
quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Other fixed income includes futures and options 
which are priced on bid valuation or settlement pricing. 

Commingled funds that hold underlying investments that have prices which are derived from the quoted prices in active markets are 
classified as Level 2. The funds' underlying assets are principally marketable equity and fixed income securities. Units held in commingled 
funds are valued at the unit value as reported by the investment managers. The fair value of the investments in commingled funds has been 
estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments. 

Level 3 Measurements 

Commingled funds that hold underlying investments that have prices which are not derived from the quoted prices in active markets are 
classified as Level3. The respective fair values of these investments are determined by reference to the funds' underlying assets, which are 
principally marketable equity and fixed income securities. Units held in commingled funds are valued at the unit value as reported by the 
investment managers. These investments are often valued by investment managers on a periodic basis using pricing models that use 
market, income, and cost valuation methods. 

The hedge funds of funds invest in several strategies including fundamental long/short, relative value, and event driven. Hedge fund of 
fund investments may be redeemed annually, usually with 100 days' notice. Private equity investment strategies include buy-out, venture 
capital, growth equity, distressed debt, and mezzanine debt. Private equity investments are held through limited partnerships. 

Limited partnerships are valued at estimated fair market value based on their proportionate share of the partnership's fair value as recorded 
in the partnerships' audited financial statements. Partnership interests represent ownership interests in private equity funds and real estate 
funds. Real estate partnerships invest in natural resources, commercial real estate and distressed real estate. The fair value of these 
investments is determined by reference to the funds' underlying assets, which are principally securities, private businesses, and real estate 
properties. The value of interests held in limited partnerships, other than securities, is determined by the general partner, based upon third­
party appraisals of the underlying assets, which include inputs such as cost, operating results, discounted cash flows and market based 
comparable data. Private equity and real estate limited partnerships typically call capital over a 3 to 5 year period and pay out distributions 
as the underlying investments are liquidated. The typical expected life of these limited partnerships is I 0-15 years and these investments 
typically cannot be redeemed prior to liquidation. 

For the year ended December 31, 2012, there were no significant changes to valuation techniques to determine the fair value of NiSource's 
pension and other postretirement benefits' assets. 

100 



Table of Contents 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued) 

N I S OURCE I NC. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31,2012: 

Quoted Prices in Active 
Significant Other Significant 

Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable 
(in millions) December 31, 20 12 Assets (Level I) (Level2) Inputs (Level3) 

Pension plan assets: 

Cash $ 6.1 $ 6.1 $ $ 

Equity securities 

U.S. equities 530.9 528.7 2.2 

International equities 1.47.8 146.6 1.2 

Fixed income securities 

Government 119.8 51.9 0..4 

Corporate 105.4 105.4 

Mortgages/ Asset backed securities 109.3 109.1 0.2 

Other fixed income 0.8 0.8 

Commingled funds 

Short-term money markets 59.7 59.7 

U.S. equities 232.7 

International equities 298.8 298.8 

Fixed income 282.9 178.3 104.6 

Hedge fund of funds 

Multi-strategy <'> 52.5 52.5 

Equities-market neutral c2l 31.5 31.5 

Private equity limited partnerships 

U.S. multi-strategy"' 62.3 62.3 

International multi-strategy "' 43.4 43.4 

Distressed opportunities 1 1.5 11.5 

Realesta!.e 20.3 20.3 

Pension plan assets subtotal 2,168.0 801.2 1,040.1 326.7 

Other poStretli:~l!i'~jlt benefit plan assets: '':·iiji:tB,~ -· 
Commingled funds 

Short-term iffii"litey markets 0.7 

U.S. equities 23.7 23.7 

Mutual funds 

U.S. equities 146.6 146.6 

Intemational•equities 74.4 74..4 

Fixed income 132.2 132.2 

Other postretii"!,\i!:lejjt benefit plan assets subtotal 377.6 353.2 24.4 

Due to brokers, net (Sl (10.5) 

Accrued investment income/dividends 3.3 

Receivables/payables 0.2 

Total pension and other post-retirement benefit 
plan assets $ 2,538.6 $ 1,154.4 $ 1,064.5 $ 326.7 

<O This class includes hedge fund of funds that invest in a diverse portfolio of strategies including relative value, event driven and long/short 
equities. 
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<1lThis class includes hedge fund of funds that invest in long/short equities, which in total maintain a relatively net market neutral position. 
'"Tills class includes limited partnerships/fund of funds that invest in a diverse portfolio of private equity strategies, including buy-outs, venture 
capital, growth capital, special situations and secondary markets, primarily inside the United States. 
'''This class includes limited partnerships/fund of funds that invest in diverse portfolio of private equity strategies, including buy-outs, venture 
capital, growth capital, special situations and secondary markets, primarily outside the United States. 
<sJThis class represents pending trades with brokers. 

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Plan's Level 3 assets for the year ended December 31, 2012 : 

Total gains or Transfers 
Balance at losses (unrealized into/( out of) Balance at 

January 1, 2012 I realized) Pw-chases (Sales) level3 December 31, 2012 

Fixed income securities 

Government $ 0.5 $ $ $ (0.1) $ $ 0.4 

Mortgages/Asset backed securities 1.2 0.2 (1.2) 0.2 

Other fixed income 0.1 (0.1) 

Commingled funds 

Fixed income 105.4 7.1 3.1 (11.0) 104.6 

Hedge fund cif funds 

Multi-strategy 49.4 3.1 52.5 

~~~~'~l~eutral 33.Q. __ ... (I~} 3].5-

Private equity limited partnerships 

U.S. multi-strategy 61.1 (2.2) 9.5 (6.1) 62.3 

International multi-strategy 42.5 (3.0) 4.8 (0.9) 43.4 

Distressed opporq.mities 12.7 (0.7) 1.3 (1.8) 11.5 

Real estate 20.9 !.5 0.6 (2.7) 20.3 

Total $ 326.8 $ 4.$. s. 19.3 $ (22.7) $, (1.2) $ 326.7 
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 : 

Quoted Prices in Active 
Significant Otber Significant 

December 31, Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable 
(in millions) 2011 Assets (Level l ) (Level2) Inputs (Level3) 

Pension plan assets: 

Cash $ 10.4 $ 10.4 $ $ 

Equity securities 

U.S. equities 63!.0 630.9 0.1 

International equities 144.0 143;0 1.0 

Fixed income securities 

Government 133.5 91.2 41.8 0.5 

Corporate 10!.7 10!.7 

Mortgages/ Asset backed securities ll5.6 114.4 1.2 

Other fixed income 0.4 0.3 0. I 

Commingled funds 

Short-term money markets 66.5 66.5 

U.S. equities 125.8 125.8 

International equities 278.5 278.5 

Fixed income 265.8 160.4 105.4 

Hedge fund of funds 

Multi-strategy <•> 49.4 49.4 
Equities-market neutral (2) 33.0 33.0 

Private equity limited partnerships 

U.S. multi-strategy'" 61.! 61.! 

lntemational multi-strategy <•> 42.5 42.5 

Distressed opportunities 12.7 12.7 

Real EstRte 20.9 20.9 

Pension plan assets subtotal 2,092.8 875.5 890.5 326.8 

@l.~dl!l~lf~eni~ll.t benefit plan assets: 

Commingled funds 
':Sii&it~~:fu'9;;~y·IDal"kets 2.9 2.9 

U.S. equities 21.3 21.3 

Mufuiil funds'E 
U.S. equities 127.4 127.4 

IJ!!eiriirtliill.alequities 6L8 61.8 

Fixed income 116.4 116.4 

Otbefposij-ei:if~niell.t benefit plan assets subtotal 329.8 305.6 24.2 

Due to brokers, net ts) (38.7) 

Accmcid invesun<lnt ifii':Oineldividends 3.7 

Receivables/payables 30.0 

Total pension and otber post-retirement benefit plait 
assets $ $ 1,181.1 $ 914.7 $ 326.8 

'"This class includes hedge fund of funds tbat invest in a diverse portfolio of strategies including relative value, event driven and 
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long/short equities. 
<2lTbis class includes hedge fund of funds that invest in long/short equities, which in total maintain a relatively net market neutral position. 
01 This class includes limited partnerships/fund of funds that invest in a diverse portfolio of private equity strategies, including buy-outs, venture 
capital, growth capital, special situations and secondary markets, primarily in the United States. 
i4> This class includes limited partnerships/fund of funds that invest in a diverse portfolio of private equity strategies, including buy-outs, venture 
capital, growth capital, special situations and secondary markets, primarily outside the United States. 

(
5
) This class represents pending trades with brokers. 

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Plan's Level 3 assets for the year ended December 31, 2011 : 

Total gains or Transfers Balance at 
Balance at losses (unrealized into/( out of) December 31, 

January 1, 2011 J realized) Purchases (Sales) level3 2011 

Equity securities 

U.S. equities $ 0.1 $ $ $ $ (0.1) $ 

Fixed income securities 

Government 0.6 (0.1) 0.5 

Corporate (0.5) 0.1 

Mortgages/ Asset backed securities 0.5 (0.2) 0.5 0.4 1.2 

Other fixed incOme 0.5 (0.9) 0.1 

Commingled funds 

Fixed income 2.0 (7.9) 105.4 

Hedge fund of funds 

MJJ.1ti-s~~gy 49.0. 0.4 49A, 
Equities·market neutral 31.5 1.5 33.0 

Private equity limited partneiships 

U.S. multi-strategy 58.8 (4.6) 14.3 (7.4) 61.1 

Intemati<mal multj:-strategy 36.2 (1.2) 42.5 

Distress opportunities 9.3 (0.4) 4.5 (0.7) 12.7 

Real estate 15.8 !2.0 3,.[ 20.9 

Total $ 314.1 $ 0.4 $ 30.2 $ (18.2) $ 0.3 $ 326.8 
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NiSource Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans' Funded Status and Related Disclosure The following table provides a 
reconciliation of the plans' funded status and amounts reflected in NiSource's Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 based on a 
December 31 measurement date: 

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits 

(in millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011 

Cbange in projected benefit obligation m 

Benefit obligation a.t l:leginning .ofy~ s 2,560.7 s ..• .. 2,478,4 5 .786.3 s 7~6.Q 
Service cost 37.7 37.5 11.2 9.9 

Interest cost 112.8 119.5 37.5 

Plan participants' contributions 6.9 7.0 

Plan amendments 1.1 0.2 (2.0) (0.5) 

Actuarial loss 271.2 122.5 52.3 30.8 

Settlement loss 0.6 

Benefits paid (192.1) (197.4) (53.0) (56.4) 

Estimated benefits paid by incurred sub_sidy 0.9 0.9 

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 2,792.0 $ s 786.3 

Change ill plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 2,087.8 $ 1,900.0 $ 329.8 s 326.8 

Actual retum- on plan assets 261.6 (8,3) (1,7) 

Employer contributions 3.7 393.5 47.3 53.6 

-Plan participants' contributions 7.0. 

Benefits paid (192.1) (197.4) (53.0) (56.4) 

f~!f:raiu,~;()fplan llS&ei;S at end of year $ 2,161.0 $ 2,087.8 $ ~377.6 $ 329.8 

Funded Status at end of year $ (631.0) $ (472.9) $ (462.5) s (456.5) 

AmOUDts !fcogllized in tbe statement of 
financial position .coosist of: 

Noncurrent assets $ $ $ s 31.5 

Current liabilities (3.4) (3.3) (0.7) (21.1) 

Noncurrent liabilities (627.6) (469.6) (461.8) (466.9) 

Net amount rec~::#!:~d ~~~ar t2). 5 (631.0) !! $ (472.9) $<0 (462.5) ><<- s (456.5) 

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive 
in~::ome or regulatory asset/liability r.11 

Unrecognized transitic)~i~sSet obligation $ $ s 0.5 $ 1.7 

Unrecognized prior service cost (5.1) (6.0) (6.7) (4.3) 

Unrecognized actuarial loss 1,205.2 1,113.6 215.3 192.2 

$ 1,200.1 $ 1,107.6 $ 209.1 $ 189.6 

m The change in benefit obligation for Pension Benefits represents the change in Projected Benefit Obligation while the change in benefit obligation for Other Postretirement 
Benefits represents the change in Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation. 

121 NiSource recognizes in its Consolidated Balance Sheets the underfunded and overfunded status of its various defmed benefit postretirement plans, measured as the difference 
between the fair value of the plan assets and the benefit obligation. 

01 NiSource determined that for certain rate-regulated subsidiaries the future recovery of pension and other postretirement benefits costs is probable. These rate-regulated subsidlaries 
recorded regulatory assets and liabilities of $1,345.7 million and $0.4 million, respectively, as of December3J. 2012, and $1,244.2 million and zero, respectively. as of 
December 31, 20 II that would otherwise have been recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). 

NiSource's accumulated benefit obligation for its pension plans was $2,771.6 million and $2,523.5 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , 
respectively. The accumulated benefit obligation as of a date is the actuarial present value of benefits attributed by the pension benefit fommla to 
employee service rendered prior to that date and based on current and past compensation levels. The accwnulated benefit obligation differs from 
the projected benefit obligation disclosed in the table above in that it includes no assumptions about future compensation levels. 

NiSource pension plans were underfunded by $631.0 million at December 31, 2012 compared to being underfunded at December 31, 20 II by 



$472.9 million . The decline in funded status was due primarily to a decrease in discount rate from the prior measurement 
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date and reduced employer contributions in 2012 , partially offset by favorable asset returns in 2012 . NiSource contributed $3.7 million and 
$393.5 million to its pension plans in 2012 and 201 I , respectively. 

NiSource's funded status for its other postretirement benefit plans declined by $6.0 million to an underfunded status of$462.5 million primarily 
due to a decrease in discount mte, partially offset by favorable asset returns in 2012 . NiSource contributed approximately $47.3 million and 
$53.6 million to its other postretirement benefit plans in 2012 and 2011 , respectively. No amounts ofNiSource's pension or other postretirement 
plans' assets are expected to be returned to NiSource or any of its subsidiaries in 2013. 

In 2012, a NiSource pension plan had year to date payouts exceeding the plan's 2012 service cost plus interest cost and therefore meeting the 
requirement for settlement accounting. A one-time settlement charge of$1.9 million was recorded during the third quarter of2012. As a result of 
the settlement, the pension plan was remeasured resulting in an increase to the pension benefit obligation, net of plan assets, of$3.0 million and 
net increases to regulatory assets and accumulated other comprehensive income of $1.0 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Net periodic 
pension benefit cost for 2012 was decreased by $0.1 million as a result of the remeasurement. 

A provision of the 2010 Health Care Act requires the elimination, effective January I, 2011, oflifetime and restrictive annual benefit limits from 
certain active medical plans. The NiSource Consolidated Flex Medical Plan (the "Consolidated Flex Plan"), a component welfare benefit plan of 
the NiSource Life and Medical Benefits Program. covered both active and retired employees and capped lifetime benefits to certain retirees. 
NiSource examined the provisions of the 2010 Health Care Act and determined the enactment of the law in the first quarter of 20 I 0 qualified as 
a significant event requiring remeasurement of other postretirement benefit obligations and plan assets as of March 31, 20 I 0. Effective 
September I, 2010, NiSource amended the Consolidated Flex Plan and established the NiSource Post-65 Retiree Medical Plan (the "Post-65 
Retiree Plan") as a separate ERISA plan. In accordance with the amendment of the Consolidated Flex Plan and the establishment of the Post-65 
Retiree Plan, Medicare supplement plan options for NiSource post-age 65 retirees and their eligible post-age 65 dependents are now offered 
under the Post-65 Retiree Plan, a retiree-only plan, and not under the Consolidated Flex Plan. The Post-65 Retiree Plan is not subject to the 
provisions of the 2010 Health Care Act requiring elimination of lifetime and restrictive annual benefit limits. The amendment of the 
Consolidated Flex Plan and the establishment of the Post-65 Retiree Plan required a second remeasurement of other postretirement benefit 
obligations and plan assets as of September I, 2010. The effect of the change in the legislation and the plan amendment resulted in an increase to 
the other postretirement benefit obligation, net of plan assets, of $3 I .0 million and corresponding increases to regulatory assets and AOCI of 
$29.4 million and $1.6 million , respectively. Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2010 was also increased by approximately $2.2 
million , of which $1.3 million was recognized during the second quarter of 2010 and $0.9 million was recognized during the third quarter of 
2010. 

The following table provides the key assumptions that were used to calculate the pension and other postretirement benefits obligations for 
NiSource's various plans as of December 31: 

Weighted-average .issumpf\ons'toDeteMnine Benefit 
Obligation ·············································· · 

Discount Rate 

Rate of Compensatiori'lncreases' 
Health Care Trend Rates 

Trend for Next Yeilt mlli::ll:illllli::llllli::lilli'i!ll 
Ultimate Trend 

Year Ultimate Trend Reached 

Pension Benefits 

2012 2011 

3.63% 

4.00% 

106 

Other Postretirement Benefits 

2012 2011 

4.600/o 3.95% 4.88% 

4.000.4 

7.2.5%' :;(Wlo 
5.00% 5.000/o 

2018 2017 
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Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percentage-point change 
in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects: 

(in millions) 

Effect on service and interest compone-nts of net periOdiC"cOSt 

Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 

1% point increase 

$ 4.5 $ 

67.9 

1% point 
decrease 

(3.6) 

(56.7) 

NiSource expects to make contributions of approximately $11.3 million to its pension plans and approximately $40.4 million to its 
postretirement medical and life plans in 2013. 

The following table provides benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five fiscal years, and in the aggregate for the five fiscal years 
thereafter. The expected benefits are estimated based on the same assumptions used to measure NiSource's benefit obligation at the end of the 
year and includes benefits attributable to the estimated future service of employees: 

(in millions) 

Yea.t(s) 

2013 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018-2022 

Pension Benefits 

$ 229.6 $ 

. 229.9 

224.7 

232.0 

231.4 

1,050.3" 

Other 
Postretirement Federal 

Benefits Subsidy Receipts 

51.8 $ 1.5 

·M2.9 1.7 

53.9 1.9 

54.9 2.0 

55.6 2.0 

9.1 

The following table provides the components of the plans' net periodic benefits cost for each of the three years: 

(in millions) 

Componen~' of Net Periodic 
(Income) 

Service cost 
irt!er&i cost 
Expected return on assets 
Amortization of transitional obligation 

Amortization of prior service cost 
Recognized actuarial loss 

Net Periodic Benefit Costs 

Additional loss recognized due to: 

Settlement loss 

Total Net Periodic Benefi~ Cost 

$ 

$ 

Pension Benefits 

37.7 $ 

112.8 

(164.6) 

0.2 

81.2 

67.3 

1.9 

69.2 $ 

37.5 $ 

119.5 

(167.0) 

0.2 

55.7 

45.9 

45.9 $ 

2010 

39.2 $ 

125.7 

(143.7) 

2.0 

57.8 

81.0 

1.3 

82.3 $ 

2012 

Other Postretirement 
Benefits 

2011 

9.9 $ 9.8 11.2 $ 

37.5 

(26.7) 

···· 38.6 :um::::mi'l<fi'a 

1.2 
0.3 

9.4 
32.9 

32.9 $ 

(26.6) 

1.2 

(0.5) 

6.6 

29.2 

29.2 $ 

(23.8) 

1.3 

1.1 

6.7 

36.5 

36.5 

NiSource recognized cost of$69.2 million for its pension plans in 2012 compared to cost of$45.9 million in 2011 due primarily to a decrease in 
the discount rate in 2012 compared to 2011 and unfavorable returns on plan assets experienced in 201 I . For its other postretirement benefit 
plans, NiSource recognized $32.9 million in cost in 2012 compared to $29.2 million in cost in 2011 due primarily to a decrease in the discount 
rate in 2012 compared to 2011 and unfavorable returns on plan assets experienced in 2011 . For 2012 and 2011 , pension and other 
postretirement benefit cost of approximately $25.1 million and $58.3 million , 

107 



Table of Contents 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA I continued) 

N IS OURCE I NC. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

respectively, was capitalized as a component of plant or recognized as a regulatory asset or liability consistent with regulatory orders for certain 
ofNiSource's regulated businesses. 

The following table provides the key assumptions that were used to calculate the net periodic benefits cost for NiSource's various plans: 

Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 

Weighted-average Assumptions to Determine 
Net Periodic Benefit Cost 

Discount Rate 4.60% 5.00% 5.54% 4.88% 5.29% 5.86% 

Expected Long-Term Rate of Return on Plan 
Assets 8.30% 8.75o/o 8.75% 8.13% 8.75% 8.75% 

Rate of Compensation Increases 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

NiSource believes it is appropriate to assume an 8.30% rate of return on pension plan assets for its calculation of 2012 pension benefits cost. 
This is primarily based on asset mix and historical rates of return. 

The following table provides other changes in plan assets and projected benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income or 
regulatory asset or liability: 

Other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

(in millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011 

Other Cbangeslli Plan Assets and Projected Benefit ObUgatlons Recognized lli 
Other Comprehensive Income or Regulatory Asset or Liability 

Settlements $ (1.9) $ $ $ 

Net prior service cost/( credit) 1.1 0.2 (2.1) (0.5) 

Net actuarial loss 174.7 297.9 58.7 

Less: amortization oftnmsitional (asset)/obligation (1.3) 

Less: amortization of prior service cost (0.2) 0.5 

Less: amortization of net actuanal (gain) loss (55.7) (6.6) 

Total Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or Regulatory Asset or 
Liability $ 92.5 $ 242.2 $ 19.5 $ 50.8 

Amount Recognized in Net Periodic Benefits Cost and Other Comprehensive 
Income or Regulatory Asset or Liability s 161.7 $ 288.1 $ 52.4 $ 80.0 

Based on a December 31 measurement date, the net unrecognized actuarial loss, unrecognized prior service cost (credit), and unrecognized 
transition obligation that will be amortized into net periodic benefit cost during 2013 for the pension plans are $84.1 million, $0.3 million and 
zero , respectively, and for other postretirement benefit plans are $11.0 million , $(0. 7) million and $0.5 million , respectively. 

13. Authorized Classes of Cumulative Preferred and Preference Stocks 

NiSource has 20,000,000 authorized shares of Preferred Stock with a $0.01 par value, of which 4,000,000 shares are designated Series A Junior 
Participating Preferred Shares. 

The authorized classes of par value and no par value cumulative preferred and preference stocks of Northern Indiana are as follows: 2,400,000 
shares of Cumulative Preferred with a $100 par value; 3,000,000 shares of Cumulative Preferred with no par value; 
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2,000,000 shares of Cumulative Preference with a $50 par value; and 3,000,000 shares of Cumulative Preference with no par value. 

As of December 31, 2012 , NiSource and Northern Indiana had no preferred shares outstanding. All of NiSource's retained earnings at 
December 31, 2012 are free of restrictions. 

14. Common Stock 

As of December 31, 2012, NiSource had 400,000,000 authorized shares of common stock with a $0.01 par value. 

Common Stock Dividend. Holders of shares ofNiSource's common stock are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by the Board 
out of funds legally available. The policy of the Board has been to declare cash dividends on a quarterly basis payable on or about the 20th day 
of February, May, August and November. NiSource has paid quarterly common dividends totaling $0.94 , $0.92 and $0.92 per share for the 
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Board, at its meeting on January 25, 2013, declared a quarterly common 
dividend of$0.24 per share, payable on February 20,2013 to holders of record on February 4, 2013. NiSource has certain debt covenants which 
could potentially limit the amount of dividends the Company could pay in order to maintain compliance with these covenants. Refer to Note 16, 
" Long-Tenn Debt," for more information. As of December 31, 2012, these covenants did not restrict the amount of dividends that were 
available to be paid. There are no other effective limitations with respect to the Company's ability to pay dividends. 

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. NiSource offers a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan which allows participants 
to reinvest dividends and make voluntary cash payments to purchase additional shares of common stock on the open market. 

Forward Agreements. On September 14, 2010, NiSource and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, as forward seller, closed an underwritten 
registered public offering of 24,265,000 shares of NiSource's common stock All of the shares sold were borrowed and delivered to the 
underwriters by the forward seller. ln connection with the public offering, NiSource entered into forward sale agreements ("Forward 
Agreements") with an affiliate of the forward seller covering an aggregate of24,265,000 shares ofNiSource's common stock. On September 10, 
2012, NiSource settled the Forward Agreements by physically delivering the 24,265,000 shares ofNiSource common stock and receiving cash 
proceeds of $339.1 million. Cash proceeds related to the settlement of the Forward Agreements are recorded in the issuance of common stock 
line in the financing activities section of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the period ended December 31, 2012 . Additionally, refer 
to Note 1-M, "Earnings Per Share," for information regarding the dilutive impact to EPS of the Forward Agreements. 

15. Share-Based Compensation 

The stockholders approved and adopted the NiSource lnc. 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "Omnibus Plan"), at the Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders held on May 11, 2010. The Omnibus Plan provides for awards to employees and non-employee directors of incentive and 
nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights~ restricted stock and restricted stock units, performance shares, perfonnance units, cash­
based awards and other stock-based awards. The Omnibus Plan provides that the number of shares of common stock of NiSource available for 
awards is 8,000,000 plus the number of shares subject to outstanding awards granted under either the 1994 Plan or the Director Plan (described 
below) that expire or terminate for any reason. No further awards are permitted to be granted under the prior 1994 Plan or the Director Plan. At 
December 31, 2012, there were 7,359,009 shares reserved for future awards under the Omnibus Plan. 

Prior to May 11, 2010, NiSource issued long-term equity incentive grants to key management employees under a long-term incentive plan 
approved by stockholders on Aprill3, 1994 ("1994 Plan"). The types of equity awards previously authorized under the 1994 Plan did not 
significantly differ from those permitted under the Omnibus Plan. 

NiSource recogrtized stock-based employee compensation expense of$17.8 million, $13.4 million and $11.2 million during 2012,2011 and 
2010, respectively, as well as related tax benefits of$6.1 million, $4.7 million and $3.7 million, respectively. 

As of December 31,2012, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested awards amounted to $17.6 million, which 
will be amortized over the weighted-average remaining requisite service period of 1.9 years. 
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Stock Options. Option grants may be awarded with an exercise price equal to the average of the high and low market price on the day of the 
grant. As of December 31, 2012 , the weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding and exercisable was 1.5 years. 
Stock option transactions for the year ended December 31, 2012 were as follows: 

Ootstandingat December 31, 2011 

Granted 

Exercised 

Cancelled 

Ontstanding at December 31, 2012 
Exercisable at December 31, 2012 

Options 

2,818,715 

(1,253,529) 

(6,750) 

1,558,436 

1,558,436 

Weighted Average 
Option Price($) 

.. 22.;09 

21.93 

23.73 

22.21' 

22.21 

No options were granted during the years ended December 31,2012,2011 and 2010. As of December 31,2012, the aggregate intrinsic value 
for the options outstanding and exercisable was $4.2 million . During 2012 and 2011 , cash received from the exercise of options was $27.5 
million and $8.8 million, respectively. No options were exercised during 2010. 

Restricted Stock Units and Restricted Stock .In 2012, NiSource granted restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock of226,431, subject 
to service conditions. The total grant date fair value of the shares of restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock was $5.1 million, based 
on the average market price ofNiSource's common stock at the date of each grant less the present value of any dividends not received during the 
vesting period, which will be expensed, net of forfeitures, over the vesting period which is generally three years. As of December 31, 2012 , 
211,431 nonvested (all of which are expected to vest) restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock were granted and outstanding for the 
2012 award. 

In 2011 , NiSource granted restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock of 142,593 , subject to service conditions. The total grant date fair 
value of the restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock was $2.4 million • based on the average market price of NiSource's common 
stock at the date of each grant less the present value of dividends not received during the vesting period, which will be expensed, net of 
forfeitures, over the vesting period which is generally three years. As of December 31, 2012 , 125,833 nonvested (all of which are expected to 
vest) restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock were granted and outstanding for the 20 II award. 

In 2010, NiSource granted restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock of265,134, subject to service conditions. The total grant date fair 
value of the restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock was $3.5 million • based on the average market price of NiSource's common 
stock at the date of each grant less the present value of dividends not received during the vesting period, which will be expensed, net of 
forfeitures, over the vesting period which is generally three years. As of December 31, 2012 , 216,981 nonvested (all of which are expected to 
vest) restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock were granted and outstandiog for the 2010 award. 

If the employee terminates employment before the service conditions lapse under the 2010, 2011 and 2012 awards due to (I) Retirement or 
Disability (as defined io the award agreement), or (2) death, the service conditions will lapse on the date of such termination with respect to a pro 
rata portion of the restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock. In the event of a Change-in-Control (as defined io the award agreement), 
all unvested shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units will immediately vest. Termination due to any other reason wi11 result in all 
restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock awarded being forfeited effective on the employee's date of termination. 

Norivested atDecember 31; 2011 

Granted 

Vested 

Nony.;8te<l'l.nlt\o.tpei:ted to vest at December 31, 21112 

110 

Restricted Stock 
Units 

654,554 

226,431 

(30,399) 
(293,341) 

557,245 

Weighted Average 
Grant Date Fair 

Value($) 

11.61 

22.69 

17.40 

8.21 

17.58 
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Performance Shares. ln 20!2, NiSource granted 772,!28 performance shares subject to performance conditions. The grant date fair-value of 
the awards was $16.0 million. based on the average market price ofNiSource's common stock at the date of each grant less the present value of 
dividends not received during the vesting period which will be expensed, net of forfeitures, over the three year requisite service period. The 
performance conditions are based on achievement of certain non-GAAP financial measures: cumulative net operating earnings, that NiSource 
defines as income from continuing operations adjusted for certain items; and cumulative funds from operations that NiSource defines as net 
operating cash flows provided by continuing operations; and relative total shareholder return, a non-GAAP market measure that NiSource 
defines as the annualized growth in the dividends and share price of a share of NiSource's common stock (calculated using a 20 trading day 
average ofNiSource's closing price beginning December 3!, 20ll and ending on December 3!, 20!4) compared to the total shareholder return 
performance of a predetermined peer group of companies. The service conditions lapse on January 30, 2015 when the shares vest provided the 
performance criteria are satisfied. As of December 31, 20!2 , 765,7!0 nonvested performance shares were granted and outstanding of the 20!2 
award. 

ln 2011, NiSource granted 749,237 performance shares subject to performance conditions. The grant date fair-value of the awards was $12.0 
million , based on the average market price of NiSource's common stock at the date of each grant less the present value of dividends not 
received during the vesting period which will be expensed, net of forfeitures, over the three year requisite service period. The performance 
conditions are based on achievement of non-GAAP financial measures: cumulative net operating earnings, that NiSource defines as income from 
continuing operations adjusted for certain items; cumulative funds from operations that NiSource defines as net operating cash flows provided 
by continuing operations; and total debt that NiSource defines as total debt adjusted for significant movement in natural gas prices and other 
adjustments determined by the Board. The service conditions lapse on January 3!, 2014 when the shares vest provided the performance criteria 
are satisfied. As of December 31, 20!2, 662,361 nonvested performance shares were granted and outstanding for the 20ll award. 

In 20!0, NiSource granted 662,969 contingent stock units subject to performance conditions. The grant date fair-value of the awards was $8.6 
million , based on the average market price of NiSource's common stock at the date of each grant less the present value of dividends not 
received during the vesting period which will be expensed, net of forfeitures, over the three year requisite service period. The performance 
conditions are based on achievement of non-GAAP fmancial measures: cumulative net operating earnings, that NiSource defines as income from 
continuing operations adjusted for certain items; cwnulative funds from operations that NiSource defines as net operating cash flows provided 
by continuing operations; and total debt that NiSource defines as total debt adjusted for significant movement in natural gas prices and other 
adjustments determined by the Board. The service conditions lapse on January 3!, 2013 when l 00% of the shares vest provided the performance 
criteria is satisfied. As of December 3!, 20!2 , 57!,345 nonvested contingent stock units were granted and outstanding for the 20! 0 award. 

If the employee terminates employment before the service conditions lapse under the 20!0, 20ll and 20!2 awards due to (l) Retirement or 
Disability (as defined in the award agreement), or (2) death, the service conditions will lapse on the date of such termination with respect to a pro 
rata portion of the shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units. ln the event of a Change-in-Control (as defmed in the award agreement), 
all unvested shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units will immediately vest. Termination due to any other reason will result in all 
shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units awarded being forfeited effective on the employee's date of termination. 

N onvested at December 31, 2011 

Granted 

Forfeited' 

Vested 

Nonvested and expected to vest at Deeember 31, 2012 

Contingent 
Awards 

2,068,120 

772,!28 

(322,199) 

(5!8,633) 

1,999,416 

Weighted Average 
Grant Date Fair 

Value($) 

11,98 

20.70 

7.56 

16.99 

Non-employee Director Awards. As of May ll, 20!0, awards to non-employee directors may be made only under the Omnibus Plan. Currently, 
restricted stock units are granted annually to non-employee directors, subject to a non-employee director's election to defer receipt of such 
restricted stock unit award. The non-employee director's restricted stock units vest on the last day of the non-employee director's annual term 
corresponding to the year the restricted stock Wlits were awarded subject to special pro-rata vesting rules in the event of Retirement or Disability 
(as defined in the award agreement), or death. The vested restricted stock 
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units are payable as soon as practicable following vesting except as otherwise provided pursuant to the non-employee director's election to defer. 
As of December 31, 2012 , 139,0 II restricted stock units are outstanding to non-employee directors under the Omnibus Plan. 

Only restricted stock units remain outstanding under the prior plan for non-employee directors, the Amended and Restated Non-employee 
Director Stock Incentive Plan (the "Director Plan"). All such awards are fully vested and shall be distributed to the directors upon their 
separation from the Board. As of December 31, 2012 , 193,366 restricted stock units remain outstanding onder the Director Plan and as noted 
above no further shares may be awarded under the Director Plan. 

40l(k) Match, Profit Sharing and Company Contribution. NiSource has a voluntary 40l(k) savings plan covering eligible employees that 
allows for periodic discretionary matches as a percentage of each participant's contributions in newly issued shares of common stock. NiSource 
also has a retirement savings plan that provides for discretionary profit sharing contributions of shares of common stock to eligible employees 
based on earnings results; and eligible exempt employees hired after January I, 2010, receive a non-elective company contribution of tbree 
percent of eligible pay in shares of common stock. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, NiSource recognized 40l(k) match, 
profit sharing and non-elective contribution expense of$27.3 million, $25.9 million and $19.7 million, respectively. 

16. Long-Term Debt 

NiSource Finance is a 100% owned, consolidated fmance subsidiary of NiSource that engages in financing activities to raise funds for the 
business operations of NiSource and its subsidiaries. NiSource Finance was incorporated in March 2000 under the laws of the state of Indiana. 
Prior to 2000, the function of NiSource Finance was performed by Capital Markets. NiSource Finance obligations are fully and unconditionally 
guaranteed by NiSource. Consequently no separate financial statements for NiSource Finance are required to be reported. No other NiSource 
subsidiaries guarantee debt. 

On November 28, 2012, NiSource Finance redeemed $315.0 million of 5.21% private placement notes. 

On June 14, 2012, NiSource Finance issued $250.0 million of 3.85% senior unsecured notes that mature on February 15, 2023 and $500.0 
million of5.25% senior unsecured notes that mature on February 15,2043. 

On AprilS, 2012, NiSource Finance negotiated a $250.0 million three -year bank term loan with a syndicate of banks which matures on April3, 
2015 . Borrowings under the term loan have an effective cost ofLIBOR plus 137 basis points. 

On November 23, 2011, NiSource Finance issued $250.0 million of 4.45% senior unsecured notes that mature December I, 2021 and $250.0 
million of 5.80% senior unsecured notes that mature February 1, 2042 . 

On November 14, 2011, NiSource Finance commenced a cash tender offer for up to $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of its outstanding 
10.75% notes due 2016 and 6.15% notes due 2013 . A condition of the offering was that all validly tendered 2016 notes would be accepted for 
purchase before any 2013 notes were accepted. On December 13, 2011, NiSource Finance announced that approximately $125.3 million of the 
aggregate principal amount of its outstanding 10.75% notes due 2016 were validly tendered and accepted for purchase. In addition, 
approximately $228.7 million of the aggregate principal amount of outstanding 6.15% notes due 2013 were validly tendered, of which $124.7 
million were accepted for purchase. In accordance with the provisions of ASC 4 70, Debt, NiSource Finance determined the debt issued on 
November 23, 2011, was substantially different from the tendered notes, and therefore the transaction qualified as a debt extingnisbrnent. 
NiSource Finance recorded a $53.9 million loss on early extinguishment of long-term debt, primarily attributable to early redemption premiums 
and unamortized discounts and fees. 

During July 2011, Northern Indiana redeemed $18.7 million of its medium-term notes, with an average interest rate of7.30%. 

On June 10,2011, NiSource Finance issued $400.0 million of5.95% senior unsecured notes that mature June 15,2041 . 

On December 1, 2010, NiSource Finance commenced a cash tender offer for up to $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of its outstanding 
10.75% notes due 2016 and 6.80% notes due 2019. A condition of the offering was that all validly tendered 2016 notes would be accepted for 
purchase before any 2019 notes were accepted. On December 14,2010, NiSource Finance announced that approximately $272.9 million of the 
aggregate principal amount of its outstanding 10.75% notes due 2016 were validly tendered. Based upon the principal amount of the 2016 notes 
tendered, NiSource Finance increased the maximum aggregate principal amount of 2016 notes it would purchase from $250.0 million to $325.0 
million and terminated the portion of the tender 
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offer related to its 6.80% notes due 2019 . On December 30, 2010, NiSource Finance announced that $273.1 million of these notes were 
successfully tendered and accepted for purchase. In accordance with the provisions of ASC 470, Debt, NiSource Finance determined the debt 
issued on December 8, 20 I 0 was substantially different from the tendered notes, and therefore the transaction qualified as a debt extinguishment. 
NiSource Finance recorded a $96.7 million loss on early extinguishment of long-term debt, primarily attributable to early redemption premiums 
and unamortized discounts and fees. 

In the following table are the outstanding long-term debt sinking fund requirements and maturities at December 31, 2012 . The long-term debt 
maturities shown below include capital lease obligations and the debt of certain low-income housing real estate investments. NiSource does not 
guarantee the long-term debt obligations of the low-income housing real estate investments. 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

After 

Total'" 

"'This amount excludes $41.3 million of unamortized discount and premium. 

$ 

$ 

50712 

559.2 

495.0 
434.4 

603.0 
4,768.8 

7,367.6 

Unamortized debt expense, premium and discount on long-term debt applicable to outstanding bonds are being amortized over the life of such 
bonds. Reacquisition premiums have been deferred and are being amortized. These premiums are not earning a regulatory return during the 
recovery period. 

Of NiSource's long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2012, $109.0 million was issued by NiSource's subsidiary, Capital Markets. The 
financial obligations of Capital Markets are subject to a Support Agreement between NiSource and Capital Markets, under which NiSource has 
committed to make payments of interest and principal on Capital Markets' obligations in the event of a failure to pay by Capital Markets. Under 
the terms of the Support Agreement, in addition to the cash flow from cash dividends paid to NiSource by any of its consolidated subsidiaries, 
the assets ofNiSource, other than the stock and assets of Northern Indiana, are available as recourse for the benefit of Capital Markets' creditors. 
The carrying value ofthe NiSource assets, excluding the assets of Northern Indiana, was $15.9 billion at December 31, 2012 . 

NiSource Finance maintains $500.0 million notional value of interest rate swap agreements relating to its outstanding long-term debt. The effect 
of these agreements is to modify the interest rate characteristics of a portion of their respective long-term debt from fixed to variable. Refer to 
Note 9, "Risk Management and Energy Marketing Activities," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information 
regarding interest rate swaps. 

NiSource is subject to a financial covenant under its five-year revolving credit facility and its three-year term loan issued April 5, 2012, which 
requires NiSource to maintain a debt to capitalization ratio that does not exceed 70% . A similar covenant in a 2005 private placement note 
purchase agreement requires NiSource to maintain a debt to capitalization ratio that does not exceed 75%. As ofDecember31, 2012, the ratio 
was 59.3%. 

NiSource is also subject to certain other non-financial covenants under the revolving credit facility. Such covenants include a limitation on the 
creation or existence of new liens on NiSource's assets, generally exempting liens on utility assets, purchase money security interests, 
preexisting security interests and an additional subset of assets equal to $150 million . An asset sale covenant generally restricts the sale, lease 
and/or transfer ofNiSource's assets to no more than 10% of its consolidated total assets and dispositions for a price not materially less than the 
fair market value of the assets disposed of that do not impair the ability of NiSource and NiSource Finance to perform obligations under the 
revolving credit facility, and that, together with all other such dispositions, would not have a material adverse effect. The revolving credit facility 
also includes a cross-default provision, which triggers an event of default under the credit facility in the event of an uncured payment default 
relating to any indebtedness ofNiSource or any of its subsidiaries in a principal amount of$50 million or more. 

NiSource's indentures generally do not contain any financial maintenance covenants. However, NiSource's indentures are generally subject to 
cross default provisions ranging from uncured payment defaults of $5 million to $50 million , and limitations on the 
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incurrence of liens on NiSource's assets, general1y exempting liens on utility assets, purchase money security interests, preexisting security 
interests and an additional subset of assets capped at 10% of NiSource's consolidated net tangible assets. 

17. Short-Term Borrowings 

During June 20 II, NiSource Finance implemented a new commercial paper program with a program limit of up to $500.0 million with a dealer 
group comprised of Barclays, Citigroup, Credit Suisse and Wells Fargo. The program capacity was expanded to $1.5 billion with the addition of 
RBS as a fifth dealer on February 15, 2013. Commercial paper issuances are supported by available capacity under NiSource's $1.5 billion 
unsecured revolving credit facility, which expires in May 2017. At December 31, 2012, NiSource had $499.6 million of commercial paper 
outstanding. 

During May 2012, NiSource Finance amended its existing $1.5 billion revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks led by Barclays Capital 
extending the termination date to May 15, 2017 and also reducing the borrowing costs under the facility. The purpose of the facility is to fund 
ongoing working capital requirements including the provision of liquidity support for NiSource's commercia] paper program, provide for 
issuance of letters of credit, and also for general corporate purposes. At December 31, 2012 , NiSource had $44.0 million of borrowings 
outstanding under this facility. 

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , NiSource had $36.4 million and $37.5 million, respectively, of stand-by letters of credit outstanding, of 
which $18.3 million and $19.2 million, respectively, were under the revolving credit facility. 

Transfers of accounts receivable are accounted for as secured borrowings resu1ting in the recognition of short-term debt on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets in the amount of $233.3 million and $231.7 million as of December 31, 2012 and 20 II , respectively. Refer to Note 19, 
"Transfers of Financial Assets," for additional information. 

Short -term borrowings were as follows: 

At December 31, (in millions) 

Commercial Paper weighted average interest rate of 1.11 %and 1.01% l((peeernber 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively. $ 

Credit facilities borrowings weighted average interest rate of 3.73% and 1.99% at December 31, 2012 
and 2011, respectively. 

Accounts receivable securitizatiott facility borrowings 

Total short-term borrowings $ 

2012 

499.6 $ 

44.0 

233.3 

776.9 $ 

2011 

402.7 

Total short-term borrowings as of March 31, 2012 , June 30, 2012 and September 30, 2012 were $1,264.2 million , $327.6 million and $225.3 
million , respectively. 
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18. Fair Value Disclosures 

A. Fair Value Measurements 

Recurring Fair Value Measurements . The following tables present financial assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value on 
NiSource's Consolidated Balance Sheets on a recurring basis and their level within the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2012 and 
December31, 2011: 

Quoted Prices Significant 
in Active Markets Significant Other Unobservable 

Recuning Fair Value Measurements for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs 
December 31, 2012 (in millions) (Level I) (Level 2) (Level3) 

Assets 
Commodity price risk management assets: 

Physical price risk programs $ 35.4 $ $ 35.4 

Financial price risk programs 71.5 0.8 0.1 72.4 

Interest rate risk activities 40.4 40.4 

Available-for-sale securities 27.4 84.4 111.8 

Total $ 98.'1 $ 161.0 $ 0.1 $ 260.0 

Liabilities 

.Commodit)! price risk management liabilities: 

Physical price risk programs $ $ $ $ 

Financial price risk programs 115.0 115.5 

Total $ 115.0 $ 0.5 $ $ 115.5 

Quoted Prices Significant 
in Active Markets Significant Other Unobservable 

Recurring Fair Value Measurements for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs Balance as of 
December 31, 20 II ( in millions ) (Levell) (Level2) (Level3) December 31, 20 II 

AsSets 
Commodity Price risk management assets: 

Physical price fisk programs $ $ 140.7 $ $' 

Financial price risk programs 0 ' 148.3 2.5 0.3 151.1 

Interest rate risk activities 56;7., 

Available-for-sale securities 32.9 63.1 96.0 

Total $ 181.2 $ 263.0 $ 0.3 $ 444.5 

Liabilities 

CommoditY Price"fisk management liabilities: 

Physical price fisk programs $ $ 3.9 $ $ 3.9 

Financial price fisk programs 301.1 1.7 302.8 

Total $ 301.1 $ 5.6 $ $ 306.7 

"'During the fourth quarter of 20 II, NiSource recorded a reserve of $22.6 million on certain assets related to the wind down of the unregulated 
natural gas marketing business. The fmancial price risk program amount above is shown gross and has not been adjusted for the reserve. 
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Price risk management assets and liabilities include conunodity exchange-traded and non-exchange-based derivative contracts. Exchange-traded 
derivative contracts are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets and are classified within Level I. These financial assets and 
liabilities are secured with cash on deposit with the exchange; therefore nonperfonnance risk has not been incorporated into these valuations. 
Certain non-exchange-traded derivatives are valued using broker or over-the-counter, on-line exchanges. In such cases, these non-exchange­
traded derivatives are classified within Level 2. Non-exchange-based derivative instruments include swaps, forwards, and options. In certain 
instances, these instruments may utilize models to measure fair value. NiSource uses a similar model to value similar instruments. Valuation 
models utilize various inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar 
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, other observable inputs for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs, i.e., inputs 
derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means. Where observable inputs are available for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability, the instrument is categorized in Level 2. Certain derivatives trade in less active markets with a 
lower availability of pricing information and models may be utilized in the valuation. When such inputs have a significant impact on the 
measurement of fair value, the instrument is categorized in Level 3. Credit risk is considered in the fair value calculation of derivative 
instruments that are not exchange-traded. Credit exposures are adjusted to reflect collateral agreements which reduce exposures. As of 
December 31. 2012 and 2011 , there were no material transfers between fair value hierarchies. Additionally there were no changes in the method 
or significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value ofNiSource's fmancial instruments. 

To determine the fair value of derivatives associated with NiSource's unregulated natural gas marketing business, certain reserves were 
calculated. These reserves were primarily determined by evaluating the credit worthiness of certain customers, fair value of future cash flows, 
and the cost of maintaining restricted cash. Refer to Note 9, .. Risk Management Activities" for additional information on price risk assets. 

Price risk management assets also include fixed-to-floating interest-rate swaps, which are designated as fair value hedges, as a means to achieve 
NiSource's targeted level of variable-rate debt as a percent of total debt. NiSource uses a calculation of future cash inflows and estimated future 
outflows related to the swap agreements, which are discounted and netted to determine the current fair value. Additional inputs to the present 
value calculation include the contract terms, as weU as market parameters such as current and projected interest rates and volatility. As they are 
based on observable data and valuations of similar instruments, the interest-rate swaps are categorized in Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. 
Credit risk is considered in the fair value calculation of the interest rate swap. 

Available-for-sale securities are investments pledged as collateral for trust accounts related to NiSource's wholly-owned insurance company. 
Available-for-sale securities are included within "Other investments" in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Securities classified within Level I 
include U.S. Treasury debt securities which are highly liquid and are actively traded in over-the-counter markets. NiSource values corporate and 
mortgage-backed debt securities using a matrix pricing model that incorporates market-based information. These securities trade less frequently 
and are classified within Level 2. Total gains and losses from available-for-sale securities are included in other comprehensive income (loss). 
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and fair value of available-for-sale debt securities at December 31, 2012 and 
December 31, 20 II were: 

Gross Gross 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 

(in millions) Cost Gains Losses 

Available-for-sale debt securities, December 31, 2012 

U.S. Treasury securities $ 31.1 $ 1.5 $ $ 32.6 

Corporate/Other bonds 76.8 2.5 (0.1) 79.2 

Total Available-for-sale debt securities $ 107.9 $ 4.0 $ (0.1) $ 111.8 

Gross Gross 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 

(in millions) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value 

AvaUable-for-sale debt securities, December':\1,'2011 

U.S. Treasury securities $ 36.7 $ 1.7 $ $ 38.4 

Corporate/Other bonds 56.3 1.6 (0.3) 57.6 

Total Available-for-sale debt securities $ 93.0 $ 3.3 $ (0.3) $ 96.0 
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For the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 the realized gain on sale of available for sale U.S. Treasury debt securities was $ 0.6 
million,$ 0.5 million and$ 0.7 million, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 the realized gain on sale of 
available for sale Corporate/Other bond debt securities was$ 0.3 million,$ 0.9 million, and$ 1.0 million . 

The cost of maturities sold is based upon specific identification. At December 31,2012, all of the U.S. Treasury debt securities have maturities 
of greater than one year. At December 31, 2012 approximately $ 2.1 million of Corporate/Other bonds have maturities of less than a year while 
the remaining securities have maturities of greater than one year. 

The following tables present the fair value reconciliation of Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the 
periods ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011: 

Period Ended December 31,2012 (in millions) 

Balance as ofJannary 1, 2012H 

Total gains (losses) (unrealized/realized) 

Included in regulatory assets/liabilities 

Balance as of December 31,2012 

Change in unrealized gains/(losses):felating to instruments still held as of December 31,2012 

Period Ended December 31,2011 (in millions) 

Balance as ofJanuwy I, 2011 

Total gains (losses) (unrealized/realized) 

Included in regulatory assets/liabilities 

Purchases 
Settlements 

Balance as of December 31, 20 II 

Change in unrealized gain$/(los&es) relating to instruments still held a8'pfUecember31,2011 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Other Derivatives 

0.3 

(0;2) 

0.1 

0.1 

Other Derivatives 

0.2 

(I. I) 

1.2 

0.3 

(0.4) 

Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements. There were no significant non-recurring fair value measurements recorded during the twelve months 
ended December 31, 2012. 

During the twelve months ended December, 31 2011, NiSource recorded $14.7 million of asset impairments as a result of third party appraisals. 
The fair value of these assets was detennined based on unobservable inputs and is deemed to be a Level 3 fair value measurement under the fair 
value hierarchy. See Note 3 "Impairments and Other Charges" for further discussion. 

B. Other Fair Value Disclosures for Financial Instruments . NiSource has certain financial instruments that are not measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis but nevertheless are recorded at amounts that approximate fair value due to their liquid or short-term nature, including 
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, notes receivable, customer deposits and short-term borrowings. NiSource's long-term borrowings are 
recorded at historical amounts unless designated as a hedged item in a fair value hedge. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of fmancial instruments for which it is practicable to 
estimate fair value. 

Long-term debt . The fair values of these securities are estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the rates 
offered for securities of the same remaining maturities. Certain premium costs associated with the early settlement of long-term debt are not 
taken into consideration in determining fair value. These fair value measurements are classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy. For 
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 , there were no changes in the method or significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of 
the financial instruments. 
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The carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments were as follows: 

At December 31, (in millions) 

Carrying 
Amount 

2012 

Estimated 
Fair Value 

2012 

Long-tenn debt (including current portion) $ 7,326.3 $ 8,389.0 $ 

19. Transfers of Financial Assets 

Carrying 
Amount 

2011 

6,594.4 

Estimated 
Fair Value 

201 I 

$ 7,369.4 

Transfers of accounts receivable are accounted for as secured borrowings resulting in the recognition of short-term borrowings on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The maximum amount of debt that can be recognized related to NiSource's accounts receivable programs is $515 
million. 

All accounts receivables sold to the commercial paper conduits are valued at face value, which approximates fair value due to their short-tenn 
nature. The amount of the undivided percentage ownership interest in the accounts receivables sold is determined in part by required loss 
reserves under the agreements. Below is information about the accounts receivable securitization agreements entered into by NiSource's 
subsidiaries. 

On October 23, 2009, Columbia of Ohio entered into an agreement to sell, without recourse, substantially all of its trade receivables, as they 
originate, to CGORC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Columbia of Ohio. CGORC, in turn, is party to an agreement with BTMU and BNS, entered 
into on October 19, 2012, under the terms of which it sells an undivided percentage ownership interest in its accounts receivable to commercial 
paper conduits sponsored by BTMU and BNS. Prior to this agreement with BTMU and BNS, CGORC was party to a series of agreements with 
BTMU and RBS which dated from October 23, 2009 until its amendment on October I 9, 2012. The maximum seasonal program limit under the 
tenns of the new agreement remains at $240 million. The agreement expires on October 18, 2013, and can be renewed if mutually agreed to by 
all parties. As of December 31, 2012 , $98.3 million of accounts receivable had been transferred by CGORC. CGORC is a separate corporate 
entity from NiSource and Columbia of Ohio, with its own separate obligations, and upon a liquidation of CGORC, CGORC's obligations must 
be satisfied out ofCGORC's assets prior to any value becoming available to CGORC's stockholder. 

On October 23, 2009, Northern Indiana entered into an agreement to sell, without recourse, substantially all of its trade receivables, as they 
originate, to NARC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Northern Indiana. NARC, in tum, is party to an agreement with PNC and Mizuho entered 
into on August 29, 2012, under the terms of which it sells an undivided percentage ownership interest in its accounts receivable to a commercial 
paper conduits sponsored by PNC and Mizuho. Prior to this agreement with PNC and Mizuho, NARC was PartY to a series of agreements with 
RBS which dated from October 23, 2009 until its amendment on August 29, 2012, under the terms in which it sold an undivided percentage 
ownership interest in its accounts receivable to commercial paper conduit sponsored by RBS. The maximum seasonal program limit under the 
terms of the new agreement, which expires on August 28, 2013, is $200 million , and can be further renewed if mutually agreed to by both 
parties. As of December 31, 2012 , $100.0 million of accounts receivable had been transferred by NARC. NARC is a separate corporate entity 
from NiSource and Northern indiana, with its own separate obligations, and upon a liquidation ofNARC, NARC's obligations must be satisfied 
out of NARC's assets prior to any value becoming available to NARC's stockholder. 

On March 15, 2010, Columbia of Pennsylvania entered into an agreement to sell, without recourse, substantially all of its trade receivables, as 
they originate, to CPRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Columbia of Pennsylvania. CPRC, in turn, is party to an agreement with BTMU, also 
dated March 15,2010, under the terms of which it sells an undivided percentage ownership interest in its accounts receivable to a commercial 
paper conduit sponsored by BTMU. The maximum seasonal program limit under the tenns of the agreement is $75 million. On March 13,2012, 
the agreement was renewed, having a new scheduled tennination date of March 12,2013, and can be further renewed if mutually agreed to by 
both parties. As of December 31, 2012 , $35.0 million of accounts receivable had been transferred by CPR C. CPRC is a separate corporate entity 
from NiSource and Columbia of Pennsylvania, with its own separate obligations, and upon a liquidation of CPRC, CPRC's obligations must be 
satisfied out of CPRC's assets prior to any value becoming available to CPRC's stockholder. Under the agreement, an event of tennination 
occurs ifNiSource's debt rating is withdrawn by either Standard & Poor's or Moody's, or falls below BB- or Ba3 at either Standard & Poor's or 
Moody's, respectively. 
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The following table reflects the gross and net receivables transferred as well as short-term borrowings related to the securitization transactions as 
of December 31, 2012 and December 3 I, 20 I I for Columbia of Ohio, Northern Indiana and Columbia of Pennsylvania: 

December 31, December 31, 
(in million;) 2012 2011 

Gross Receivab[es ll)terest s 525.3 $ 510.5 

Less: Receivables not transferred 292.0 278.8 

Net receivabfe~cb:al!Sterrea U 233.3 $ 231.7 

Short-term debt due to asset securitization $ 233.3 $ 231.7 

During 2012 and 2011 , $1.6 million and $43.3 million was recorded as cash from financing activities related to the change in short-term 
borrowings due to the securitization transactions, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 , fees of$3.5 million and $3.8 
million associated with the securitization transactions were recorded as interest expense, respectively. Columbia of Ohio, Northern Indiana and 
Columbia of Pennsylvania remain responsible for collecting on the receivables securitized and the receivables cannot be sold to another party. 

20. Other Commitments and Contingencies 

A. Guarantees and Indemnities . As a part of normal business, NiSource and certain subsidiaries enter into various agreements providing 
fmanciaJ or performance assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries. Such agreements include guarantees and stand-by letters of 
credit. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise attributed to a subsidiary on a stand­
alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish the subsidiaries' intended commercial purposes. The total 
guarantees and indemnities in existence at December 31, 2012 and the years in which they expire are: 

(in millions) Total 2013 

GuaranteeS:&fsubsidiaries debt $ 6,805.8 $ 

Guarantees supporting energy commodity 
contracts of subsidiaries 52.2 26.5 

Accounts receivable'secontization 233.3 233.3 

Lines of credit 543.6 543.6 

Letters of credit 36.4 19.2 

Other guarantees 294.8 234.8 

Total cdnlmCrCial com:nUtmeilts ;; $. 7,966.1 . S" 1,477.7 $ 

1.0 

32.4 

$ 

533.4 $ 

25.0 

16.2 

3.0 

524.2 $ 

2016 2017 After 

291.5 $ 507.0 ~ 

0.7 

24.6 

291.5 $ 507.Q $ 4,632.3 

Guarantees of Subsidiaries Debt . NiSource has guaranteed the payment of $6.8 billion of debt for various wholly-owned subsidiaries 
including NiSource Finance and Columbia of Massachusetts, and through a support agreement for Capital Markets, which is reflected on 
NiSource 's Consolidated Balance Sheets. The subsidiaries are required to comply with certain covenants under the debt indenture and in the 
event of default, NiSource would be obligated to pay the debt's principal and related interest. NiSource does not anticipate its subsidiaries will 
have any difficulty maintaining compliance. On October 3, 2011, NiSource executed a Second Supplemental Indenture to the original Columbia 
of Massachusetts Indenture dated April I, 1991, for the specific purpose of guaranteeing Columbia of Massachusetts' outstanding medium-terrn 
notes. 

Guarantees Supporting Commodity Transactions of Subsidiaries . NiSource has issued guarantees, which support up to $52.2 million of 
commodity-related payments for its current subsidiaries involved in energy marketing activities. These guarantees were provided to 
counterparties in order to facilitate physical and financial transactions involving natural gas services. To the extent liabilities exist under the 
commodity-related contracts subject to these guarantees, such liabilities are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Lines and Letters of Credit and Accounts Receivable Advances . During May 2012, NiSource Finance amended its existing $1.5 billion 
revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks led by Barclays Capital, extending the termination date to May 15, 2017 and also reducing the 
borrowing costs under the facility. The purpose of the facility is to fund ongoing working capital 
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requirements including the provision of liquidity support for NiSource's corrunercial paper program, provide for the issuance of letters of credit, 
and also for general corporate purposes. At December 31, 2012, NiSource had $44.0 million borrowings under its five-year revolving credit 
facility, $499.6 million in commercia31 paper outstanding and $233.3 million outstanding under its accounts receivable securitization 
agreements. At December 31, 2012, NiSource issued stand-by letters of credit of approximately $36.4 million for the benefit of third parties. See 
Note 17, "Short-Term Borrowings," for additional information. 

Other Guarantees or Obligations . On June 30, 2008, NiSource's subsidiary, PEl, sold Whiting Clean Energy to BPAE for $216.7 million 
which included $16.1 million in working capital. The agreement with BPAE contains representations, warranties, covenants and closing 
conditions. NiSource has executed purchase and sales agreement guarantees totaling $220.0 million which guarantee performance of PEl's 
covenants, agreements, obligations, liabilities, representations and warranties under the agreement with BPAE. No amounts related to the 
purchase and sale agreement guarantees are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31,2012. These guarantees are due to 
expire in June 2013. 

NiSource has additional purchase and sale agreement guarantees totaling $30.0 million, which guarantee performance of the seller's covenants, 
agreements, obligations, liabilities, representations and warranties under the agreements. No amounts related to the purchase and sale agreement 
guarantees are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Management believes that the 1ikelihood NiSource would be required to perform or 
otherwise incur any significant losses associated with any of the aforementioned guarantees is remote. 

In connection with Millenniuro's refinancing of its long-term debt in August 2010, NiSource provided a letter of credit to Union Bank N.A., as 
Collateral Agent for deposit into a debt service reserve account as required under the Deposit and Disbursement Agreement governing the 
Millenniwn notes offering. This account is to be drawn upon by the note holders in the event that Millennium is delinquent on its principal and 
interest payments. The value of NiSource's letter of credit represents 47.5% (NiSource's ownership percentage in Millenniuro) of the Debt 
Service Reserve Account requirement, or $16.2 million . The total exposure for NiSource is $16.2 million . NiSource recorded an accrued 
liability of$1.5 million related to the inception date fair value of this guarantee as of December 31,2012. 

NiSource has issued other guarantees supporting derivative related payments associated with interest rate swap agreements issued by NiSource 
Finance, operating leases for many of its subsidiaries and for other agreements entered into by its current and former subsidiaries. 

B. Other Legal Proceedings . In the normal course of its business, NiSource and its subsidiaries have been named as defendants in various 
legal proceedings. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these currently asserted claims will not have a material impact on 
NiSource's consolidated financial statements. 

C. Tax Matters . NiSource records liabilities for potential income tax assessments. The accruals relate to tax positions in a variety of taxing 
jurisdictions and are based on management's estimate of the ultimate resolution of these positions. These liabilities may be affected by changing 
interpretations of laws, rulings by tax authorities, or the expiration of the statute of limitations. NiSource is part of the IRS Large and Mid-Size 
Business program. As a result each year's federal income tax return is typically audited by the IRS. As of December 31,2012, tax years through 
2007 have been audited and are effectively closed to further assessment. The audit of tax years 2008,2009, and 2010 are now in Joint Committee 
review. As of December 31, 2012, there were no state income tax audits in progress that would have a material impact on the consolidated 
financial statements. 

NiSource is currently being audited for sales and use tax compliance in the states of Virginia, Kentucky, Pennsylvania, Ohio, Maine and 
Massachusetts. 

D. Environmental Matters . NiSource operations are subject to environmental statutes and regulations related to air quality, water quality, 
hazardous waste and solid waste. NiSource believes that it is in substantial compliance with those environmental regulations currently applicable 
to its operations and believes that it has all necessary permits to conduct its operations. 

It is management's continued intent to address environmental issues in cooperation with regulatory authorities in such a manner as to achieve 
mutually acceptable compliance plans. However, there can be no assurance that fines and penalties will not be incurred. Management expects a 
significant portion of environmental assessment and remediation costs to be recoverable through rates for certain NiSource companies. 

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, NiSource had recorded reserves of approximately $160.6 million and $173.5 million , respectively, to cover 
environmental remediation at various sites. The current portion of this reserve is included in Legal and Environmental Reserves in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The noncurrent portion is included in Other noncurrent liabilities in 
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the Consolidated Balance Sheets. NiSource accrues for costs associated with environmental remediation obligations when the incurrence of such 
costs is probable and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. The original estimates for cleanup can differ materially from the amount 
ultimately expended. The actual future expenditures depend on many factors, including currently enacted laws and regulations, the nature and 
extent of contamination, the method of cleanup, and the availability of cost recovery from customers. These expenditures are not currently 
estimable at some sites. NiSource periodically adjusts its reserves as information is collected and estimates become more refined. 

Air 
The actions listed below could require further reductions in emissions from various emission sources. NiSource will continue to closely monitor 
developments in these matters. 

Climate Change . Future legislative and regulatory programs could significantly restrict emissions of GHGs or could impose a cost or tax on 
GHG emissions. Recently, proposals have been developed to implement federal, state and regional GHG programs and to create renewable 
energy standards. 

In the first quarter of2012, the EPA proposed an output-based carbon standard for new power plants. The standard would, for the first time, set 
national limits on the amount of carbon emissions allowed from new power plants. This numerical limit places compliance out of reach for coal­
fired plants desigued without capture and sequestration of carbon dioxide, limiting NiSource's options for future generation growth. In addition, 
based on authority provided by the Clean Air Act, once the EPA has promulgated a New Source Performance Standard for a new or modified 
source in a specific source category, regulation of existing sources in specific circumstances is required. 

If the EPA develops a GHG new source performance standard for existing units or if a federal or state comprehensive climate change bill were to 
be enacted into law, the impact on NiSource's fmancial performance would depend on a number of factors, including the overall level of 
required GHG reductions, the renewable energy targets, the degree to which offsets may be used for compliance, the amount of recovery allowed 
from customers, and the extent to which NiSource would be entitled to receive CO 2 allowances at no cost. Comprehensive federal or state GHG 
regulation could result in additional expense or compliance costs that may not be fully recoverable from customers and could materially impact 
NiSource's financial results. 

National Ambient Air Quality Standards . The CAA requires the EPA to set national air quality standards for particulate matter and five other 
pollutants (the NAAQS) considered harmful to public health and the environment. Periodically the EPA imposes new or modifies existing 
NAAQS. States that contain areas that do not meet the new or revised standards must take steps to maintain or achieve compliance with the 
standards. These steps could include additional pollution controls on boilers, engines, turbines, and other facilities owned by electric generation, 
gas distribution, and gas transmission operations. 

The following NAAQS were recently added or modified: 

Particulate Matter: In December 2009, the EPA issued area desiguations for the 2006 24-hour PM,, standard, and several counties in which 
NiSource operates were designated as non-attainment. In addition, a final rule was promulgated in December 2012 that lowered the annual PM 
2.5standard from 15 to 12 flg/m 3

. NiSource will continue to monitor these matters and cannot estimate their impact at this time. 

Ozone (eight hour): On September 2, 2011, the EPA announced it would implement its 2008 eight-hour ozone NAAQS rather than tightening 
the standard in 2012. The EPA will review, and possibly revise, the standard in 2013 consistent with CAA requirements. In addition, the EPA 
has designated the Chicago metropolitan area, including the area in which Northern Indiana operates one of its electric generation facilities, as 
non-attainment for ozone. NiSource will continue to monitor this matter and cannot estimate the impact of any new rules at this time. 

Nitrogen Dioxide (NO,): The EPA revised the NO, NAAQS by adding a one-hour standard while retaining the annual standard. The new 
standard could impact some NiSource combustion sources. The EPA designated all areas of the country as unclassifiable/attairunent in January 
2012. After the establishment of a new monitoring network and possible modeling implementation, areas will potentially be re-designated 
sometime in 2016. States with areas that do not meet the standard will be required to develop rules to bring areas into compliance within five 
years of designation. Additionally, under certain permitting circumstances emissions from some existing NiSource combustion sources may need 
to be assessed and mitigated. NiSource will continue to monitor this matter and cannot estimate the impact of these rules at this time. 
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National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants. On August 20, 2010, the EPA revised national emission standards for hazardous 
air pollutants for certain stationary reciprocating internal combustion engines. Compliance requirements vary by engine type and will generally 
be required within three years. In June 2012, the EPA proposed revisions to the rule. The final rule is expected in early 2013. NiSource has 
received a one year compliance extension for the affected engines and is continuing its evaluation of the cost impacts of the new standards, 
however, estimates the cost of compliance to be $ 20 to $ 25 million . 

Waste 
NiSource subsidiaries are potentially responsible parties at waste disposal sites under the CERCLA (commonly known as Superfund) and similar 
state laws. Additionally, a program has been instituted to identify and investigate former MGP sites where Gas Distribution Operations 
subsidiaries or predecessors may have liability. The program has identified 67 such sites where liability is probable. Remedial actions at many of 
these sites are being overseen by state or federal environmental agencies through consent agreements or voluntary remediation agreements. 

During the fourth quarter of 20 II, NiSource completed a probabilistic model to estimate its future remediation costs related to its MGP sites. 
The model was prepared with the assistance of a third party and incorporates NiSource and general industry experience with remediating MGP 
sites. NiSource accordingly increased its liability for estimated remediation costs by $71.1 million. Since the fourth quarter of2011, NiSource 
has monitored the liability on a quarterly basis and in the second quarter of2012, completed an annual refresh of the model. No material changes 
to the liability were noted as a result of the refresh. The total liability at NiSource related to the facilities subject to remediation was $132.6 
million and $139.5 million at December 31,2012 and 2011, respectively. The liability represents NiSource's best estimate of the probable cost 
to remediate the facilities. NiSource believes that it is reasonably possible that remediation costs could vary by as much as $25 million in 
addition to the costs noted above. Remediation costs are estimated based on the best available information, applicable remediation standards at 
the balance sheet date, and experience with similar facilities. 

Additional Issues Related to Individual Business Segments 

The sections below describe various regulatory actions that affect Gas Transmission and Storage Operations, Electric Operations, and certain 
other discontinued operations for which NiSource has retained a liability. 

Gas Transmission and Storage Operations. 

Waste 
Columbia Transmission continues to conduct characterization and remediation activities at specific sites under a 1995 AOC (subsequently 
modified in 1996 and 2007). The 1995 AOC originally covered 245 major facilities, approximately 13,000 liquid removal points, approximately 
2,200 mercury measurement stations and about 3, 700 storage well locations. As a result of the 2007 amendment, approximately 50 facilities 
remain subject to the terms of the AOC. During the third quarter of 20 II, Columbia Transmission completed a study to estimate its future 
remediation requirements related to the AOC. Columbia Transmission accordingly increased its liability for estimated remediation costs by 
$25.6 million. Since the third quarter of 2011, Columbia Transmission has been monitoring its liability on a quarterly basis and performed an 
annual refresh of the study during the second quarter of2012. An additional $3.5 million was added to the liability due to estimate changes and 
cost increases as a result of the refresh. The total liability at Columbia Transmission related to the facilities subject to remediation was $21.7 
million and $30.0 million at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. The liability represents Columbia Transmission's best 
estimate of the cost to remediate the facilities or manage the sites. Remediation costs are estimated based on the information available, applicable 
remediation standards, and experience with similar facilities. Columbia Transmission expects that the remediation for these facilities will be 
completed in 2015. 

One of the facilities subject to the 1995 AOC is the Majorsville Operations Center, which was remediated under an EPA approved Remedial 
Action Work Plan in summer 2008. Pursuant to the Remedial Action Work Plan, Columbia Transmission completed a project that stabilized 
residual oil contained in soils at the site and in sediments in an adjacent stream. Columbia Transmission continues to monitor the site subject to 
EPA oversight. On April23, 2009, PADEP issued an NOV to Columbia Transmission, alleging that the remediation did not fully address the 
contamination. The NOV asserts violations of the Pennsylvania Clean Streams Law and the Pennsylvania Solid Waste Management Act and 
includes a proposed penalty of$1 million. Columbia Transmission is unable to estimate the likelihood or cost of potential penalties or additional 
remediation at this time. 
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Electric Operations. 

Air 
Northern Indiana expects to become subject to a number of new air-quality mandates in the next several years. These mandates may require 
Northern Indiana to make capital improvements to its electric generating stations. The cost of capital improvements is estimated to be $820 
million to $855 million. This figure includes additional capital improvements associated with the New Source Review Consent Decree and the 
Utility Mercury and Air Toxics Standards Rule. Northern Indiana believes that the capital costs will likely be recoverable from ratepayers. 

Sulfur dioxide: In June 2010, the EPA promulgated a revised primary one-hour SO, NAAQS. In a May II, 2011, letter to the EPA, IDEM 
recommended that all counties containing Northern Indiana coal-fired generating stations are unclassifiable under this standard. Final EPA 
designations are expected in June 2013. Discussion is ongoing regarding the use of modeling for unclassifiable areas. Northern Indiana will 
continue to monitor developments in these matters but does not anticipate a material impact. 

Cross-State Air Pollution Rule I Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) I Transport Rule: On July 6, 2011, the EPA announced its replacement for the 
2005 CAJR to reduce the interstate transport of fme particulate matter and ozone. The CSAPR reduces overall emissions of SO 2 and NO , by 
setting state-wide caps on power plant emissions. The CSAPR limits emissions, including Northern Indiana's, with restricted emission allowance 
trading programs was scheduled to begin in 2012. In a decision issued on August 21, 2012 the D.C. Circuit Court vacated the CSAPR leaving 
the CAIR trading program provisions and requirements in place. This development does not significantly impact Northern Indiana's current 
emissions control plans. Northern Indiana utilizes the inventory model in accounting for emission allowances issued under the CAIR program 
whereby these allowances were recognized at zero cost upon receipt from the EPA. Northern Indiana believes its current multi-pollutant 
compliance plan and New Source Review Consent Decree capital investments will allow Northern Indiana to meet the emission requirements of 
CAIR, while a replacement for CSAPR is developed to address the court's decision. 

Utility Mercury and Air Taxies Standards Rule: On February 8, 2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit 
vacated two EPA rules that are the basis for the Indiana Air Pollution Control Board's Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR) that established utility 
mercury emission limits in two phases (2010 and 2018) and a cap-and-trade program to meet those limits. In response to the vacatur, the EPA 
pursued a new Section 112 rulemaking to establish MACT standards for electric utilities. The EPA finalized the Mercury and Air Toxics 
Standards (MATS) Rule on December 16, 2011. Compliance for Northern Indiana's affected units will be required in April 2015, with the 
possibility of a one year extension. Northern Indiana is currently developing a plan for further environmental controls to comply with MATS. 

New Source Review: On September 29, 2004, the EPA issued an NOV to Northern Indiana for alleged violations of the CAA and the Indiana 
SIP. The NOV alleged that modifications were made to certain boiler units at three of Northern Indiana's generating stations between the years 
1985 and \995 without obtaining appropriate air permits for the modifications. Northern Indiana, EPA, the Deparlment of Justice, and IDEM 
have settled the matter through a consent decree, entered on July 22, 20 II. 

Water 
The Phase II Rule of the Clean Water Act Section 316(b ), which requires all large existing steam electric generating stations to meet certain 
performance standards to reduce the effects on aquatic organisms at their cooling water intake structures, became effective on September 7, 
2004. Under this rule, stations will either have to demonstrate that the performance of their existing fish protection systems meet the new 
standards or develop new systems, such as a closed-cycle cooling tower. Various court challenges and EPA responses ensued. The EPA 
announced a proposed rule and is obligated to finalize a rule in 2013. Northern Indiana wil1 continue to monitor this matter but cannot estimate 
the cost of compliance at this time. 

Waste 
On March 31, 2005, the EPA and Northern Indiana entered into an AOC under the authority of Section 3008(h) of the RCRA for the Bailly 
Station. The order requires Northern Indiana to identify the nature and extent of releases of hazardous waste and hazardous constituents from the 
facility. Northern Indiana must also remediate any release of hazardous constituents that present an unacceptable risk to human health or the 
environment. In July 2012, the EPA issued a Final Decision for Areas A and B of the Bailly facility. Remedial activities will likely occur in 
2013. The process to investigate and select appropriate remedial activities at a third area is ongoing. 
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The Indiana Department of Environmental Management requested that Northern Indiana enter into AOCs to identify the nature and extent of 
releases of hazardous waste and hazardous constituents at the Michigan City and Mitchell Generating Stations. Northern Indiana cannot estimate 
the cost of compliance with any AOCs at this time. 

On June 21, 2010, EPA published a proposed rule for regulation of CCRs. The proposal outlines multiple regulatory approaches that EPA is 
considering. These proposed regulations could negatively affect Northern Indiana's ongoing byproduct reuse programs and would impose 
additional requirements on its management of coal combustion residuals. Northern Indiana will continue to monitor developments in this matter 
and cannot estimate the cost of compliance at this time. 

Other Operations . 

Waste 
NiSource affiliates have retained environmental liabilities, including cleanup liabilities associated with some of its former operations. Four sites 
are associated with its former propane operations and ten sites associated with former petroleum operations. At one of those sites, an AOC has 
been sigued with EPA to address petroleum residue in soil and groundwater. 

E. Operating and Capital Lease Commitments. NiSource leases assets in several areas of its operations. Payments made in connection 
with operating leases were$ 50.9 million in 2012, $52.9 million in 2011 and$ 56.7 million in 2010, and are primarily charged to operation and 
maintenance expense as incurred. Capital leases and related accumulated depreciation included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were $ 182.5 
million and$ 46.8 million at December 31, 2012, and$ 92.7 million and$ 29.8 million at December 31,2011, respectively. 

NiSource Corporate Services has a license agreement with Rational Systems, LLC for pipeline business software requiring annual payments of$ 
5.8 million over ten years, which began in January 2008. This agreement is recorded as a capital lease. 

Northern Indiana has a service agreement with Pure Air, a general partnership between Air Products and Chemicals, Inc. and First Air Partners 
LP, under which Pure Air provides scrubber services to reduce sulfur dioxide emissions for Units 7 and 8 at the Bailly Generating Station. 
Services under this contract commenced on July I, 1992 and expired on June 30,2012. On June 29,2012, this agreement was renewed for ten 
years and, in accordance with GAAP, was evaluated to determine whether the arrangement qualified as a lease. Based on the terms of the 
agreement. the arrangement qualified for capital lease accounting. The effective date of the new agreement is July I, 2012. NiSource capitalized 
$72.9 million related to this lease in the third quarter of2012. 

Future minimum rental payments required under operating and capital leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess 
of one year are: 

Operating Capital 
(in millions) Leases Leases (t) 

2013 24.9 

2014 39.1 25.2 

2015 28.5 24.5 

2016 22.5 20.9 

2017 20.9 

After 23.7 141.7 

Total future minimmn payments $ 172.9 $ 258.1 
uJCapitallease payments shown above are inclusive of interest totaling $84.6 million. 

F. Purchase and Service Obligations . NiSource has entered into various purchase and service agreements whereby NiSource is 
contractually obligated to make certain minimum payments in future periods. NiSource's purchase obligations are for the purchase of physical 
quantities of natural gas, electricity and coal. NiSource's service agreements encompass a broad range of business support and maintenance 
functions which are generally described below. 

NiSource's subsidiaries have entered into various energy commodity contracts to purchase physical quantities of natural gas, electricity and coal. 
These amounts represent minimum quantities of these commodities NiSource is obligated to purchase at both fixed and variable prices. 
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In July 2008, the illRC issued an order approving Northern Indiana's proposed purchase power agreements with subsidiaries of Iberdrola 
Renewables, Buffalo Ridge I LLC and Barton Windpower LLC. These agreements provided Northern Indiana the opportunity and obligation to 
purchase up to 100 mw of wind power commencing in early 2009. The contracts extend 15 and 20 years, representing 50 mw of wind power 
each. No minimum quantities are specified within these agreements due to the variability of electricity production from wind, so no amounts 
related to these contracts are included in the table below. Upon any termination of the agreements by Northern Indiana for any reason (other than 
material breach by Buffalo Ridge I LLC or Barton Windpower LLC), Northern Indiana may be required to pay a termination charge that could 
be material depending on the events giving rise to termination and the timing of the termination. 

NiSource has pipeline service agreements that provide for pipeline capacity, transportation and storage services. These agreements, which have 
expiration dates ranging from 2013 to 2045, require NiSource to pay fixed monthly charges. 

NiSource Corporate Services continues to pay IBM to provide business process and support functions to NiSource for amended services under a 
combination of fixed or variable charges, with the variable charges fluctuating based on the actual need for such services. In December 2011, 
NiSource elected to extend certain information technology services. Under the amended agreement, at December 31, 2012, NiSource Corporate 
Services expects to pay approximately $186.8 million to IBM in service fees as shown in the following table. 

NiSource Corporate Services signed a service agreement with Vertex Outsourcing LLC, a business process outsourcing company, to provide 
customer contact center services for NiSource subsidiaries through June 2015. Services under this contract commenced on July 1, 2008, and 
NiSource Corporate Services pays for the services under a combination affixed and variable charges, with the variable charges fluctuating based 
on actual need for such services. Based on the currently projected usage of these services, NiSource Corporate Services expects to pay 
approximately $30.7 million to Vertex Outsourcing LLC in service fees over the remaining two and a half year term. 

Northern Indiana has contracts with four major rail operators providing for coal transportation services for which there are certain minimum 
payments. These service contracts extend for various periods through 2015. 

Northern Indiana has a service agreement with Pure Air, a general partnership between Air Products and Chemicals, Inc. and First Air Partners 
LP, under which Pure Air provides scrubber services to reduce sulfur dioxide emissions for Units 7 and 8 at the Bailly Generating Station. 
Services under this contract commenced on July I, 1992 and expired on June 30,2012. The agreement was renewed effective July I, 2012 for 
ten years and Northern Indiana will continue to pay for the services under a combination of fixed and variable charges. In accordance with 
GAAP, the renewed agreement was evaluated to determine whether the arrangement qualified as a lease. Based on the terms of the agreement, 
the arrangement qualified for capital lease accounting. As the effective date of the new agreement was July I, 2012, NiSource capitalized this 
lease beginning in the third quarter of2012. Future payments for this capital lease are included within, "Capital leases," in the table above. 

The estimated aggregate amounts of minimum fixed payments at December 31, 2012, were: 

Vertex 
Energy Pipeline IBM Outsourcing Other 

Commodity Service Service LLC Service Service 
(in millions) Agreements Agreements Agreement Agreement Agreements Total 

2013 187.1 $ 242.5 $ 75.0 $ 12.3 $ 94.3 $ 611.2 

2014 105.9 228.4 72.3 12.3 82.2 501.1 

2015 73.8 202.4 34.3 6.1 84.9 401.5 

2016 1.5 16Q.4 3.4 3.9 169.2 

2017 1.5 141.0 1'.8 ...._ 2.0 146:3 
After 4.4 554.8 559.2 

Total purchase a.!l.d service 
obligatioQs $ 374.2 $ 1,529.5 $ 186.8 $ 30.7 $ 267.3 $ 2,388.5 
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G. Other Matters. On November 23, 2012, while Columbia of Massachusetts was investigating the source of an odor of gas at a service 
location in Springfield, Massachusetts, a gas service line was pierced and an explosion occurred. While this explosion impacted multiple 
buildings and resulted in several injuries, no life threatening injuries or fatalities have been reported. Columbia of Massachusetts is fully 
cooperating with both the Massachusetts DPU and the Occupational Safely & Health Administration in their investigations of this incident. 
Columbia of Massachusetts believes any costs associated with damages, injuries, and other losses related to this incident are substantially 
covered by insurance. Any amounts not covered by insurance are not expected to have a material impact on NiSource's consolidated financial 
statements. In accordance with GAAP, NiSource recorded any reserves and the related insurance recoveries resulting from this incident on a 
gross basis within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

21. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 

The following table displays the activily of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss, net of tax: 

Accumulated 
Unrealized Gains/ Unrealized Unrecognized Other 

(Losses) on (Losse5)/Gains on Pension and OPED Comprehensive 
(in millions) Securities Cash Flow Hedges (Costs)IBenefit Loss 

Balance as:or JaliUary 1, 1010 s 2.6 s (21.0) $ (27.5) s (45.9) 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) l.l (13.8) 0.7 (12.0) 

Balance as of DeCember 31, 1010 s 3.7 s (34.8) s (26.8) s (57.9) 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 1.2 3.0 (6.0) (1.8) 

Baluee u of J)eQm)ber!at;;-20:t-liii'"'?lili~<§ii:: "±Si--+->·<tt $·' "'·?"'-'i '-'00'"" s ~ "' ']31.8) ,. s ·' .Jk.u., (32.8) :s ,..,(5'-7)· 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (2.3) 3.2 (6.7) (5.8) 

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 2.6 s (28.6) s (39.5) s (65.5) 

Eguitv Method Investment 
During 2008, Millennium, in which Columbia Transmission has an equity investment, entered into three interest rate swap agreements with a 
notional amount totaling $420.0 million with seven counterparties. During August 2010, Millennium completed the refinancing of its long-term 
debt, securing permanent fixed-rate fmancing through the private placement issuance of two tranches of notes totaling $725.0 million , $375.0 
million at 5.33% due June 30, 2027 and $350.0 million at 6.00% due June 30, 2032 . Upon the issuance of these notes, Millennium repaid all 
outstanding borrowings under its credit agreement, terminated the sponsor guarantee, and cash settled the interest rate hedges. These interest rate 
swap derivatives were primarily accounted for as cash flow hedges by Millennium. As an equily method investment, NiSource is required to 
recognize a proportional share of Millennium's OCI. The remaining unrealized loss of $18.7 million, net of tax, related to these terminated 
interest rate swaps is being amortized over a 15 year period ending June 2025 into earnings using the effective interest method through interest 
expense as interest payments are made by Millennium. The unrealized loss of $18.7 million and $19.7 million at December 31, 2012 and 
December 31, 2011 , respectively, is included in unrealized losses on cash flow hedges above. 

22. Other, Net 

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 

Interest income. 
Miscellaneous O) 

Total Other, net 

2012 

$ 

s 

5.2 $ 

(3.5) 

1.7 $ 

2010 

6.3 

(2.5) 

3.8 

"'Miscellaneous primarily consists of unconditional pre-tax charitable donations partially offset by AFUDC. Refer to Note 1-G, "Utilily Plant 
and Other Properly and Related Depreciation and Maintenance," for additional information related to AFUDC. 
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23. Interest Expense, Net 

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 

Interest on long-term debt 

Interest on short-term borrowings <O 

])i~gl:lDJ ()_D prepayment transactions 

Accounts receivable securitization 

Ao!lg~~~[!)f boff!)wed. fuqds nsed and interest capitalized during COl\!'truction 
Other (2) 

Tow Interest Expense; net 

(llRefer to Note 17, 11Short-Term Borrowings/' for additional information. 

$ 

$ 

2012 

398.2 $ 
6.7 
7.8 
3.2 

(7.1) 

9.5 
418.3 $ 

2011 

362.9 $ 
13.5 

7.1 

3.8 
(3.1) 

(7.4) 

376.8 $ 

2010 

390.7 

1.9 

8.5 

6.3 

(2.7) 

(12.4) 

392.3 

"'The increase in other is primarily attributable to the expiration of the deferral of carrying charges related to the Sugar Creek electric generatiog 
plant. 

24. Segments of Business 

Operating segments are components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is available and evaluated regularly by the chief 
operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance. The NiSource Chief Executive Officer is the chief 
operating decision maker. 

At December 31, 2012 , NiSource's operations are divided into three primary business segments. The Gas Distribution Operations segment 
provides natural gas service and transportation for residential, commercial and industrial customers in Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia, Kentucky, 
Maryland, Indiana and Massachusetts. The Gas Transmission and Storage Operations segment offers gas transportation and storage services for 
LDCs, marketers and industrial and commercial customers located in northeastern, mid-Atlantic, midwestern and southern states and the District 
of Columbia. The Electric Operations segment provides electric service in 20 counties in the northern part of Indiana. 
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The following table provides information about business segments. NiSource uses operating income as its primary measurement for each of the 
reported segments and makes decisions on finance, dividends and taxes at the corporate level on a consolidated basis. Segment revenues include 
intersegment sales to affiliated subsidiaries, which are eliminated in consolidation. Affiliated sales are recognized on the basis of prevailing 
market, regulated prices or at levels provided for under contractual agreements. Operating income is derived from revenues and expenses 
directly associated with each segment. 

Year Ended December 31. (in millions) 2012 2011 2010 

REVEl'IUES .. 

Gas Distribution Operations 
i.iri~ffili~!EiH'i ;; .... $ 2,663.1 $ 3,459.0 $ 3,619.8 

lotersegment 0.4 1.4 10.7 

Total•• 2,663.5 3,460.4 3,630.5 

Gas Transmission and Storage Operations 

Unaffiliated 852.8 856.7 780.3 

lotersegment 148.7 148.9 168.9 

Total 1,001.5 1,005.6 949.2 

Electric Operations 

1,508.9 1,428.5 1,380.8 

0.8 0.8 0.7 

1,509.7 1,429.3 1,381.5 

Corporate and Other 

unaffiuai<,r~~. 36.4 230.5 590.3 

Intersegment 474.7 464.6 435.9 

Total. 511.1 695.1 1,026.2 

Eliminations (624.6) (615.7) (6I6.2) 

Consolidated Revenues $ 5,061.2 $ 5,974.7 $ 6,371.2 

'''With the implementation of the standard choice offer, Columbia of Ohio reported lower gross revenues and cost of sales beginoing April 1. 
2012. There was no impact on net revenues. 

(21 The reduction to other revenues is attributed to the continued wind down of the unregulated natural gas marketing business as well as the early 
termination of certain contracts as discussed in Note 9, "Risk Management and Energy Marketing Activities." There was a corresponding 
decrease in cost of sales with no impact to operating income. 
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Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Gas Distribution Operations 

Gas Transmission and Storage Operations 

Electric Operations 

Corporate and Other 

Consolidated 

Depreclatiilillllid Atriortiiation 
Gas Distribution Operations 

u•Gas Trans~ssio1) and Storage Operations, 
Electric Operations 

Corporate and Other 

Consolidated 

Assets 
Gas Distribution Operations 

Gas Transmission and Storage Operations 

Electric Operations 

COIJ>O!)I~ aJ,l<,tQIQ~r 

Consolidated 
Capital Expendltnres (ll 

Gas Distribution Operations 

Gas l.:~WIJ~ii?tt and,l)torage apeialiolls 
Electric Operations 
Cotpotate and Other • u• 

Consolidated 

2012 

$ 394.1 

398.4 

250.8 

(0.6) 

$ 1,042.7 

$ 189.9 

99.3 
249.7 

23.0 

$ 561.9 

$ 8,200.7 

4,660.7 

4,970.0 

' 4,013.3, 
$ 21,844.7 

$ 649.4 

41!9.6 
422.8 

ltlil:23~ 
$ 1,585.1 

2011 2010 

$ 378.9 $ 319.5 

360.0 376.6 

208.4 219.8 

(57.2) (24.1) 

$ 890.1 $ 891.8 

$ 171.5 $ 237.0 

130.0 13Q;7 

214.7 211.8 

19.5 15.3 

$ 535.7 $ 594.8 

$ 7,467.4 $ 7,356.1 

4,215.3 3,996.5 

4,306.4 4,153.8 

:;!,719.~,, 4,40{,Q, 

$ 20,708.3 $ 19,913.4 

$ 498.9 $ 401.9 

312.6 

296.3 158.7 

17.4 7.8 
(I) $ 1,125.2 $ 803.8 

n> Amounts differ from those presented on the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows due to the inclusion of capital expenditures included in 
current liabilities and contributions to equity method investments. 
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25. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

Quarterly financial data does not always reveal the trend of NiSource's business operations due to nonrecurring items and seasonal weather 
patterns, which affect earnings, and related components of net revenues and operating income. 

First Second Third Fourth 
(in millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 

2012 

Gross revenues $ 1,648.9 $ 1,039.1 $ 962.9 $ 1,410.3 
Operating Income 397.7 205.3 133.2 306.5 
Income from Continuing Operations 192.5 68.5 17.6 132.0 
Result$ from Discontinued Operations '~ net of taxes 0.9 1;7 2.0 

Net Income 193.4 69.4 19.3 134.0 
Basic Earnings Per Share 

Continuing Operations 0.68 0.25 0.06 0.42 
Discontinued Operations 0.01 

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 0.68 $ 0.25 $ 0.06 $ 0.43 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 

Continuing Operations 0.66 0.23 0.06 0.42 
Disoolltinned Op-el"ation~'' 

"' ' ' ,,; __ ,, 
'bp~, 'fif''iii:iii;c;di00=co ,-~ill!;±~" ,.,suo.<n ~ ~ "__,"==.:--n:-1: --y~ 

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 0.66 $ 0.23 $ 0.06 $ 0.43 

2011 

Gross revenues $ 2,220.8 $ 1,217.5 $ 1,057.3 $ 1,479.1 
Ojl!ltating Income 403.6 142.7 .. 182.2 

Income from Continuing Operations 207.4 38.4 33.4 15.6 
Results from Discontinued Operations - net of taxes·E·· 2.1 1.8' 1.3 (0.9) 
Net Income 209.5 40.2 34.7 14.7 

Basic Earnings Per Share 

Continuing Operations 0.75 0.13 0.12 0.05 

Discontinued Operations 0.01 

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 0.75 $ $ 0.12 $ 0.05 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 

Continuing Operations 0.73 0.13 0.12 0.04 

Discontinued Operations 0.01 

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 0.73 $ 0.14 $ 0.12 $ 0.04 

• On February 14, 2012, Columbia of Ohio held its first standard choice offer auction which resulted in a retail price adjustment of $1.53 per Mcf. On February 14, 2012, the PUCO 
issued an entry that approved the results of the auction with the new retail price adjustment level effective April l, 2012. As a result of the implementation of the standard choice 
offer, Columbia of Ohio reports lower gross revenues and lower cost of sales. There is no impact on net revenues. 

• On September 4, 2012, Columbia Transmission filed a customer settlement that was approved by the FERC on January 24, 2013 in support of its comprehensive pipeline 
modernization program. As a result of this settlement Columbia Transmission's gross revenues decreased $81.7 million • partially offset by a decrease in depreciation costs of $33.4 
million. 

• On November 14, 201 1, NiSource Finance commenced a cash tender offer for up to $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of its outstanding 10.75% notes due 2016 and 
6.15% notes due 2013. A condition of the offering was that all validly tendered 2016 notes would be accepted for purchase before any 2013 notes were accepted. On December 13, 
2011, NiSource Finance announced that approximately $125.3 million of the aggregate principal amount of its outstanding 10.75% notes due 2016 were validly tendered and 
accepted for purchase. In addition, approximately $228.7 million of the aggregate principal amount of outstanding 6.15% notes due 2013 were validly tendered, of which $124.7 
million were accepted for purchase. In accordance with the provisions of ASC 470, Debt, NiSource Finance determined the debt issued on November 23, 2011, was substantially 
different from the tendered notes, and therefore the transaction qualified as a debt extinguishment. NiSource Finance recorded a $53.9 million loss on early extinguishment of long~ 
term debt. primarily attributable to early redemption premiums and unamortized discounts and fees. 
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• During the fourth quarter of 2011. NiSource reviewed its current estimates for future environmental remediation costs related to the Company's MGP sites. Following the review, 
NiSource revised its estimates based on expected remediation activities and experience with similar facilities and recorded $35.5 million of expense at subsidiaries for which 
environmental expense is not probable of recovery from customers. 

• During the fourth quarter of 2011, NiSource recorded a reserve of $22.6 million on certain assets related to the wind down of the unregulated natural gas marketing business. 

26. Supplemental Cash Flow Information 

The following tables provide additional information regarding NiSource's Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended 
December 31,2012,2011 and 2010: 

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Inforniation 

Non-cash transactions: 

Capital expenditures included in current liabilities 

Change in equity investments related to unrealized losses 

Stock issuance to employee saving plans 

Schedule of interest and income taxes paid: 

Cash paid for interest,. net of interest capitalized amounts 

Cash paid for income taxes 

131 

s 162.6 $ 

27.3 

s 386.8 $ 

8.2 

2011 2010 

98.3 $ 106.0 
(24.1) 

25.8 19.7 

369.2 $ 393.0 

9.3 68.9 
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Al!SEhfS .. u:u: .. uuc 
Investments and Other Assets: 

ftiv~~rlt~ililiiiiilfifu,fry l:ompanies 

Total Investments and Other Assets 

Cillfen! As~ets~ 
Other current assets 

Other non-current assets 
TOTAL ;\SSETS ... 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

Capitalization: 

·IT?~tC'.'!!InM&!f~"JC:eqm!Ys~~ 

Total Capitalization 

Cl,l!l;<:l'lt lial>ilit!¢. u:u:uucc.c •• :u. 
Notes payable to subsidiaries 

otliet 1uiir-CU:rreD.t 1ili.ffilltt~ 
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

B ALANCE S HEET 

The accompanying Notes to Condensed Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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819.7 

819.7 

65.0 

10,441.6 

863.8; 

$ 

2011 

9,249.7 

9,249.7 

353.7 

353.7 

53.3 

9,6.56.7 

4,997.3 

4,997.3 

613.3 

3,996.2 

49.9 

9,656.7 
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S TATEMENTOFI NCOME 

Year Ended December 31, (in millions, except per share 2012 2011 2010 
amounts) 

Equity in net earnings of consolidated subsidiaries 547.9 $ 428.4 $ 422.8 

Other income (deductions): 

~dministrative and general expenses (2.9) (13.5) (11.3) 

Interest income 4.6 1.2 0.7 

Interest expense (227.6) (206.1) (230.3) 

Other, net (10.0) (10.0) (4.0) 

Total Other income (deductions) {235.9) {228.4) {244.9) 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 312.0 200.0 177.9 

Income taxes {98.6) (94.8) (98.9) 

Income from continuing operations 410.6 294.8 276.8 

Income from discontinued operations - net ,of taxes 5.5 4.3 5.7 

Gain on Disposition of discontinued operations- net of taxes 0.1 

NET INCOME :·c''c• s 416.1 $ 299.1 $ 282.6 

Average common shares outstanding (millions) 291.9 280.4 277.8 
Diluted average~6i'i$hai'c$'(nilliil:lns)' ···· ·········· 308.4 288.5 -280.1 

Basic earnings per share 

Cont\P.uingpperaij'qmJ $ 1.41 $ 1.05 $ 1.00 

Discontinued operations 0.02 0.01 0.02 

Basi£ earPing5 per share $ 1.43 $ 1.06 $ 1.02 

Diluted earnings per share 

Cont\P.uing operations s 1.37 $ 1.02 $ 0.99 

Discontinued operations 0.02 0.01 0.02 

nill!te.J earnings per share $ 1.39 $ 1.03 $ 1.01 

The accompanying Notes to Condensed Financial Statements are an integral part of these slatements. 
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Year Ended December 31, (in millions, net of taxes) 

Net Income 
Other oomprehensiv~ income{Io$s): 

Net unrealized (loss) gain on available-for-sale securities Cll 

Net umealized gam (loss) on c#Sh flow hedges m 
Unrecognized pension benefit and OPEB costs "' 

Total other comprehensive loss 

Total Comprehensive Income 

$ 

$ 

2012 

416.1 

(2.3) 

3.2 

(6.7) 

(5.8) 

410.3 

$ 

$ 

2011 2010 

299.I $ 282.6 

1.2 1.1 

3.0 (13.8) 

(6.0) 0.7 

(1.8) (12.0) 

297.3 $ 270.6 

(!) Net Wlrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale securities, net of$1.7 million tax benefit, $0.7 million and $0.8 million tax expense in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

(2) 

(3) 

Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives qualifylng as cash flow hedges, net of $2.1 million tax expense, $1.1 million tax benefit and $7.6 million tax expense in 2012, 

2011 and 2010, respectively. Net unrealized gains on cash flow hedges includes gains of$1.0 million and $1.4 million, and losses of$15.4 million related to the unrealized 

gains and losses of interest rate swaps held by NiSource's unconsolidated equity method investments in 2012.2011 and 2010, respectively. 

Unrecognized pension benefit and OPEB costs, net of$4.2 million tax benefit, $3.7 million and $0.4 million tax expense in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

The accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 

Net cash provided by opemting activities 

Cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities: 

(Increase) decreasem!i0tes'receivab1e ffom'ifubsldiaries 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 

Cash Jlows pro\li~tlcl l>Y:![1!•«1 In) financing actl\litl~•: 
Issuance of common shares 

lncrease(decl"eaSi:)ili"notes payable to subsidiaries 

Cash dividends paid on common shares 

Acquisition of tretisury shares 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net increase in ca.Sh'and c!l.sh equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

The accompanying Notes to Condensed Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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2012 

393.9 

(487.4) 

383.5 

(273.2) 

(10.0) 

100.3 

6.8 

2011 2010 

$ 313.6 $ 212.9 

(139.3) • 31.4 

31.4 

24.4 14.4 

63.8 (1.6) 

(257.8) (255.6) 

(3.1) (1.5) 

(172.7) (244.3) 

1.6 

.J.6 $ 
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NOTES TO C ONDENSED FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS 

I. Dividends from Subsidiaries 

Cash dividends paid to NiSource by its consolidated subsidiaries were: $378.0 million, $440.0 million and $232.0 million in 2012, 2011 and 
2010, respectively. 

2. Commitments and Contingencies 

NiSource and its subsidiaries are parties to litigation, environmental and other matters. Refer to Note 20, "Other Commitments and 
Contingencies," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information. As a part of normal business, NiSource and certain 
subsidiaries enter into various agreements providing financial or performance assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries. Such 
agreements include guarantees and stand-by letters of credit. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the 
creditworthiness otherwise attributed to a subsidiary on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish 
the subsidiaries' intended commercial purposes. The maximum potential amount of future payments NiSource could have been required to make 
under these guarantees as of December 31, 2012 was approximately $8.0 billion . Of this amount, approximately $6.9 billion relates to 
guarantees of wholly-owned consolidated entities. 

3. Related Party Transactions 

Balances due to or due from related parties included in the Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows: 

At December 31, (in millions) 

Current assets due from subsidiaries <n 

Current liabilities due to subsidiaries m 
Non-cti\rer¥1U.billties due to S]lbsidiaries <1> 

(I) The balances at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are classified as Current assets on the Balance Sheets. 

2012 

785.4 $ 

833.1 

3,996.2 

2011 

288.6 

602.6 

3,9962 

mThe balances at December 31,2012 and 2011 are classified as Current liabilities on the Balance Sheets. At December 31,2012 and 2011,$793.0 million and $573.7 million related 
to interest on affiliated notes payable, respectively. 

illlbe balances at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are classified as Notes payable to subsidiaries on the Balance Sheets. 

4. Notes to Financial Statements 

See Item 8 "Notes to Consolidsted Financial Statements," for the full text of notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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($in millions) 

Reserves Deducted in Consolidated Balance Sheet from 
Assets to.Whic~:Jlll'Y Apply:";}:.i'"' · 

Reserve for accounts receivable 

~e 'fuF6th~fu'~~~~ 

Reserves Classified Under Reserve Section of 
Consolidated Balance Sheet: 

R~e-fOI!iCOBt of &peratiOhaJ gas" 

($in millions) 

1!'~~-~~'"'i:!IIDl!OI!~ImflfalilllcesheOf'tiOm 
Assets to Which"nieJ,,APi)I)i; 

Reserve for accounts receivable 

Reserves Classified Under Reserve Section of 
Consolidated Balance Sheet: 

Reserve for cost of opCiiitional gaS:: 

($in millions) 

Reserves Deducted irf ConSolidated Balanci{Sheet from 
AssC:ts to Wblch They Appl)': 

Reserve for accounts receivable 

Reserve for other investments 

Reserves Classified Under Reserve Section of 
Consolidated Balance Sheet: 

Reserve for __ cost of operational gas 

Twelve months ended December 31, 2012 

Additions 

$ 

Balance 
Jan.1,2012 

2.'7 

Charged to Costs 
and Expenses 

.. . {1.5} 

Charged to 
Other Account 

"' 

53.8 

Tweh•e months ended Oet:ember 31,2011 

Additions 

$ 

Balance 
Jan. 1, 2011 

Charged to Costs 
and Expenses 

Charged. to 
Other Account 

'" 

37.4 $ 13.8 $ 76.6 

3.0 

Twelve months ended Detember 31, 2010 

Additions 

$ 

Balance 
Jan. l, 2010 

Charged to Costs 
and Expenses 

Charged to 
Other Accounl 

"' 

39.6 $ 17.6 $ 

3.0 

5.7 

n1Charged to Other Accounts reflects the deferral of bad debt expense to a regulatory asset. 

137 

$ 

$ 

Deductions for 
Purposes for 

which Reserves 
were Created 

73.5 $ 

1.2 

Deductions for 
Purposes for 

which Reserves 
were Created 

97.3 $ 

Deductions for 
Purposes for 

which Reserves 
were Created 

0.1 

Balance 
Dec. 31,2012 

24.0 

3.0 

Balance 
Dec. 31,2011 

30.5 

3.~ 

2.7 

Balance 
Dec. 31,2010 

2.7 
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N I S OURCE I NC. 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
NiSource's chief executive officer and its principal financial officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of NiSource's disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defmed in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)), have concluded based on the evaluation required by paragraph (b) of 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, NiSource's disclosure controls and procedures 
were effective to provide reasonable assurance that financial information was processed, recorded and reported accurately. 

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financia1 Reporting 
NiSource management, including NiSource's principal executive officer and principal financial officer, are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining NiSource's internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Securities 
Exchange Act of I 934, as amended. However, management would note that a control system can provide only reasonable, not absolute, 
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. NiSource's management has adopted the framework set forth in the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission report, Internal Control - Integrated Framework, the most commonly used and 
understood framework for evaluating internal control over financial reporting, as its framework for evaluating the reliability and effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting. During 2012, NiSource conducted an evaluation of its internal control over financial reporting. Based 
on this evaluatio~ NiSource management concluded that NiSource's internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the end of the 
period covered by this annual report. 

Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitatio~ controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that 
information required to be disclosed by NiSource in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and 
communicated to NiSource's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely 
decisions regarding required disclosure. 

Deloitte & Touche LLP, NiSource's independent registered public accounting flllll, issued an attestation report on NiSource's internal controls 
over fmancial reporting which is contained in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 

Changes in Internal Controls 
There have been no changes in NiSource's internal control over financial reporting during the most recently completed quarter covered by this 
report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to affect, NiSource's internal control over financial reporting. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

Not applicable. 
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Information regarding executive officers is included as a supplemental item at the end ofltem 4 of Part I of the Form 10-K. 

Infonnation regarding directors will be included in the Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders 
to be held on May 14, 2013, which information is incorporated by reference. 

Information regarding NiSource's code of ethics, the audit committee and the audit committee financial expert and procedures for shareholder 
recommendations for director nominations will be included in the Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders to be held on May 14, 2013 , which information is incorporated by reference. 

ITEM II. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Information regarding executive compensation will be included in the Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders to be held on May 14, 2013, which information is incorporated by reference. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER 
MATTERS 

Infonnation regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and the Equity Compensation Plan Information will be 
included in the Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 14, 2013 , which 
infonnation is incorporated by reference. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS. AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

Information required under this Item with respect to certain relationships and related transactions and director independence will be included in 
the Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 14, 2013 , which information is 
incorporated by reference. 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 

Information regarding principal accounting fees and services will be included in the Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement for the 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 14,2013, which information is incorporated by reference. 
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules 
The following financial statements and financial statement schedules filed as a part of the Annual Report on Form 1 0-K are included in Item 8, 
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 

Exhibits 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Statements of Consolidated Income 

Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows 

Statements of Consolidated Long-Term Debt 

Statements of Consolidated Common Stockholders' Eguitv 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Schedule I 

Schedule II 

Page 

56 

58 

59 
60 

62 

63 
65 
67 

ill. 
ill 

The exhibits filed herewith as a part of this report on Form I 0-K are listed on the Exhibit Index immediately following the signature page. Each 
management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement ofNiSource, listed on the Exhibit Index, is separately identified by an asterisk. 

Pursuant to Item 60I(b), paragraph (4)(iii)(A) of Regulation S-K, certain instruments representing long-term debt of NiSource's subsidiaries 
have not been included as Exhibits because such debt does not exceed 10% of the total assets of NiSource and its subsidiaries on a consolidated 
basis. NiSource agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon request. 

140 



Table of Contents 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or l5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
hereunto duly authorized. 

Dare -----"F.,eb"ru"ary""'-'l.z9~2.,0"1"3'--- By; 

NiSource Inc. 

(Registrant) 

lsi ROBERT C. SKAGGS, JR. 

Robert C. Skaggs, Jr. 

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 

(Principa1 Executive Officer) 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and 
on the dates indicated 

IS/ ROBERT C. SKAGGS, JR. 

Robert C. Skaggs, Jr. 

IS/ STEPHEN P. SMJTH 

Stephen P. Smilh 

IS/ JON D. VEURINK 

Jon D. Veurink 

IS/ IAN M. ROLLAND 

[an M. Rolland 

IS/ RICHARD A. ABDOO 

Richard A. Abdoo 

IS/ ARISTIDES S. CANDRIS 

Aristides S. Candris 

lSI SIGMUND L. CORNELIUS 

Sigmund L. Cornelius 

IS/ MICHAEL E. JESANIS 

Michael E. Jesanis 

IS/ MARTYR. KITTRELL 

Marty R. Kittrell 

lSI W. LEE NUTTER 

W. Lee Nutter 

IS/ DEBORAH S. PARKER 

Deborah S. Parker 

IS/ TERESA A. TAYLOR 

Teresa A. Taylor 

President, Chief 

Executive Officer and Director 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

Executive Vice President and 

Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

Vice President and 

Chief Accounting Officer 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 

Chairman and Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

February 19,2013 

February 19,2013 

February 19,2013 

February 19,2013 

February 19,2013 

February 19,2013 

February 19, 2013 

February 19,2013 

February 19,2013 

February 19,2013 

February 19, 2013 

February 19, 2013 



IS/ RICHARD L. THOMPSON Director February 19,2013 

Richard L Thompson 

IS! CAROLYNY. WOO Director February 19, 2013 

Carolyn Y. Woo 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 

EXHffiiT 
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF ITEM 

(3.1) 

(3.2) 

(4.!) 

(4.2) 

(4.3) 

(4.4) 

(4.5) 

(I 0.!) 

(I 0.2) 

(10.3) 

(10.4) 

(I 0.5) 

(10.6) 

(10.7) 

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the NiSource Inc. 
Form 10-Q filed on August 4, 2008). 

Bylaws ofNiSource Inc., as amended and restated through May II, 20 I 0 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
3.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on May 14, 2010). 

Indenture dated as of March I, 1988, between Northern Indiana and Manufacturers Hanover Trust Company, as 
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Northern Indiana Registration Statement (Registration No. 
33-44193)). 

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December I, 1991, between Northern Indiana and Manufacturers 
Hanover Trust Company, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Northern Indiana 
Registration Statement (Registration No. 33-63870)). 

Indenture Agreement between NIPSCO Industries, Inc., NIPSCO Capital Markets, Inc. and Chase Manhattan 
Bank as trustee dated February 14, 1997 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NIPSCO Industries, Inc. 
Registration Statement (Registration No. 333-22347)). 

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November I, 2000 among NiSource Capital Markets, Inc., NiSource 
Inc., New NiSource Inc., and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.45 to 
the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2000). 

Indenture, dated November 14, 2000, among NiSource Finance Corp., NiSource Inc., as guarantor, and The 
Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form S-3, dated 
November 17, 2000 (Registration No. 333-49330)). 

20 I 0 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to NiSource Inc. Definitive Proxy 
Statement to Shareholders held on May II, 2010, filed on April2, 2010).* 

NiSource Inc. Nonemployee Director Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective May 13, 2008 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit I 0.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form !O-K filed on February 27, 2009).* 

NiSource Inc. Nonemployee Director Retirement Plan, as amended and restated effective May 13, 2008. 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit I 0.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2009).* 

Supplemental Life Insurance Plan effective January I, 1991, as amended, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 
to the NIPSCO Industries, Inc. Form 8-K filed on March 25, 1992). * 

Form of Change in Control and Termination Agreement (applicable to each named executive officer hired prior 
to January 1,20IO)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on November 
4, 2008).* 

Form of Change in Control and Termination Agreement {applicable to each senior executive officer other than 
the Named Executive Officers hired prior to January I, 20 10). * ** 

Form of Agreement between NiSource Inc. and certain officers of Columbia Energy Group and schedule of 
parties to such Agreements (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K for the 



period ended December 31, 2002). • 
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(10.8) 

(10.9) 

(10.10) 

(10.11) 

(10.12) 

(10.13) 

(10.14) 

(10.15) 

(10.16) 

(10.17) 

(I 0.18) 

(I 0.19) 

(10.20) 

(10.21) 

(10.22) 

(10.23) 

(10.24) 

NiSource Inc. 1994 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective January I, 2005 (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on December 2, 2005).* 

lst Amendment to NiSource Inc. 1994 Long Term Incentive Plan, effective January 22, 2009. (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2009).* 

Form ofNonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the NiSource Inc. 1994 Long-Term Incentive Plan 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit l 0.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on January 3, 2005). * 

Form of Contingent Stock Agreement under the NiSource Inc. 1994 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit I 0.1 to NiSource Inc. Form I 0-Q filed on May 4, 20 I 0). • 

Form of Performance Share Agreement under the 20 I 0 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.15 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2010). * 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Nonemployee Directors under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive 
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K for the period ended December 
31, 2010).* 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the NiSource Inc. 1994 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit I 0.17 to the NiSource Inc. Form I 0-K for the period ended December 31, 201 0). • 

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.18 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2010).* 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-employee directors under the Non-employee Director 
Stock Incentive Plan. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K for the period 
ended December 31, 2010).* 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Nonemployee Directors under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive 
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on August 2, 2011).* 

Amended and Restated NiSource Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan effective May 13, 2011 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on October 28, 2011).* 

Amended and Restated Pension Restoration Plan for NiSource Inc. and Affiliates effective May 13,2011 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on October 28, 2011).* 

Amended Restated Savings Restoration Plan for NiSource Inc. and Affiliates effective October 22, 2012. * •• 

Amended and Restated NiSource Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan effective November 1, 2012. * ** 

NiSource Inc. Executive Severance Policy, as amended and restated, effective January 1, 2012. * ** 

Letter Agreement between NiSource Corporate Services Company and Stephen P. Smith dated May 14, 2008. 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2009).* 

Revolving Credit Agreement among NiSource Finance Corp., as Borrower, NiSource Inc., as Guarantor, the 
lender parties thereto as Lenders, Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch as Syndication Agent, The Bank Of 



Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Citibank, N.A., and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Co-Documentation Agents and 
Barclays Bank PLC, as Administrative Agent dated May 15, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit I 0.1 to 
the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2012). 
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(10.25) Note Purchase Agreement, dated August 23,2005, by and among NiSource Finance Corp., as issuer, NiSource 
Inc., as guarantor, and the purchasers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit I 0.1 to the NiSource 
Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 26, 2005). 

(10.26) Amendment No. 1, dated as of November 10, 2008, to the Note Purchase Agreement by and among NiSource 
Finance Corp., as issuer, NiSource Inc., as guarantor, and the purchasers whose names appear on the signature 
page thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 27, 
2009). 

(10.27) Guaranty ofNiSource Inc. in favor of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the NiSource lnc. Form 8-K filed on August 30, 2007). 

( 1 0.28) Agreement for Business Process and Support Services between NiSource Corporate Services Company and IBM, 
effective June 20,2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q for the period 
ended June 30, 2005). 

(10.29) Amendment #4 to Agreement for Business Process and Support Services between NiSource Corporate Services 
Company and IBM, effective December 1, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the NiSource lnc. 
Form 1 0-K for the period ended December 31, 2007). • 

(12) Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. • * 

(21) List of Subsidiaries. •• 

(23) Consent ofDeloitte & Touche LLP.** 

(31.1) Certification of Robert C. Skaggs, Jr., Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of2002.** 

(31.2) Certification of Stephen P. Smith, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002.** 

(32.1) Certification of Robert C. Skaggs, Jr., Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of2002 (furnished herewith).** 

(32.2) Certification of Stephen P. Smith, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002 (furnished herewith).** 

(IOI.INS) XBRL Instance Document.** 

(I 0 I.SCH) XBRL Schema Document. •• 

(I 0 !.CAL) XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.** 

(IOI.LAB) XBRL Labels Linkbase Document.** 

(IOI.PRE) XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.** 

(I 0 l.DEF) XBRL Definition Linkbase Document. •• 

• Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement ofNiSource lnc . 
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** Exhibit filed herewith, 

References made to Northern Indiana filings can be found at Commission File Number 001-04125. References made to NiSource Inc. filings 
made prior to November I, 2000 can be found at Commission File Number 001-09779. 
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Exhibit 10.6 

NISOURCE INC. 

FORM OF 

CHANGE IN CONTROL AND TERMINATION AGREEMENT 

NiSource Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Employer"), which as used herein shall mean NiSource Inc. and all of 

its Affiliates, and [Insert Name] ("Executive") hereby enter into a Change in Control and Termination Agreement as of 

[Insert Date] (the "Effective Date"), which Agreement is hereinafter set forth ("Agreement"). 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, Employer considers the ability to attract and retain talented management to be part of its corporate 

strategy and necessary in protecting and enhancing the interests of the Employer and its shareholders. As part of this 

strategy, Employer desires to retain Executive in its employment notwithstanding any actual or threatened Change in 

Control; and 

WHEREAS, Executive and Employer desire to enter into this Agreement pertaining to the terms of Executive's 

employment in the event of any actual or threatened Change in Control; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, and other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Term . This Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall continue in effect until the 

date which is 24 months after the date on which either Employer or Executive has given written notice to the 

other party of its or his election to have this Agreement terminate ("Term"). 

2. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement: 

(a) "Affiliate" or "Associate" shall have the meaning set forth in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934. 

(b) 

reduction for purposes 

"Base Salary" shall mean Executive's monthly base salary at the rate in effect on the date of a 

of paragraph (g) of this Section, or on the date of a termination of employment under 

circumstances described in subsections 3(a) or (b) below, whichever is higher; provided, however, that such rate shall in 

no event be less than the highest rate in effect for Executive at any time during the Term. 

(c) "Beneficiary" shall mean the person or entity designated by Executive, by written instrument 

delivered to Employer, to receive the benefits payable under this Agreement in the event of his death. If Executive fails 

to designate a Beneficiary, or if no Beneficiary survives Executive, such death benefits shall be paid: 

(i) to his surviving spouse; or 

(ii) if there is no surviving spouse, to his living descendants per stiroes ; or 



(iii) if there is neither a surviving spouse nor descendants, to his duly appointed and qualified 

executor or personal representative. 

(d) "Bonus" shall mean Executive's target annual incentive bonus compensation for the calendar 

year in which the date of a termination of employment under circumstances described in subsection 3(a) below occurs, 

under the NiSource Inc. Corporate Incentive Plan or such other incentive bonus compensation plan then maintained by 

Employer ("Annual Incentive Plan"); provided, however, that such target annual incentive bonus compensation shall in 

no event be less than the highest target annual incentive bonus compensation of Executive under any such Annual 

Incentive Plan for any calendar year commencing during the Term. 

events: 

(e) A "Change in Control" shall be deemed to take place on the occurrence of any of the following 

(I) The acquisition by an entity, person or group (including all Affiliates or Associates of such 

entity, person or group) of beneficial ownership, as that term is defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934, of capital stock of NiSource Inc. entitled to exercise more than 30% of the 

outstanding voting power of all capital stock of NiSource Inc. entitled to vote in elections of directors 

("Voting Power"); 

(2) The effective time of (i) a merger or consolidation of NiSource Inc. with one or more other 

corporations unless the holders of the outstanding Voting Power of NiSource Inc. immediately prior to 

such merger or consolidation (other than the surviving or resulting corporation or any Affiliate or 

Associate thereof) hold at least 50% of the Voting Power of the surviving or resulting corporation (in 

substantially the same proportion as the Voting Power of NiSource Inc. immediately prior to such merger 

or consolidation), or (ii) a transfer of a Substantial Portion of the Property, ofNiSource Inc. other than to 

an entity of which NiSource Inc. owns at least 50% of the Voting Power; or 

(3) The election to the Board of Directors of NiSource Inc. (the "Board") of candidates who 

were not recommended for election by the Board, if such candidates constitute a majority of those elected 

in that particular election (for this purpose, recommended directors will not include any candidate who 

becomes a member of the Board as a result of an actual or threatened election contest or proxy or consent 

solicitation on behalf of anyone other than the Board or as a result of any appointment, nomination, or 

other agreement intended to avoid or settle a contest or solicitation). Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 

Change in Control shall not be deemed to take place by virtue of any transaction in which Executive is a 

participant in a group effecting an acquisition of NiSource Inc. and, after such acquisition, Executive 

holds an equity interest in the entity that has acquired NiSource Inc. 



(f) "Good Cause" shall be deemed to exist if, and only if Employer notifies Executive, in 
writing, within 60 days of its knowledge that one of the following events occurred: 

(I) Executive engages in acts or omissions constituting dishonesty, intentional breach of 

fiduciary obligation or intentional wrongdoing or malfeasance, in each case that results in substantial 

harm to Employer; or 

(2) Executive is convicted of a criminal violation involving fraud or dishonesty. 

(g) "Good Reason" all be deemed to exist if, and only if; 

(I) a significant diminution in the nature or the scope of Executive's authorities or duties; 

(2) there is a significant reduction in Executive's monthly rate of Base Salary and his 

opportunity to earn a bonus under an incentive bonus compensation plan maintained by Employer 

or his benefits; or 

(3) Employer changes by 50 miles or more the principal location at which Executive is required 

to perform services as of the date of a Change in Control. 

(h) "Pension Plan" shall mean any Retirement Plan that is a defined benefit plan as defined 

in Section 3(35) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"). 

(i) "Retirement Plan" shall mean any qualified or nonqualified supplemental employee pension 

benefit plan, as defmed in Section 3(2) of ERISA, currently or hereinafter made available by Employer in which 

Executive is eligible to participate. 

(j) "Severance Period" shall mean the period beginning on the date Executive's employment with 

Employer terminates under circumstances described in subsection 3(a) and ending on the date 24 months thereafter. 

(k) "Substantial Portion of the Property of NiSource Inc." shall mean 50% of the aggregate book 

value of the assets of NiSource Inc. and its Affiliates and Associates as set forth on the most recent balance sheet of 

NiSource Inc., prepared on a consolidated basis, by its regularly employed, independent, certified public accountants. 

(I) "Welfare Plan" shall mean any health and dental plan, disability plan, survivor income plan or life 

insurance plan, as detmed in Section 3(1) of ERISA, currently or hereafter made available by Employer in which 

Executive is eligible to participate. 

3. Benefits Upon Termination of Employment. 

(a) The following provisions will apply if a Change in Control occurs during the Term, and 

at any time during the 24 months after the Change in Control occurs (whether during or after the expiration of the 

Term), the employment of Executive with Employer is terminated Employer 



for any reason other than Good Cause, or Executive terminates his employment with Employer for Good Reason. 

In addition, the following provisions also will apply if (i) a Change in Control occurs during the Term, (ii) 

Employer has terminated Executive's employment other than for Good Cause during the year prior to the Change 

in Control but after a third party and/or Employer had taken steps reasonably calculated to effect a Change in 

Control and (iii) it is reasonably demonstrated by Executive that such termination of employment was in 

connection with or in anticipation of a Change in Control. 

(I) Employer shall pay Executive an amount equal to 24 times the sum of(a) Executive's Base 

Salary plus (b) one-twelfth of his Bonus. Such amount shall be paid to Executive in a lump sum within 60 

days following the later of Executive's termination of employment or a Change in Control. 

(2) Employer shall pay Executive an amount equal to the pro rata portion of Executive's target 

annual incentive bonus compensation for the calendar year under the Annual Incentive Plan then 

maintained by Employer, that is applicable to the period commencing on the first day of such calendar 

year and ending on the date of termination. Such bonus amount shall be paid to Executive in a lump sum 

within 30 days after his date of termination of employment. 

(3) Executive shall receive any and all benefits accrued through the date of termination of 

employment under any Retirement Plan, Welfare Plan or other plan or program in which he participates 

at the date of termination of employment. The amount, form and time of payment of such benefits will be 

determined by the terms of such Retirement Plan, Welfare Plan and other plan or program. Further, 

Executive's employment shall be deemed to have terminated by reason of retirement without regarding to 

vesting limitations in all such plans and other plans or programs not subject to the qualification 

requirements of Section 40l(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended ("Code"), under 

circumstances that have the most favorable result for Executive thereunder for all purposes of such Plans 

and other plans or programs. Any such payments shall be paid to Executive in a lump sum within 30 days 

after his date of termination of employment, or if a payment is not permitted at termination of 

employment under the terms of the applicable plan or program, within 30 days after the earliest permitted 

payment date under the plan or program, in accordance with Section 409A of the Code. 

(4) If upon the date of termination of Executive's employment Executive holds any options with 

respect to stock of Employer, all such options will immediately become exercisable upon such date and 

will be exercisable for 200 days thereafter (but not longer than, the regularly scheduled term of such 

options). Any restrictions on stock of Employer 



owned by Executive on the date oftennination of his employment will lapse on such date. 

(5) In lieu of a contribution by Employer to, or a reimbursement to Executive for, any coverage 

premiums and any other expenses payable by Executive during the Severance Period under all Welfare 

Plans maintained by Employer in which he and his spouse and other dependents were participating 

immediately prior to the date of his termination, Employer will pay to Executive an amount equal to 

130% of such coverage premiums and expenses otherwise payable during the Severance Period. Such 

amount shall be paid to Executive in a lump sum within 60 days following Executive's termination of 

employment. 

( 6) Executive shall receive outplacement services for a period commencing on the date of 

termination of employment and continuing until the earlier to occur of the Executive accepting other 

employment or 12 months after the date of termination, in an amount not to exceed $25,000. 

(7) During the Severance Period, Executive shall not be entitled to reimbursement for fringe 

benefits, including without limitation, dues and expenses related to club memberships, automobile 

expenses, expenses for professional services and other similar perquisites. 

(b) If the employment of Executive with Employer is terminated by Employer or Executive 

other than under circumstances set forth in subsection 3(a), Executive's Base Salary shall be paid through the 

date of his termination, and Employer shall have no further obligation to Executive or any other person under this 

Agreement. Such termination shall have no effect upon Executive's other rights, including but not limited to, 

rights under the Retirement Plans and the Welfare Plans. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, (I) in the event Employer shall terminate the 

employment of Executive for Good Cause hereunder, Employer shall give Executive at least thirty (30) days prior 

written notice specifying in detail the reason or reasons for Executive's termination, and (2) in the event Executive 

terminates his employment for Good Reason hereunder, Executive shall give Employer at least 30 days prior written 

notice specifying in detail the Good Reason conditions. If Employer cures such conditions, any subsequent termination 

of employment by Executive will not be considered to be made for Good Reason. 

(d) This Agreement shall have no effect, and Employer shall have no obligations hereunder, if 

Executive's employment terminates for any reason at any time other than (i) during the 24 months following a Change in 

Control; or (ii) as otherwise specifically set forth in Subsection 3(a). 

(e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, in the event that 

a Change in Control shall occur, and a final determination is made by legislation, regulation, 



ruling directed to Executive or Employer, by court decision, or by independent tax counsel selected by the 

Executive and approved by the Employer, that the aggregate amount of any payment made to Executive (I) 

hereunder, and (2) pursuant to any plan, program or policy of Employer in connection with, on account of, or as a 

result of, such Change in Control ("Total Payments") will be subject to the excise tax provisions of Section 4999 

of the Code ("Excise Tax"), or any successor section thereof, Executive shall be entitled to receive from 

Employer one dollar less than the Total Payments otherwise payable to the Executive that would constitute 

"parachute payments" under Section 4999 of the Code (the "Reduced Amount"); provided, however that if, after 

payment ofthe Excise Tax and any other federal, state, local, and other taxes imposed on the Total Payments, the 

amount to be paid to the Executive would exceed the Reduced Amount, the Executive shall receive the Total 

Payments. The Total Payments, however, shall be subject to any federal, state and local income and employment 

taxes thereon. For this purpose, Executive shall be deemed to be in the highest marginal rate of federal, state and 

local taxes. In the event that the Executive is paid the Reduced Amount, the reduction of the Total Payments 

shall be determined in a manner that has the least economic cost to the Executive. If the economic cost is 

equivalent, the Total Payments will be reduced in the inverse order of when the Total Payments would have been 

made to the Executive until the Reduced Amount is achieved. 

4. Setoff . No payments or benefits payable to or with respect to Executive pursuant to this 

Agreement shall be reduced by any amount Executive or his spouse or Beneficiary, or any other beneficiary 

under the Pension Plans, may earn or receive from employment with another employer or from any other source, 

except as expressly provided in subsection 3(a)(6). 

s. Death . If Executive's employment with Employer terminates under circumstances described in 

subsections 3(a) or (b), then upon Executive's subsequent death, all unpaid amounts payable to Executive under 

subsections 3(a)(l), (2) or (3) or 3(b), or Section 4, if any, shall be paid to his Beneficiary. 

6. No Solicitation of Representatives and Employees . Executive agrees that he shall not, during the Term 

or the Severance Period, directly or indirectly, in his individual capacity or otherwise, induce, cause, persuade, or 

attempt to do any of the foregoing in order to cause, any representative, agent or employee of Employer to terminate 

such person's employment relationship with Employer, or to violate the terms of any agreement between said 

representative, agent or employee and Employer. 

7. Confidentialitv . Executive acknowledges that preservation of a continuing business relationship 

between Employer and their respective customers, representatives, and employees is of critical importance to the 

continued business success of Employer and that it is the active policy of Employer to guard as confidential certain 

information not available to the public and relating to the business affairs of Employer. In view of the foregoing, 

Executive agrees that he shall not during the Term and at any time thereafter, without the prior written consent of 

Employer, disclose to any person or entity any such confidential 



information that was obtained by Executive in the course of his employment by Employer. This section shall not be 

applicable if and to the extent Executive is required to testifY in a legislative, judicial or regulatory proceeding pursuant 

to an order of Congress, any state or local legislature, a judge, or an administrative law judge or is otherwise required by 

law to disclose such information. 

8. Forfeiture . If Executive shall at any time violate any obligation of his under Sections 7 or 8 in a 

manner that results in significant damage to the Employer or its business, he shall immediately forfeit his right to any 

benefits under this Agreement, and Employer shall thereafter have no further obligation hereunder to Executive or his 

spouse, Beneficiary or any other person. 

9. Executive Assignment . No interest of Executive, his spouse or any Beneficiary, or any other 

beneficiary under the Pension Plans, under this Agreement, or any right to receive any payment or distribution 

hereunder, shall be subject in any manner to sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, attachment, garnishment, or other 

alienation or encumbrance of any kind, nor may such interest or right to receive a payment or distribution be taken, 

voluntarily or involuntarily, for the satisfaction of the obligations or debts of, or other claims against, Executive or his 

spouse, Beneficiary or other beneficiary, including claims for alimony, support, separate maintenance, and claims in 

bankruptcy proceedings. 

10. Benefits Unfunded. All rights under this Agreement of Executive and his spouse, Beneficiary or other 

beneficiary under the Pension Plans, shall at all times be entirely unfunded, and no provision shall at any time be made 

with respect to segregating any assets of Employer for payment of any amounts due hereunder. None of Executive, his 

spouse, Beneficiary or any other beneficiary under the Pension Plans shall have any interest in or rights against any 

specific assets of Employer, and Executive and his spouse, Beneficiary or other beneficiary shall have only the rights of 

a general unsecured creditor of Employer. 

II. Waiver . No waiver by any party at any time of any breach by the other party of, or compliance with, 

any condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed 

by such other party shall be deemed a waiver of any other provisions or conditions at the same time or at any prior or 

subsequent time. 

12. Litigation Expenses . Following the occurrence of Change in Control, Employer shall pay 

Executive's reasonable attorneys' fees and legal expenses in connection with any judicial proceeding to enforce 

this Agreement, or to construe or determine the validity of this Agreement or otherwise in the event Executive is 

successful in one material claim in such litigation. Such reimbursement shall occur by March 15 of the calendar 

year after the calendar year in which such reimbursement obligation as fmally determined. 

13. Continuing Indemnification and Advancement of Expenses . Following the occurrence of a Change in 

Control, to the full extent permitted by law, Employer shall indemnifY Executive against any actual or threatened action, 

suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, arising 



by reason of Executive's status as a director, officer, employee and/or agent of Employer. In addition, to the extent 
permitted by law, Employer shall advance or reimburse any expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, Executive 

incurs in investigating and defending any actual or threatened action, suit or proceeding for which Executive may be 

entitled to indemnification under this Section 13. Executive agrees to repay any expenses paid or reimbursed by 

Employer if it is ultimately determined that Executive is not legally entitled to be indemnified by Employer. 

14. APPlicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted pursuant to the laws of Indiana. 

15. Entire Agreement . Tills Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the Employer and 

Executive and supersedes any and all previous agreements; written or oral; between the parties relating to the subject 

matter hereof. For the avoidance of doubt, if Executive becomes entitled to the benefits under this Agreement, Executive 

shall not be eligible for any duplicative benefits under any other agreement, offer letter, plan, program or policy. No 

amendment or modification of the terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless reduced to 

writing and signed by Employer and Executive. 
16. No Employment Contract . Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to be an 

employment contract between Executive and Employer or provide Executive with the right to continued Employment 

with Employer. 
17. Counterparts . Tills Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original. 
18. Severabilitv . In the event any provision of this Agreement is held illegal or invalid, the remaining 

provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

19. Successors . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 

their respective heirs, representatives and successors. 

20. Employment with an Affiliate . For purposes of tills Agreement, (A) employment or termination of 

employment of Executive shall mean employment or termination of employment with Employer and all Affiliates, (B) 

Base Salary and Bonus shall include remuneration received by Executive from Employer and all Affiliates, and (C) the 

terms Pension Plan, Retirement Plan and Welfare Plan maintained or made available by Employer shall include any such 

plans of any Affiliate of Employer. 
21. Notice . Notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and sent by registered mail, return 

receipt requested, to the following addresses or to such other address as the party being notified may have previously 

furnished to the other party by written notice: 

If to Employer: NiSource Inc. 
801 E. 86th Avenue 
Merrillville, Indiana 4641 0 



Attention: Robert D. Campbell 

If to Executive: [Insert Name and Address] 

22. 409A Savings Clause . Employer and Executive intend that this Agreement be interpreted in a 

manner that is compliant with Code Section 409A so that Executive does not incur additional taxes or penalties 

under Code Section 409A. If and to the extent that any payment or benefit under this Agreement is determined by 

Employer to constitute "non-qualified deferred compensation" subject to Code Section 409A and is payable to 

Executive by reason of Executive's termination of employment, then (a) such payment or benefit shall be made 

or provided to Executive only upon a "separation from service" as defined for purposes of Code Section 409A 

under applicable regulations and (b) if Executive is a "specified employee" (within the meaning of Code Section 

409A and as determined by Employer), such payment or benefit shall not be made or provided before the date 

that is six months after the date of Executive's separation from service (or Executive's earlier death). Any amount 

not paid in respect of the six 

month period specified in the preceding sentence will be paid to Executive in a lump sum after the expiration of such six 

month period. Any such payment or benefit shall be treated as a separate payment for purposes of Section Code 409 A to 

the extent Code Section 409A applies to such payments. Further, to the extent any such payment is to be made because 

of a termination for Good Reason or Change in Control under this Agreement, such Good Reason or Change in Control 

event shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with the definition of "good reason" or "change in control" for purposes 

of Code Section 409A. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , Executive has hereunto set his hand, and Employer has 

caused these presents to be executed in its name on its behalf, all on the __ day of ____ ., 20_ 

NISOURCE INC. 

By: 

Title: President & CEO 

EXECUTIVE 

[Name] 
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SAVINGS RESTORATION PLAN 
FOR NISOURCE INC. AND AFFILIATES 

ARTICLE I 

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 

1.1 Background. Prior to January I, 2004, Columbia Energy Group sponsored the Savings Restoration Plan for 
Columbia Energy Group for eligible executives of Columbia Energy Group and certain Affiliates. Effective January I, 
2004, NiSource Inc., the parent company of Columbia Energy Group, assumed sponsorship of the Savings Restoration 
Plan for Columbia Energy Group, renamed the Plan the Savings Restoration Plan for NiSource Inc. and Affiliates, and 
broadened the Plan to include all employees ofNiSource Inc. and Affiliates. 

The Plan was amended and restated effective January I, 2004, and amended effective January I, 2005. The Plan 
was then amended and restated again effective January I, 2005, to comply with Code Section 409A, and guidance and 
regulations thereunder, with respect to benefits earned under the Plan from and after January I, 2005. Benefits under the 
Plan earned and vested prior to January I, 2005 shall be administered without giving effect to Code Section 409A, and 
guidance and regulations thereunder. The provisions of the Plan as set forth herein apply only to Participants who 
actively participate in the Plan on or after January I, 2005. Any Participant who retired or otherwise terminated 
employment with the Company and all Affiliates prior to January I, 2005 shall have his or her rights determined under 
the provision of the Plan as it existed when his or her employment relationship terminated. 

The Plan was further amended and restated, effective January I, 2008, to provide for mandatory lump sum 
payments of small account balances in accordance with Code Section 409A. The Plan was amended and restated again, 
effective January I, 2010, to contain provisions that eliminate mid-year enrollment into the Plan and to allow 
Participants who make Roth Contributions to a Basic Plan to participate in this Plan. The plan was further amended and 
restated, effective January I, 2010, to restore certain Employer Contributions given to Participants who are classified as 
"exempt employees" by the Employer and who are hired or rehired on or after January 1, 2010. 

The Plan was amended and restated again, effective May 13,2011, to restore Profit Sharing Contributions that 
otherwise would have been contributed to Participants under the Basic Plan (if not subject to the Limits, defined below) 
and to transfer all administrative authority with respect to the Plan (including the authority to render decisions on claims 
and appeals and make administrative or ministerial amendments) from the ONC Committee to the Benefits Committee. 
The Plan was again amended and restated, effective January 1, 2012, to (1) remove the ability of participants to make 
elective deferrals to the Plan; (2) change eligibility to receive Employer credits under the Plan to those employees who 
are in job scope level C2 and above; (3) provide for investment options in addition to the fixed interest credits currently 
available for the crediting of earnings on Accounts under the Plan; and ( 4) clarity other 



administrative matters related to the Plan. The Plan is hereby amended and restated again, effective October 22, 2012, to 
allow certain grandfathered participants in the DCP to receive employer credits to be made under this Plan in 2013 and 
beyond related to any Profit Sharing Contributions and Next-Gen Contributions that otherwise would have been credited 
to their accounts under the Basic Plan but were not credited because their DCP deferrals are excluded from Basic Plan 
compensation for purposes of such contributions. 

1.2 Purpose. The purpose of the Plan is to provide for the payment of savings restoration benefits to employees 
ofNiSource Inc. and Affiliates, whose benefits under the Basic Plan are subject to the Limits or affected by deferrals 
into the DCP, so that the total savings plan benefits of such employees shall be determined on the same basis as is 
applicable to all other employees of the Company. The Plan is adopted solely (I) for the purpose of providing benefits to 
Participants in the Plan and their Beneficiaries in excess of the Limits imposed on qualified plans by Code Section 40 I 
(a)(l7) and any other Code Sections, by restoring benefits to such Plan Participants and Beneficiaries that are no longer 
available under the Basic Plan as a result of the Limits, and (2) for the purpose of restoring benefits to Plan Participants 
and Beneficiaries that are no longer available under the Basic Plan as a result of the Participant's deferrals into the DCP. 

ARTICLE II. 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purposes of the Plan, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated, unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise. Except when otherwise required by the context, any masculine terminology in this document shall 
include the feminine, and any singular terminology shall include the plural. Defined terms used in the Plan that are not 
defmed in this Article or elsewhere in the Plan but are defmed in the Basic Plan shall have the meanings assigned to 
them in the Basic Plan. The headings of Articles and Sections are included solely for convenience, and if there is any 
conflict between such headings and the text of the Plan, the text shall control. 

2.1 Account. The device used by an Employer to measure and determine the amount to be paid under the Plan. 
Each Account shall be divided into a Pre-2005 Account containing contributions to the Plan earned and vested prior to 
January I, 2005, and a Post-2004 Account containing contributions to the Plan earned and/or vested on or after January 
1,2005. 

2.2 Aftlliate. Any corporation that is a member of a controlled group of corporations (as defined in Code Section 
414(b)) that includes the Company; any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) that is under common control (as 
defined in Code Section 414( c)) with the Company; any organization (whether or not incorporated) that is a member of 
an affiliated service group (as defined in Code Section 414(m)) that includes the Company; any leasing organization, to 
the extent that its employees are required to be treated as if they were employed by the Company pursuant to Code 
Section 414(n) and the regulations thereunder; and any other entity required to be aggregated with the Company 
pursuant to regulations under Code Section 414( o ). An entity shall be an Affiliate only with respect to the existing period 
as described in the preceding sentence. 
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2.3 Basic Plan. The NiSource Inc. Retirement Savings Plan, as amended and restated effective January I, 2010, 
and as further amended from time to time (or as amended and restated for any prior period to the extent the provisions of 
the Plan refer to such prior period for the Basic Plan). 

2.4 Beneficiary . The person, persons or entity entitled to receive any Plan benefits payable after a Participant's 
death, as elected by a Participant under the Basic Plan. 

2.5 Benefits Committee . The NiSource Benefits Committee. 

2.6 Board. The Board of Directors ofNiSource. Inc. 

2. 7 Code. T he Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time. 

2.8 Company . NiSource Inc. 

2.9 Compensation. Compensation as defined under the Basic Plan for purposes of determining Pre-Tax 
Contributions, Roth Contributions, and Matching Contributions under the Basic Plan. For purposes of calculating 
Employer credits to Participant Accounts under this Plan, Compensation may exceed the Compensation Limit under 
Code Section 401 (a)(l7)(B) and shall not be impacted by any other Limit. 

2.10 DCP . The Columbia Energy Group Deferred Compensation Plan on or prior to December 31, 2003, and, 
thereafter, the NiSource Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as further amended from time to time. 

2.11 Disability . A condition that (a) causes a Participant to be unable to engage in any substantial gainful 
activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death 
or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months, (b) causes a Participant, by reason of any 
medically determinable physical or mental impairment that can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last 
for a continuous period of not less than 12 months, to receive income replacement benefits for a period of not less than 
three months under an accident and health plan covering employees of the Company or an Affiliate or (c) causes a 
Participant to be eligible to receive Social Security disability payments. 

2.12 Effective Date. January I, 2012, the date on which the provisions of this amended and restated Plan 
become effective, except as otherwise provided herein. 

2.13 Eligible Employee. A select group of management or highly compensated employees of the Employer who 
satisfY the criteria established by the ONC Committee in accordance with this Plan. 
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2.14 Employer . The Company or any Affiliate that maintains or adopts the Basic Plan for the benefit of its 
eligible Employees. 

2.15 ERISA . The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. 

2.16 In-Service Withdrawal . A distribution from a Participant's Pre-2005 Account before that Participant's 
Separation from Service made in accordance with the Participant's written election under Article V of this Plan. 

2.17 Limits. The limits imposed on tax qualified retirement plans by Code Sections 415 and 40l(a)(l7) and any 
other Code Sections. 

2.18 ONC Committee . The Officer Nomination and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 

2.19 Participant . Any Eligible Employee who is participating in the Plan in accordance with its provisions. 

2.20 Plan. The Savings Restoration Plan for NiSource Inc. and Affiliates (formerly known as the Savings 
Restoration Plan for the Columbia Energy Group, and before that as the Thrift Restoration Plan for the Columbia Energy 
Group), as set forth herein and as amended from time to time. 

10.21 Plan Administrator. The Benefits Committee or such delegate of the Benefits Committee delegated to 
carry out the administrative functions of the Plan. 

2.22 Plan Year . The12-month period commencing each January 1 and ending the following December 31. 

2.23 Post-2004 Account. The portion of a Participant's Account equal to the excess of (I) the balance of the 
Participant's Account determined as of a Participant's date of Separation from Service after December 31, 2004, over (2) 
the Pre-2005 Account, to which the Participant would be entitled under the Plan if he voluntarily separated from service 
without cause as of such date and received a full payment of benefits from the Plan on the earliest possible date allowed 
under the Plan following his Separation from Service. 

2.24 Pre-2005 Account . The portion of a Participant's Savings Account determined as of December 31, 2004, 
adjusted to reflect earnings (or losses) credited to such balance from and after such date. 

2.25 Separation from Service . A termination of services provided by a Participant to his or her Employer, 
whether voluntarily or involuntarily, consistent with Code Section 409A and the guidance promulgated thereunder. 

2.26 Specified Employee . A Participant who is in job scope level C2 or above with respect to any Employer that 
employs him or her; provided that if at any time the total number of 
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employees in job category C2 and above is less than 50, a Specified Employee shall include any employee who meets 
the definition of"key employee" set forth in Code Section 416(i) (without reference to paragraph 5 of Code Section 416 
(i)). A Participant shall be deemed to be a Specified Employee with respect to a Separation from Service that occurs 
during a calendar year if he or she is a Specified Employee on September 30 of the preceding calendar year. The 
Benefits Committee shall determine which Participants are Specified Employees in accordance with the guidance 
promulgated under Code Section 409A. 

2.27 Unforeseeable Emergency . A severe financial hardship to a Participant resulting from an illness or 
accident of the Participant, the Participant's spouse or a dependent (as defmed in Code Section !52( a)), of the 
Participant, loss of the Participant's property due to casualty or other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable 
circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the control of the Participant. 

2.28 Valuation Date . The close of business of each business day. 

ARTICLE III. 

ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

3.1 Eligibility . On and after January I, 2012, eligibility to participate in the Plan shall be limited to an employee 
in job scope level C2 or above. On and after October 22,2012, eligibility to participate in this Plan additionally shall 
include any employee in job scope level Dl or D2 who completed an election form under the DCP in 2011 to make 
deferrals related to services performed in the Plan Year beginning January I, 2012; provided however, that such an 
employee will be eligible to receive only the Profit Sharing Contribution Credits described in Section 4.2(b) and the 
Next-Gen Contribution Credits described in Section 4.2(c), to the extent described in such subsections, and will remain 
eligible to participate in this Plan and receive such contributions after the 2012 Plan Year only if he or she completes an 
election form under the DCP in each successive Plan Year after 2012 and otherwise remains eligible to continue to 
participate in the DCP in each successive Plan Year after 2012. 

3.2 Participation . The Plan Administrator shall inform each Employee of his or her eligibility to participate in 
the Plan as soon as practicable but before the earliest date such Employee's participation could become effective. An 
Eligible Employee becomes a Participant when the Employer credits the Participant's Account with the Employer credits 
described in Article IV of this Plan. 

3.3 Continuation of Participation . A Participant shall remain a Participant so long as his or her Account has 
not been fully distributed to him or her. 

3.4 Amendment of Eligibility Criteria. The ONC Committee may, in its discretion, change the criteria for 
eligibility for any reason, provided, however, that no change in the criteria for eligibility shall be effective unless such 
changes are (a) within guidelines established by the ONC Committee or (b) approved by the ONC Committee. Eligibility 
for participation in one year does not guarantee eligibility to participate in any future year. 
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ARTICLE IV 

ACCOUNTS 

4.1 Account. The Employer credits, as described in Sections 4.2 and 4.3, and earnings thereon, shall be credited 
to the Participant's Account. The Account shall be a bookkeeping device utilized for the sole purpose of determining the 
benefits payable under the Plan and shall not constitute a separate fund of assets. 

4.2 Employer Credits 

(a) Matching Contribution Credits. The amount of Employer credits related to Matching 
Contributions for Participant eligible to receive such contributions under Section 3.1 shall equal 
(I) minus (2) below: 

(I) The total amount ofMatching Contributions that would otherwise have been contributed to 
the Basic Plan for the Participant during all years in which the Participant participated in 
the Basic Plan without regard to the Limits; 

(2) The actual amount of Matching Contributions that have been contributed to the Basic Plan 
for the Participant. 

In addition to making the credits related to Matching Contributions described above, the Employer 
also will make the following true-up credit. If (i) the allocation period under the Basic Plan is 
shorter than the Plan Year, and (ii) on the last day of the Plan Year, the amount of Matching 
Contributions under the Basic Plan is less than the amount of Matching Contributions that would 
have been made had the allocation period for Matching Contributions been the Plan Year, then the 
Employer will make an additional credit to a Participant's Account. This credit will be in the 
amount necessary to make the Employer credit related to Matching Contributions equal to the 
amount of Employer credits related to Matching Contributions that would have been made had the 
allocation period been the Plan Year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Employer shall make this 
true-up credit only for Participants who are employed with the Employer on the last day of the 
Plan Year and Participants who experienced a Separation from Service before the last day of the 
Plan Year due to death, Disability, or retirement. 

(b) Profit Sharing Contribution Credits . Employer credits pursuant to this Section 4.2(b) shall be 
reflected in the Plan for all Participants in the Plan on or after such date, including the following: 
(I) those who received Profit Sharing Contributions to the Basic Plan for 2010 or later that were 
subject to the Limits, or (2) those who otherwise had Profit Sharing Contributions limited or 
adjusted under the Basic Plan on or after January 
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I, 2011. The amount of Employer credits related to Profit Sharing Contributions for a participant 
shall equal (I) minus (2) below: 
( 1) The total amount of Profit Sharing Contributions that otherwise would have been 

contributed to the Basic Plan for the Participant during all years in which the Participant 
participated in the Basic Plan, as determined by Compensation as defined under this Plan 
without regards to the Limits; 

(2) The actual amount of Profit Sharing Contributions that have been contributed to the Basic 
Plan for the Participant. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant who is in job scope level Dl or D2 shall receive an 
amount of Employer credits related to Profit Sharing Contributions equal to the difference 
between (I) minus (2) below: 
(I) The total amount of Profit Sharing Contributions that otherwise would have been 

contributed to the Basic Plan for the Participant during all years in which the Participant 
participated in the Basic Plan, had Profit Sharing Contributions been calculated using this 
Plan's definition of Compensation; 

(2) The actual amount of Profit Sharing Contributions that have been contributed to the Basic 
Plan for the Participant. 

This amount shall be payable to any applicable Participant regardless of whether such Participant 
has signed a written agreement to participate in this Plan. 

(c) Next-Gen Contribution Credits. With respect to a Participant who is classified by the Employer as 
an "exempt employee" and who is hired or rehired on or after January I, 20 I 0, the amount of 
Employer credits for a Participant shall equal (I) minus (2) below: 
(I) The total amount of the Employer Contribution that otherwise would have been 

contributed to the Basic Plan in an amount equal to 3% of the Participant's Compensation 
(as defined under this Plan) without regard to the Limits; 

(2) The actual amount of the Employer Contribution under the Basic Plan that was contributed 
to the Participant in an amount equal to 3% of the Participant's Compensation (as defined 
under the Basic Plan). 
This amount shall be payable to any applicable Participant in addition to any amounts he 
or she may be entitled to under Sections 4.2(a) and 4.2(b) of this Plan and regardless of 
whether such Participant has signed a written agreement to participate in this Plan. 
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant who is in job scope level D 1 or D2 shall receive an 
amount of Employer credits equal to the difference between (l) minus (2) below: 

(l) The total amount of the Employer Contribution that otherwise would have been 
contributed to the Basic Plan in an amount equal to 3% of the Participant's Compensation 
(as defined under this Plan); 

(2) The actual amount of the Employer Contribution under the Basic Plan that was contributed 
to the Participant in an amount equal to 3% of the Participant's Compensation (as defmed 
under the Basic Plan). 

This amount shall be payable to any applicable Participant regardless of whether such 
Participant has signed a written agreement to participate in this Plan. 

4.3 Timing of Credits; Withholding . The Employer credits shall be made to the Participant's Account annually, 
at such time determined by the Plan Administrator. Any withholding of taxes or other amounts that is required by 
federal, state, or local law shall be withheld from the Participant's nondeferred Compensation to the maximum extent 
possible and any remaining amount shall reduce the amount credited to the Participant's Account. 

4.4 Determination of Account . Each Participant's Account as of each Valuation Date shall consist of the 
balance of the Account as of the immediately preceding Valuation Date, adjusted as follows: 

(a) New Employer Credits. The Account shall be increased by any Employer 
credits made in accordance with Sections 4.2 or 4.3, as applicable, since such preceding Valuation 
Date. 

(b) Distributions . The Account shall be reduced by any benefits distributed from 
the Account to the Participant since such preceding Valuation Date. 

(c) Valuation of Account . The Account shall be increased or decreased by the 
aggregate earnings, gains and losses on such Account since such preceding Valuation Date, based 
on the manner in which the Participant's Account has been hypothetically allocated among the 
investment options selected by the Participant. 

4.5 Statement of Account . The Plan Administrator shall give to each Participant a statement showing the 
balance in the Participant's Account periodically at such times as may be determined by the Plan Administrator, in 
written or electronic form. 
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ARTICLEV 

INVESTMENTS 

5.1 Investment Options . Amounts credited hereunder to the Account of a Participant shall be invested as such 
Participant elects among the investment choices provided to the Participant. The investment options shall be determined 
by the Plan Administrator from time to time in its sole and absolute discretion. As necessary, the Plan Administrator 
may, in its sole discretion, discontinue, substitute or add an investment option. Each such action will take effect on such 
date established by the Plan Administrator. 

5.2 Election of Investment Options . A Participant, in connection with his or her payment election under Article 
VI of this Plan, shall elect one or more of the previously described investment options, as applicable, to be used to 
determine the amounts to be credited or debited to his or her Account. If a Participant does not elect any investment 
options, the Participant's Account shall automatically be allocated into the lowest-risk investment option, as determined 
by the Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion. The Participant may (but is not required to) elect to add or delete one or 
more investment options to be used to determine the amounts to be credited or debited to his or her Account, or to 
change the portion of his or her Account allocated to each previously or newly elected investment option. If an election 
is made in accordance with the previous sentence, it shall apply as of the first business day deemed reasonably 
practicable by the Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion, and shall continue thereafter for each subsequent day in 
which the Participant participates in the Plan, unless changed in accordance with the previous sentence. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, the Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion, may impose limitations on the frequency with which one or 
more of the investment options elected in accordance with this Section may be added or deleted by such Participant; 
furthermore, the Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion, may impose limitations on the frequency with which the 
Participant may change the portion of his or her Account allocated to each previously or newly elected investment 
option. 

5.3 Allocation of Investment Options . In making any election related to investment options, the Participant 
shall specify, in increments specified by the Plan Administrator, the percentage of his or her Account or investment 
option, as applicable, to be allocated or reallocated. 

5.4 No Actual Investment. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan that may be interpreted to the 
contrary, the investment options are to be used for measurement purposes only, and a Participant's election of any such 
investment option, the allocation of his or her Account thereto, the calculation of additional amounts and the crediting or 
debiting of such amounts to a Participant's Account shall not be considered or construed in any manner as an actual 
investment of his or her Account in any such investment option. In the event that the Company, in its own discretion, 
decides to invest funds in any or all of the investments on which the investment options are based, no Participant shall 
have any rights in or to such investments themselves. Without limiting the foregoing, a Participant's Account shall at all 
times be a bookkeeping entry only and shall not represent any investment made on his or her behalf by the Company; the 
Participant shall at all times remain an unsecured creditor of the Company. 
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ARTICLE VI. 

PAYMENTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS 

6.1 Distributions/Events Generally . Participants generally will not be entitled to receive a distribution of their 
Account balance until they experience a Separation from Service with the Employer for any reason. A Participant may 
receive a distribution before Separation from Service, however, in accordance with this Article VI, upon (I) an 
Unforeseeable Emergency that occurs before Separation from Service, or (2) a year that has been designated by the 
Participant only with respect to his Pre-2005 Account balance that occurs before Separation from Service. 

6.2 In-Service Withdrawals . This section applies only to a Participant's Pre-2005 Account balance 
(a) General Payments. Subject to the limitations of paragraph (b) below, a Participant, 
by filing a written request with the Plan Administrator, may, while employed by an 
Employer or an Affiliate, elect to withdraw 33%, 67% or 100% of his or her Pre-2005 
Account. 

(b) Limitation on In-Service Withdrawals . Any In-Service Withdrawal under paragraph (a) of 
this Section 6.2 shall be subject to a 10% early distribution penalty. In addition, the 
following conditions shall apply to In-Service Withdrawals: 
(I) Only one In-Service Withdrawal shall be permitted in any 12-month period. 

(2) In-Service Withdrawals shall require suspension of Employer credits (but not 
credits of earnings or losses) under the Plan for a period of time varying with the 
percentage of the value of the Participant's Pre-2005 Account that is withdrawn, 
according to the following schedule: 

Percentage 
Up to 33% 
34-67% 

68- 100% 

Suspension 
2 months 

4 months 

6 months 

This suspension shall not affect a Participant's participation in the Basic Plan nor the basis 
for determining the Employer contributions or Participant Pre-tax Contributions under the 
Basic Plan. 
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6.3 Distributions After Separation from Service . 
(a) Generally. If a Participant experiences a Separation from Service, the provisions ofthis Section 

6.3 shall apply to the distribution of the Participant's Account. The Participant may elect to receive 
such benefits as either a lump sum or in equal annual installments over a period not to exceed 15 
years. If no such election is made, payment shall be made as a lump sum. 

(b) Pre-2005 Account . 

1. Form of Payment ofPre-2005 Account. The Pre-2005 Account payable under the Plan to 
a Participant or his or her spouse, Beneficiary, or legal representative shall be paid in the 
same form under which the Basic Plan benefit is payable to the Participant or his or her 
spouse, Beneficiary, or legal representative. The Participant's election under the Basic Plan 
of any optional form of payment of his or her Basic Plan benefit (with the valid consent of 
his or her surviving spouse where required under the Basic Plan) shall also be applicable to 
the payment of his or her Pre-2005 Account under the Plan. 

2. Timing of Payment of Pre-2005 Account . Payment of the Pre-2005 Account under the 
Plan to a Participant or his or her spouse, Beneficiary, or legal representative under the 
Plan shall commence on the same date as payment of the benefit to the Participant or his or 
her spouse, Beneficiary, or legal representative under the Basic Plan commences. Any 
election under the Basic Plan made by the Participant with respect to the commencement 
of payment of his or her benefit under the Basic Plan shall also be applicable with respect 
to the commencement of payment of his or her Pre-2005 Account under the Plan. 

3. Aporoval by Plan Administrator. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraphs (i) and (ii) 
above, an election made by the Participant under the Basic Plan with respect to the form of 
payment of his or her Pre-2005 Account thereunder (with the valid consent of his or her 
surviving spouse where required under the Basic Plan), or the date for commencement of 
payment thereof, shall not be effective with respect to the form of payment or date for 
commencement of payment of his or her Pre-2005 Account under the Plan unless such 
election is expressly approved in writing by the Plan Administrator. If the Plan 
Administrator shall not approve such election in writing, then the form of payment or date 
for commencement of payment of the Participant's Pre-2005 Account under the Plan shall 
be selected by the Plan Administrator at its sole discretion. 
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(c) Post-2004 Account. 

I. Form of Payment ofPost-2004 Account. The Post-2004 Account shall be payable in a 
form elected by a Participant no later than December 31, 2005. Notwithstanding the 
preceding sentence, in the case of an Eligible Employee who becomes a Participant on or 
after January I, 2005, the aforementioned election with respect to the form of payment of a 
Post-2004 Account shall be made at such time prescribed by the Plan Administrator, 
which shall end no later than December 31 "of the year preceding the Plan Year in which 
the Participant is first eligible to participate in the Plan. The form of payment that a 
Participant may elect to receive shall be from the choices of either a lump sum or in equal 
annual installments over a period not to exceed 15 years. If a timely payment election is 
not made by a Participant, payment shall be made in a lump sum. 

2. Timing of Payment ofPost-2004 Account. Payment of a Post-2004 Account in 
accordance with this Section 6.3 shall commence within 45 days after the Participant's date 
of Separation from Service, or, if later, within such timeframe permitted under Code 
Section 409A, and guidance and regulations thereunder. 

3. Modifications to Time and Form of Payment. A Participant cannot change the time or 
form of payment of a Post-2004 Account under this Subsection 6.3(b) unless (A) such 
election does not take effect until at least 12 months after the date the election is made, (B) 
in the case of an election related to a payment not related to the Participant's Disability or 
death, the first payment with respect to which such new election is effective is deferred for 
a period of not less than five years from the date such payment would otherwise have been 
made, and (C) any election related to a payment based upon a specific time or pursuant to 
a fixed schedule may not be made less than 12 months prior to the date of the first 
scheduled payment. 

4. Time of Pavment for Specified Employees . Notwithstanding any other provision of the 
Plan, in no event can a payment of a Post-2004 Account to a Participant who is a Specified 
Employee, at a time during which the Company's capital stock or capital stock of an 
Affiliate is publicly traded on an established securities market, in the calendar year of his 
or her Separation from Service be made before the date that is six months after the date of 
the Participant's Separation from Service, unless such Separation from Service is due to 
death or Disability. 

6.4 Unforeseeable Emergency Distributions . 
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a. Pre-2005 Account. Upon a finding that a Participant has suffered an Unforeseeable Emergency, 
the Plan Administrator may, in its sole discretion, make distributions from the Participant's 
Pre-2005 Account. The amount of such a distribution shall be limited to the amount reasonably 
necessary to meet the Participant's needs resulting from the Unforeseeable Emergency. Any 
distribution pursuant to this Subsection shall be payable in a lump sum. The distribution shall be 
paid within 30 days after the determination of an Unforeseeable Emergency. 

b. Post-2004 Account. Upon a fmding that a Participant has suffered an Unforeseeable Emergency, 
the Plan Administrator may, in its sole discretion, make distributions from the Participant's Post-
2004 Account and/or suspend Employer credits entirely in accordance with the guidance under 
Code Section 409A. The amount of such distribution shall be limited to the amount necessary to 
satisfy such Unforeseeable Emergency plus amounts necessary to pay taxes reasonably anticipated 
as a result of the distribution, after taking into account the extent to which such hardship is or may 
be relieved through reimbursement or compensation by insurance or otherwise or by liquidation of 
the Participant's assets (to the extent the liquidation of such assets would not itself cause severe 
financial hardship). Any distribution pursuant to this Subsection shall be payable in a lump sum. 
The distribution shall be paid within 30 days after the determination of an Unforeseeable 
Emergency. 

6.5 Automatic Cash-Out. Notwithstanding any other provision in the Plan, if(!) the sum of the Participant's 
Pre-2005 Account and Post-2004 Account does not exceed the applicable dollar limit under code Section 402(g)(l )(B) 
and (2) this sum is the entirety of the Participant's interest in the Plan and all other arrangements that are considered a 
single nonqualified deferred compensation plan under Code Section 409A and applicable guidance thereunder, the 
Employer, in its sole discretion may distribute the Participant's entire Pre-2005 Account and Post-2004 Account (and the 
Participant's entire interest under any other arrangement that is required to be aggregated with this Plan under Code 
Section 409A), regardless whether the Participant has otherwise had a distributable event under this Plan. The form of 
payment of both the Pre-2005 Account and Post-2004 Account shall be a single lump sum. 

6.6 Special Payment Election by December 31, 2006, for Code Section 409A Transition Relief. 
Notwithstanding any preceding provision of this Section 6.3(b ), a Participant may change an election with respect to the 
time and form of payment of a Post-2004 Account, without regard to the restrictions imposed under paragraph (iii) next 
above, on or before December 31, 2006; provided that such election (A) applies only to amounts that would not 
otherwise be payable in calendar year 2006, and (B) shall not cause an amount to be paid in calendar year 2006 that 
would not otherwise be payable in such year. 

6.7 Withholding for Taxes. To the extent required by the law in effect at the time payments are made, an 
Employer shall withhold from the payments made hereunder any taxes 
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required to be withheld by the federal or any state or local government, including any amounts which the Employer 
determines is reasonably necessary to pay any generation-skipping transfer tax which is or may become due. A 
Beneficiary, however, may elect not to have withholding of federal income tax pursuant to Code Section 3405(a)(2). 

6.8 Payment to Guardian . The Plan Administrator may direct payment to the duly appointed guardian, 
conservator or other similar legal representative of a Participant or Beneficiary to whom payment is due. In the absence 
of such a legal representative, the Plan Administrator may, in its sole and absolute discretion, make payment to a person 
having the care and custody of a minor, iocompetent or person incapable of handling the disposition of property upon 
proof satisfactory to the Plan Administrator of incompetency, status as a minor, or incapacity. Such distribution shall 
completely discharge the Company from all liability with respect to such benefit. 

ARTICLE VII 

BENEFICIARY DESIGNATION 

7.1 Beneficiary Designation . Each Participant's Beneficiary (both primary as well as secondary) to whom 
benefits under the Plan shall be paid in the event of the Participant's death prior to complete distribution of the 
Participant's Account, shall be the Beneficiary that the Participant has selected under the Basic Plan. A Participant may 
designate a Beneficiary or change a prior Beneficiary designation only by designating or changing a Beneficiary under 
the Basic Plan. 

7.2 No Beneficiary Designation . If any Participant fails to designate a Beneficiary in the manner provided 
above, if the designation is void or if the Beneficiary designated by a deceased Participant dies before the Participant or 
before complete distribution of the Participant's benefits, the Participant's Beneficiary shall be the person identified io 
accordance with the procedures under the Basic Plan. 

ARTICLE VII 

PLAN ADMINISTRATION 

8.1 Allocation of Duties to Committees. The Plan shall be administered by the Benefits Committee, as 
delegated by the ONC Committee. The Benefits Committee shall have the authority to make, amend, interpret, and 
enforce all appropriate rules and regulations for the admioistration of the Plan and decide or resolve any and all 
questions, iocluding interpretations of the Plan, as may arise in such administration, except as otherwise reserved to the 
ONC Committee herein, or by resolution or charter of the respective committees. 

In its discretion, the Plan Administrator may delegate to any division or department of the Company the 
discretionary authority to make decisions regardiog Plan administration, within limits and guidelines from time to time 
established by the Plan Administrator. The delegated 
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discretionary authority shall be exercised by such division or department's senior officer, or his/her delegate. Within the 
scope of the delegated discretionary authority, such officer or person shall act in the place of the Plan Administrator and 
his/her decisions shall be treated as decisions of the Plan Administrator. 

8.2 Agents . The Plan Administrator may, from time to time, employ agents and delegate to them such 
administrative duties as it sees fit, and may from time to time consult with counsel who may be counsel to the Company. 

8.3 Information Required by Plan Administrator. The Company shall furnish the Plan Administrator with 
such data and information as the Plan Administrator may deem necessary or desirable in order to administer the Plan. 
The records of the Company as to an employee's or Participant's period or periods of employment, separation from 
Service and the reason therefore, reemployment and Compensation will be conclusive on all persons unless determined 
to the Plan Administrator's satisfaction to be incorrect. Participants and other persons entitled to benefits under the Plan 
also shall furnish the Plan Administrator with such evidence, data or information as the Plan Administrator considers 
necessary or desirable to administer the Plan. 

8.4 Binding Effect of Decisions . Subject to applicable law, and the provisions of Article VIII, any interpretation 
of the provisions of the Plan and any decision on any matter within the discretion of the Benefits Conunittee and/or the 
ONC Conunittee (or any duly authorized delegate of either such committee) and made in good faith shall be binding on 
all persons. 

ARTICLE IX. 

CLAIMS PROCEDURE 
9.1 Claim . Claims for benefits under the Plan shall be made in writing to the Plan Administrator. The Plan 

Administrator shall establish rules and procedures to be followed by Participants and Beneficiaries in filing claims for 
benefits, and for furnishing and verifYing proof necessary to establish the right to benefits in accordance with the Plan, 
consistent with the remainder of this Article. 

9.2 Review of Claim . The Plan Administrator shall review all claims for benefits. Upon receipt by the Plan 
Administrator of such a claim, it shall determine all facts that are necessary to establish the right of the claimant to 
benefits under the provisions of the Plan and the amount thereof as herein provided within 90 days of receipt of such 
claim. If prior to the expiration of the initial 90 day period, the Plan Administrator determines additional time is needed 
to come to a determination on the claim, the Plan Administrator shall provide written notice to the Participant, 
Beneficiary or other claimant of the need for the extension, not to exceed a total of 180 days from the date the 
application was received. If the Plan Administrator fails to notifY the claimant in writing of the denial of the claim within 
90 days after the Plan Administrator receives it, the claim shall be deemed denied. 
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9.3 Notice of Denial of Claim. If the Plan Administrator wholly or partially denies a claim for benefits, the Plan 
Administrator shall, within a reasonable period of time, but no later than 90 days after receiving the claim (unless 
extended as noted above), notifY the claimant in writing of the denial of the claim. Such notification shall be written in a 
manner reasonably expected to be understood by such claimant and shall in all respects comply with the requirements of 
ERISA, including but not limited to inclusion of the following: 

a. the specific reason or reasons for denial of the claim; 
b. a specific reference to the pertinent Plan provisions upon which the denial is based; 
c. a description of any additional material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the 

claim, together with an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; and 
d. an explanation of the Plan's review procedure. 

9.4 Reconsideration of Denied Claim . Within 60 days of the receipt by the claimant of the written notice of 
denial of the claim, or within 60 days after the claim is deemed denied as set forth above, if applicable, the claimant or 
duly authorized representative may file a written request with the Benefits Committee that it conduct a full and fair 
review of the denial of the claimant's claim for benefits. If the claimant or duly authorized representative fails to request 
such a reconsideration within such 60 day period, it shall be conclusively determined for all purposes of the Plan that the 
denial of such claim by the Benefits Committee is correct. In connection with the claimant's appeal of the denial of his or 
her benefit, the claimant may review pertinent documents and may submit issues and comments in writing. 

The Benefits Committee shall render a decision on the claim appeal promptly, but not later than 60 days after 
receiving the claimant's request for review, unless, in the discretion of the Benefits Committee, special circumstances 
require an extension of time for processing, in which case the 60-day period may be extended to 120 days. The Benefits 
Committee shall notifY the claimant in writing of any such extension. The notice of decision upon review shall be in 
writing and shall include specific reasons for the decision, written in a manner calculated to be understood by the 
claimant, as well as specific references to the pertinent Plan provisions upon which the decision is based. If the decision 
on review is not furnished within the time period set forth above, the claim shall be deemed denied on review. 

If such determination is favorable to the claimant, it shall be binding and conclusive. If such determination is 
adverse to such claimant, it shall be binding and conclusive unless the claimant or his duly authorized representative 
notifies the Benefits Committee within 90 days after the mailing or delivery to the claimant by the Benefits Committee 
of its determination that claimant intends to institute legal proceedings challenging the determination of the Benefits 
Committee and actually institutes such legal proceedings within 180 days after such mailing or delivery. 

9.5 Employer to Supply Information . To enable the Benefits Committee to perform its functions, each 
Employer shall supply fully and timely information to the Benefits Committee of all matters relating to the retirement, 
death, or other cause for Separation from Service of all Participants, and such other pertinent facts as the Benefits 
Committee may require. 
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ARTICLE X 

PLAN AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION 

10.1 Plan Amendment . While the Company intends to maintain the Plan in conjunction with the Basic Plan, the 
Company or the ONC Committee reserves the right to amend the Plan at any time and from time to time with respect to 
eligibility for the Plan, the level of benefits awarded under the Plan and the time and form of payment for benefits from 
the Plan. The Benefits Committee, the ONC Committee, or the Board shall have the authority to amend the Plan as 
described herein. The ONC Committee or the Board shall have the exclusive authority to amend the Plan regarding 
eligibility for the Plan, the amount or level of benefits awarded under the Plan, and the time and form of payments for 
benefits from the Plan. In addition, the ONC Committee or the Board shall also have the exclusive authority to make 
amendments that constitute a material increase in Compensation, any change requiring action or consent by a committee 
of the Board pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the New York Stock Exchange or other 
applicable law, or such other material changes to the Plan such that approval of the Board is required. Unless otherwise 
determined by the ONC Committee, the Benefits Committee shall have the authority to amend the Plan in all respects 
that are not exclusively reserved to the ONC Committee or the Board. 

The respective committee may at any time amend the Plan by written instrument, notice of which is given to all 
Participants and to Beneficiaries. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, no amendment shall reduce the amount 
accrued in any Account prior to the date such notice of the amendment is given. 

10.2 Partial Plan Termination . The ONC Committee or the Company at any time may partially terminate the 
Plan provided that such partial termination of the Plan shall not impair or alter any Participant's or Beneficiary's right to 
the applicable Participant's Account balance as of the effective date of such partial termination. If such a partial 
termination occurs, no additional Employer credits shall be made after the date of such partial termination other than the 
crediting of earnings (or losses) until the date of distribution of Participant Account balances. Further, the Plan shall 
otherwise continue to be administered with respect to Account balances credited before the effective date of such partial 
termination, and distribution shall be made at such times as specified under this Plan. 

ARTICLE XI 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

11.1 Unfunded Plan. The Plan is an unfunded plan maintained primarily to provide deferred compensation 
benefits for a select group of"management or highly-compensated employees" within the meaning of Sections 201,301 
and 401 of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), and therefore is exempt 
from the provisions of Parts 2, 3 and 4 ofTit1e I of ERISA. Nothing contained in the Plan shall constitute 
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a guaranty by the Company or any other Employer or any other entity or person that the assets of the Company or any 
other Employer shall be sufficient to pay any benefit hereunder. 

11.2 Company and Employer Obligations . The obligation to make benefit payments to any Participant under 
the Plan shall be a joint and several liability of the Company and the Employer that employed the Participant. 

11.3 Unsecured General Creditor . Participants and Beneficiaries shall be unsecured general creditors, with no 
secured or preferential right to any assets of the Company, any other Employer, or any other party for payment of 
benefits under the Plan. Any life insurance policies, annuity contracts or other property purchased by the Employer in 
connection with the Plan shall remain its general, unpledged and unrestricted assets. Obligations of the Company and 
each other Employer under the Plan shall be an unfunded and unsecured promise to pay money in the future. 

11.4 Trust Fund. Subject to Section 12.3, the Company may establish separate subtrusts for deferrals by 
employees of each Employer, pursuant to a trust agreement entered into with such trustees as the Benefits Committee 
may approve, for the purpose of providing for the payment of benefits owed under the Plan. At its discretion, each 
Employer may contribute deferrals under the Plan for its employees to the subtrust established with respect to such 
Employer under such trust agreement. To the extent any benefits provided under the Plan are paid from any such 
subtrust, the Employer shall have no further obligation to pay them. If not paid from a subtrust, such benefits shall 
remain the obligation of the Employer. Although such subtrusts may be irrevocable, their assets shall be held for 
payment of all the Company's general creditors in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy. 

11.5 Nonalienation of Benefits. Neither a Participant nor any other person shall have any right to co=ute, 
sell, assign, transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage, or otherwise encumber, transfer, hypothecate, or convey in advance of 
actual receipt the amounts, if any, payable hereunder, or any part thereof or rights to, which are expressly declared to be 
unassignable and nontransferable. No part of the amounts payable shall, prior to actual payment, be subject to seizure or 
sequestration for the payment of any debts, judgments, alimony, or separate maintenance owed by a Participant or any 
other person, nor be transferable by operation of law in the event of a Participant's or any other person's bankruptcy or 
insolvency. 

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the Account of any Participant shall be subject to and payable in the 
amount determined in accordance with any qualified domestic relations order, as that term is defined in Section 206( d) 
(3) of ERISA. The Retirement Co=ittee shall provide for payment in a lump sum from a Participant's Account to an 
alternate payee (as defined in Code Section 414(p )(8)) as soon as administratively practicable following receipt of such 
order. Any federal, state or local income tax associated with such payment shall be the responsibility of the alternate 
payee. The balance of an Account that is subject to any qualified domestic relations order shall be reduced by the 
amount of any payment made pursuant to such order. 
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Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the Account of any Participant shall be subject to and payable in the 
amount determined in accordance with any qualified domestic relations order, as that term is defined in Section 206(d) 
(3) of ERISA. The Plan Administrator shall provide for payment of such portion of an Account to an alternate payee (as 
defined in Section 206(d)(3) of ERISA) as soon as administratively possible following receipt of such order. Any 
federal, state or local income tax associated with such payment shall be the responsibility of the alternate payee. The 
balance of any Account that is subject to any qualified domestic relations order shall be reduced by the amount of any 
payment made pursuant to such order. 

11.6 Indemnification 

a. Limitation of Liability. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or any trust established 
under the Plan, none of the Company, any other Employer, any member of the Benefits 
Committee or the ONC Committee, nor any individual acting as an employee, or agent or delegate 
of any ofthem, shall be liable to any Participant, former Participant, Beneficiary, or any other 
person for any claim, loss, liability or expense incurred in connection with the Plan or any trust 
established under the Plan, except when the same shall have been judicially determined to be due 
to the willful misconduct of such person. 

b. Indemnity . The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Benefits 
Committee and the ONC Committee, or any employee of the Company or any individual acting as 
an employee or agent of either of them (to the extent not indemnified or saved harmless under any 
liability insurance or any other indemnification arrangement with respect to the Plan or any trust 
established under the Plan) from any and all claims, losses, liabilities, costs and expenses 
(including attorneys' fees) arising out of any actual or alleged act or failure to act made in good 
faith pursuant to the provisions of the Plan, including expenses reasonably incurred in the defense 
of any claim relating thereto with respect to the administration of the Plan or any trust established 
under the Plan, except that no indemnification or defense shall be provided to any person with 
respect to any conduct that has been judicially determined, or agreed by the parties, to have 
constituted willful misconduct on the part of such person, or to have resulted in his or her receipt 
of personal profit or advantage to which he or she is not entitled. In connection with the 
indemnification provided by the preceding sentence, expenses incurred in defending a civil or 
criminal action, suit or proceeding, or incurred in connection with a civil or criminal investigation, 
may be paid by the Company in advance of the fmal disposition of such action, suit, proceeding, 
or investigation, as authorized by the Benefits Committee or the ONC Committee in the specific 
case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the party to be indemnified to repay such 
amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that the person is entitled to be indemnified by the 
Company pursuant to this paragraph. 
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11.7 No Enlargement of Emoloyee Rights . No Participant or Beneficiary shall have any right to a benefit 
under the Plan except in accordance with the terms of the Plan. The Plan shall not constitute a contract of employment 
between an Employer and the Participant. Nothing in the Plan shall give any Participant or Beneficiary the right to be 
retained in the service of an Employer or to interfere with the right of an Employer to discipline or discharge a 
Participant at any time. 

11.8 Protective Provisions . A Participant shall cooperate with his Employer by fumishiog any and all 
information requested by the Employer in order to facilitate the payment of benefits hereunder, and by taking such 
physical examinations as the Employer may deem necessary and taking such other action as may be requested by the 
Employer. 

11.9 Governing Law . The Plan shall be construed and administered under the laws of the State of Indiana, 
except to the extent preempted by applicable federal law. 

11.10 Validitv. In case any provision of the Plan shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, said illegality or 
invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts hereof, but the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal and 
invalid provision had never been inserted herein. 

11.11 Notice . Any notice required or permitted under the Plan shall be sufficient if in writing and hand delivered 
or sent by registered or certified mail. Such notice shall be deemed as given as of the date of delivery or, if delivery is 
made by mail, as of the date shown on the postmark on the receipt for registration or certification. Mailed notice to the 
Benefits Committee shall be directed to the Company's address. Mailed notice to a Participant or Beneficiary shall be 
directed to the individual's last known address in the applicable Employer's records. 

11.12 Successors. The provisions of the Plan shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Employers and their 
successors and assigns. The term successors as used herein shall include any corporate or other business entity that shall, 
whether by merger, consolidation, purchase, or otherwise, acquire all or substantially all of the business and assets of an 
Employer, and successors of any such corporation or other business entity. 

11.13 Incapacitv of Recipient . If any person entitled to a benefit payment under the Plan is deemed by the Plan 
Administrator to be incapable of personally receiving and giving a valid receipt for such payment, then, unless and until 
a claim shall have been made by a duly appointed guardian or other legal representative of such person, the Plan 
Administrator may provide for such payment or any part thereof to be made to any other person or institution then 
contributing toward or providing for the care and maintenance of such person. Any such payment shall be a payment for 
the account of such person and a complete discharge of any liability of the Company, any other Employer, the Plan 
Administrator and the Plan. 

11.14 Unclaimed Benefit. Each Participant shall keep the Plan Administrator informed of his or her current 
address and the current address of his or her Beneficiaries. The Plan Administrator shall not be obligated to search for 
the whereabouts of any person. If the location of a Participant is not made known to the Plan Administrator within three 
years after the date on which payment of the Participant's benefit may first be made, payment may be made as though 

20 



the Participant had died at the end of the three-year period. If, within one additional year after such three-year period has 
elapsed or within three years after the actual death of a Participant, the Plan Administrator is unable to locate any 
Beneficiary of the Participant, then the Plan Administrator shall have no further obligation to pay any benefit hereunder 
to such Participant, Beneficiary, or any other person and such benefit shall be irrevocably forfeited. 

11.15 Tax Compliance and Payouts . 
a. It is intended that the Plan comply with the provisions of Code Section 409A oftbe Code, so as to 

prevent the inclusion in gross income of any amounts deferred hereunder in a taxable year that is 
prior to the taxable year or years in which such amounts would otherwise actually be paid or made 
available to Participants or Beneficiaries. This Plan shall be construed, administered, and 
governed in a manner that affects such intent, and neither any Participant, Beneficiary, nor Plan 
Administrator shall not take any action that would be inconsistent with such intent. 

b. Although the Plan Administrator shall use its best efforts to avoid the imposition of taxation, 
interest and penalties under Code Section 409A, the tax treatment of deferrals under this Plan is 
not warranted or guaranteed. Neither the Company, the other Affiliates, the Plan Administrator, 
the Retirement Committee, nor any designee shall be held liable for any taxes, interest, penalties 
or other monetary amounts owed by any Participant, Beneficiary or other taxpayer as a result of 
the Plan. 

c. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, (I) in the event that the Internal 
Revenue Service prevails in its claim that any amount of a Pre-2005 Account, payable pursuant to 
the Plan and held in the general assets of the Company or any other Employer, constitutes taxable 
income to a Participant or his or her Beneficiary for a taxable year prior to the taxable year in 
which such amount is distributed to him or her, or (2) in the event that legal counsel satisfactory to 
the Company, and the applicable Participant or his or her Beneficiary, renders an opinion that the 
Internal Revenue Service would likely prevail in such a claim, the amount of such Pre-2005 
Account held in the general assets of the Company or any other Employer, to the extent 
constituting taxable income, shall be immediately distributed to the Participant or his or her 
Beneficiary. For purposes of this Section, the Internal Revenue Service shall be deemed to have 
prevailed in a claim if such claim is upheld by a court of fmal jurisdiction, or if the Participant or 
Beneficiary, based upon an opinion of legal counsel satisfactory to the Company and the 
Participant or his or her Beneficiary, fails to appeal a decision of the Internal Revenue Service, or 
a court of applicable jurisdiction, with respect to such claim, to an appropriate Internal Revenue 
Service appeals authority or to a court of higher jurisdiction within the appropriate time period. 

d. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, (I) in the event that the Internal 
Revenue Service prevails in its claim that any amount of a Post-2004 Account, payable pursuant 
to the Plan and held in the general assets of the Company or any other Employer, constitutes 
taxable income 
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under Code Section 409A, and guidance and regulations thereunder, to a Participant or his or her 
Beneficiary for a taxable year prior to the taxable year in which such amount is distributed to him 
or her, or (2) in the event that legal counsel satisfactory to the Company, and the applicable 
Participant or his or her Beneficiary, renders an opinion that the Internal Revenue Service would 
likely prevail in such a claim, the amount of such Post-2004 Account held in the general assets of 
the Company or any other Employer, to the extent constituting such taxable income, shall be 
immediately distributed to the Participant or his or her Beneficiary. For purposes of this Section, 
the Internal Revenue Service shall be deemed to have prevailed in a claim if such claim is upheld 
by a court offmaljurisdiction, or if the Participant or Beneficiary, based upon an opinion oflegal 
counsel satisfactory to the Company and the Participant or his or her Beneficiary, fails to appeal a 
decision of the Internal Revenue Service, or a court of applicable jurisdiction, with respect to such 
claim, to an appropriate Internal Revenue Service appeals authority or to a court of higher 
jurisdiction within the appropriate time period. 

11.16 General Conditions. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all terms and conditions of the Basic 
Plan applicable to a Basic Plan benefit shall also be applicable to a benefit payable hereunder. Any Basic Plan benefit 
shall be paid solely in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Basic Plan and nothing in the Plan shall operate 
or be construed in any way to modify, amend or affect the terms and provisions of the Basic Plan. 

[signature block follows on next page] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , NiSource Inc. has caused this amended and restated Savings and Restoration Plan 
for NiSource Inc. and Affiliates to be executed in its name, by its duly authorized officer, effective as of October 22, 
2012. 

NISOURCE INC. 

By: /s/ Teresa M. Smith 

Its: V.P. Human Resources 

Date: 11/20/2012 
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NISOURCE INC. 

EXECUTIVE DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

ARTICLE I 

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 

1.1 Background. Effective November I, 2000, the Bay State Gas Company Key Employee Deferred 
Compensation Plan (the "Bay State Plan") was merged into the NIPSCO Plan and the NIPSCO Plan was renamed the 
NiSource Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan"). Effective January I, 2004, the Columbia Energy 
Group Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Columbia Plan") was merged into the Plan. Effective January I, 2005, the 
Plan was amended and restated to comply with Code Section 409A, and guidance and regulations thereunder. Deferred 
Compensation, Discretionary Contributions, and earnings thereon, earned and vested prior to January I, 2005 shall be 
administered without giving effect to Code Section 409A, and guidance and regulations thereunder. Effective January I, 
2008, the Plan was amended and restated to incorporate the provisions of amendments to the Plan since the January I, 
2005, amendment and restatement and to allow participants to elect to participate in the Plan only during the applicable 
enrollment period or at such later date allowed under Code Section 409 A for certain performance based bonuses. The 
Plan was amended and restated again effective as of May 13, 2011 to transfer all administrative authority with respect to 
the Plan (including the authority to render decisions on claims and appeals and make administrative or ministerial 
amendments) from the ONC Committee to the Benefits Committee. The Plan was amended and restated again, effective 
as of January I, 2012, to (I) change eligibility to defer Compensation under the Plan; (2) limit the amount of annual 
incentive compensation that may be deferred under the Plan to 80% of such annual incentive compensation; and (3) 
clarify other administrative matters related to the Plan. 

The Plan is hereby amended and restated again, effective November I, 2012, to eliminate the prime rate of 
interest, as stated by the Wall Street Journal, as an investment option available only to certain Columbia Plan 
Participants and instead be available, if so chosen by the Benefits Committee, to all Participants. 

1.2 Purpose. The purpose of this Plan is to provide current tax planning opportunities as well as supplemental 
funds for retirement or death for selected employees of an Employer. It is intended that the Plan will aid in attracting and 
retaining employees of exceptional ability by providing them with these benefits. 



ARTICLE II 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purposes of the Plan, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated, unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise. Except when otherwise required by the context, any masculine terminology in this document shall 
include the feminine, and any singular terminology shall include the plural. The headings of Articles and Sections are 
included solely for convenience, and if there is any conflict between such headings and the text of the Plan, the text shall 
control. 

2.1 Account . The device used by an Employer to measure and determine the amount to be paid to a 
Participant under the Plan. Each Account shall be divided into a Pre-2005 Account containing contributions to the Plan 
earned and vested prior to January I, 2005, a Post-2004 Account containing contributions to the Plan earned and/or 
vested on or after January I, 2005, and, if applicable, a Transferred Bay State Account containing any amount 
transferred from the Bay State Plan or a Transferred Columbia Account containing any amount transferred from the 
Columbia Plan. 

2.2 Affiliate . Any corporation that is a member of a controlled group of corporations (as defined in Code 
Section 414(b)) that includes the Company; any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) that is under common 
control (as defmed in Code Section 414(c)) with the Company; any organization (whether or not incorporated) that is a 
member of an affiliated service group (as defined in Code Section 414(m)) that includes the Company; any leasing 
organization, to the extent that its employees are required to be treated as if they were employed by the Company 
pursuant to Code Section 414(n) and the regulations thereunder; and any other entity required to be aggregated with the 
Company pursuant to regulations under Code Section 414( o ). An entity shall be an Afflliate only with respect to the 
existing period as described in the preceding sentence. 

2.3 Annual Deferral Amount . The portion of a Participant's Compensation that a Participant elects to defer 
under this Plan for any one Plan Year. 

2.4 Beneficiary . The person, persons or entity entitled to receive any Plan benefits payable after a 
Participant's death. 

2.5 Benefits Committee. The NiSource Benefits Committee, or any delegate thereof. 

2.6 Board . The Board of Directors ofNiSource Inc. 

2. 7 Code . The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time. 

2.8 Company . NiSource Inc. 

2.9 Compensation . Aggregate basic annual salary or wage and annual incentive awards paid to a Participant 
by his Employer. Compensation shall include the following: (I) amounts deferred and excluded from the Participant's 
taxable income pursuant to Code Sections 125, 132 
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(f)(4), 402(e)(3), or 402(h)(l)(B), and (2) amounts deferred to a nonqualified plan maintained by an Employer. 
Compensation earned on or after January I, 2005 shall not include incentive payments other than annual incentive 
awards. Compensation does not include expense reimbursements, any form of noncash compensation, or benefits. 
Compensation does not include lump sum severance payments or lump sum vacation payouts. 

2.10 Discretionary Contribution . The Employer contribution credited to a Participant's 
Account under Section 5.3. 

2.11 Effective Date January I, 2012, the date on which the provisions of this amended and restated Plan 
become effective, except as otherwise provided herein. 

2.12 Election Form . The agreement properly submitted by a Participant to the Retirement Committee or 
Benefits Committee prior to the beginning of a Plan Year, with respect to a Deferral Commitment made for such Plan 
Year. 

2.13 Eligible Employee . A select group of management or highly compensated employees of the Employer 
selected by the ONC Committee in accordance with this Plan. 

2.14 Employer . The Company and any subsidiary or Affiliate of the Company designated by the ONC 
Committee to participate in the Plan. 

2.15 ONC Committee. The Officer Nomination and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of 
the Company. 

2.16 Participant. Any Eligible Employee who is participating in the Plan in accordance with its provisions. 

2.17 Plan . The NiSource Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as set forth herein and as amended 
from time to time. 

2.18 Plan Administrator. The Benefits Committee, or such delegate of the Benefits Committee delegated to 
carry out the administrative functions of the Plan as provided under Article IX. 

2.19 Plan Year. The 12-month period commencing each January I and ending the following December 31. 

2.20 Post-2004 Account . The excess of (I) the total balance of the Participant's Account determined as of a 
Participant's date of Separation from Service after December 31, 2004 over (2) his Pre-2005 Account, to which the 
Participant would be entitled under the Plan if he voluntarily separated from service without cause as of such date and 
received a full payment of benefits from the Plan on the earliest possible date allowed under the Plan following his 
Separation from Service. 
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2.21 Pre-2005 Account • The balance of a Participant's Account determined as of December 31, 2004, 
adjusted to reflect earnings credited to such balance from and after such date. 

2.22 Retirement Committee . A committee consisting of the Company's Senior Vice President of Human 
Resources and the Vice President of Human Resources (in charge of Total Rewards), or such other offices as shall be 
deemed equivalent to such positions, or the delegates thereof. 

2.23 Separation from Service . A termination of services provided by a Participant to his or her Employer, 
whether voluntarily or involuntarily, as determined by the Benefits Committee in accordance with Code Section 409A 
and the guidance promulgated thereunder. 

2.25 Specified Employee • A Participant who is in job scope level C2 or above with respect to any Employer 
that employs him or her; provided that if at any time the total number of employees in job category C2 and above is less 
than 50, a Specified Employee shall include any employee who meets the definition of "key employee" set forth in Code 
Section 416(i) (without reference to paragraph 5 of Code Section 416(i)). A Participant shall be deemed to be a Specified 
Employee with respect to a Separation from Service that occurs during a calendar year if he or she is a Specified 
Employee on September 30 of the preceding calendar year. The Benefits Committee shall determine which Participants 
are Specified Employees in accordance with the guidance promulgated under Code Section 409A. 

2.26 Transferred Bay State Account • The balance of a Participant's Account containing any amount 
transferred from the Bay State Plan. The Bay State Plan was merged into the Plan as of November I, 2000. The balance 
of the account of each Bay State Plan participant, determined as of November 1, 2000, was transferred to the Plan and 
became the initial balance in such Participant's Transferred Bay State Account in the Plan. A Participant's Transferred 
Bay State Account shall be held, administered, invested, and distributed pursuant to the terms of the Plan. 

2.27 Transferred Columbia Account . The balance of a Participant's Account containing any amount 
transferred from the Columbia Plan. The Columbia Plan was merged into the Plan as of January I, 2004. The balance of 
the account of each Columbia Plan participant, determined as of December 31, 2003, was transferred to the Plan and 
became the initial balance in such Participant's Transferred Columbia Account in the Plan. A Participant's Transferred 
Columbia Account shall be held, administered, invested, and distributed pursuant to the terms of the Plan. 

2.28 Unforeseeable Emergency • A severe fmancial hardship to the Participant resulting from an illness or 
accident of the Participant, the Participant's spouse, or a dependent (as defined in Code Section 152(a)) of the 
Participant, loss of the Participant's property due to casualty, or other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable 
circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the control of the Participant. 

2.29 Valuation Date. The close of business of each business day. 
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ARTICLE III 

ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

3.1 Eligibility. On and after January I, 2012, eligibility to participate in the Plan for a Plan Year shall be 
limited to (I) an employee in job scope level C2 or above, (2) an employee in job scope level D2 or above who 
completed an Election Form in 2011 with respect to an Annual Deferral Amount related to services performed in the 
Plan Year beginning January 1, 2012; provided however, that such an employee will remain eligible to defer 
Compensation after the 2012 Plan Year only if he or she completes an Election Form in each successive Plan Year after 
2012, and (3) any other key employee of an Employer who is designated from time to time by the ONC Committee. 

3.2 Participation . An Eligible Employee shall become a Participant in the Plan by electing to defer 
Compensation in accordance with Article IV. An Eligible Employee also becomes a participant if the Employer credits 
the Participant's Account with a Discretionary Contribution. 

3.3 Continuation of Participation . A Participant shall remain a Participant so long as his or her Account has 
not been fully distributed. 

3.4 Amendment of Eligibility Criteria . The ONC Committee may, in its discretion, change the criteria for 
eligibility for any reason, provided, however, that no change in the criteria for eligibility shall be effective unless such 
changes are (a) within guidelines established by the ONC Committee or (b) approved by the ONC Committee. Eligibility 
for participation in one year does not guarantee eligibility to participate in any future year. 

ARTICLE IV 

DEFERRALCO~MENTS 

4.1 Timing of Deferral Elections . An Eligible Employee may elect to defer Compensation for services 
performed in any Plan Year by submitting an Election Form to the Retirement Committee only during the annual 
enrollment period established by the Retirement Committee, which shall end no later than December 31st, of the year 
preceding such Plan Year. Thus, for any salary to be paid for services performed in a Plan Year, an election to defer such 
salary must be made no later than December 31, of the prior Plan Year. Further, an election to defer such annual 
incentive award must be made no later than December 31, of the prior Plan Year. To illustrate these provisions, an 
election to defer salary payable for services performed in 2013 must be made by December 31, 2012. Further, an 
election to defer annual incentive awards that are (1) not "performance-based compensation" as described under Code 
Section 409A, (2) earned for the 2013 calendar year, and (3) to be paid in March 2014, must be made by December 31, 
2012. 

4.2 Amount of Deferral . A Participant may elect an Annual Deferral Amount in the Election Form as 
follows: 
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(a) Base Salary Deferral Amount . The amount of Compensation related to base salary that a Participant may 
elect to defer in an Election Form shall be stated as a whole percentage of base Compensation from 5% to 
80%; provided, however, that the Company may reduce the amount deferred to the extent necessary to 
satisfy federal, state, local, or other tax withholding obligations and employee benefit plan withholding 
requirements. 

(b) Annual Incentive Deferral Amount . The amount of Compensation related to any annual incentive award 
that a Participant may elect to defer in an Election Form shall be stated as a whole percentage of the 
annual incentive award from 5% to 80%; provided, however, that the Company may reduce the amount 
deferred to the extent necessary to satisfy federal, state, local, or other tax withholding obligations and 
employee benefit plan withholding requirements. 

No amount of Compensation may be deferred after the date of a Participant's Separation from Service. 

4.3 Distribution Options . Each Election Form with respect to a Plan Year shall specify the date on which the 
applicable deferred amount and earnings thereon shall be distributed. Such date shall be the first to occur of (I) the date 
of the Participant's Separation from Service; or (2) a date selected by the Participant, provided that a selected date must 
be at least one year after the date the deferred amount would have been paid to the Participant in cash in the absence of 
the election to make the deferral, except as otherwise provided under Article VII. 

4.4 Duration of Election Form . A Participant shall make an election in his Election Form as to the time and 
form of payment of the Annual Deferral Amount for each Plan Year. A Participant's Election Form for any Plan Year is 
effective only for such Plan Year. In order to defer Compensation for a subsequent Plan Year, an Eligible Employee 
must file a new Election Form with respect to such Compensation. A Participant shall not be required to designate the 
same time and form of payment for each Plan Year. 

4.5 Modification of Election Form . Except as provided otherwise in this Plan, Election Forms shall be irrevocable. 

4.6 Change in Employment Status . If the Plan Administrator determines that a Participant has experienced a 
change in job scope level or employment status that no longer is eligible for participation in the Plan, but the 
Participant's employment with an Employer is not terminated, the Participant's existing Election Form shall terminate at 
the end of the current Plan Year, and no new Election Form may be submitted by such Participant for any Plan Year. 
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ARTICLE V 

ACCOUNTS 

5.1 Account . The Compensation deferred by a Participant under the Plan, including any Discretionary 
Contributions and earnings thereon, shall be credited to the Participant's Account. Separate subaccounts may be 
maintained to reflect different forms of distribution, investment options, levels of vesting, and forms of payment. The 
Account shall be a bookkeeping device utilized for the sole purpose of determining the benefits payable under the Plan 
and shall not constitute a separate fund of assets. 

5.2 Timing of Credits; Withholding . A Participant's deferred Compensation shall be credited to the 
Participant's Account at the time it would have been payable to the Participant. Any withholding of taxes or other 
amounts with respect to deferred Compensation that is required by federal, state or local law shall be withheld from the 
Participant's nondeferred Compensation to the maximum extent possible and any remaining amount shall reduce the 
amount credited to the Participant's Account. 

5.3 Discretionary Contributions . An Employer may make Discretionary Contributions to a Participant's 
Account. Discretionary Contributions shall be credited at such times and in such amounts as the ONC Committee in its 
sole discretion shall determine. The amount so credited to a Participant may be smaller or larger than the amount 
credited to any other Participant, and the amount credited to any Participant for a Plan Year may be zero, even though 
one or more other Participants receive a Discretionary Contribution for that Plan Year. 

5.4 Determination of Account . Each Participant's Account as of each Valuation Date shall consist of the 
balance of the Account as of the immediately preceding Valuation Date, adjusted as follows: 

(a) New Deferrals . The Account shall be increased by any deferred Compensation credited since such 
preceding Valuation Date. 

(b) Discretionary Contributions . The Account shall be increased by any Discretionary Contributions credited 
since such preceding Valuation Date. 

(c) Distributions . The Account shall be reduced by any benefits distributed from the Account to the 
Participant since such preceding Valuation Date. 

(d) Valuation of Account. The Account shall be increased or decreased by the aggregate earnings, gains and 
losses on such Account since such preceding Valuation Date, based on the manner in which the 
Participant's Account has been hypothetically allocated among the investment options selected by the 
Participant. 

5.5 Vesting of Account . Each Participant shall be vested in the amounts credited to such Participant's 
Account and earnings thereon as follows: 
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(a) Amounts Deferred . A Participant shall be I 00% vested at all times in the amount of Compensation 
elected to be deferred under the Plan, and earnings thereon. 

(b) Discretionary Contributions . A Participant's Discretionary Contributions, and earnings thereon, shall 
become vested as determined by the ONC Committee. 

(c) Transferred Account . A Participant shall be 100% vested at all times in the balance of his Transferred 
Bay State Account or Transferred Columbia Account, if any. 

5.6 Statement of Account . The Retirement Committee shall give to each Participant a statement showing the 
balance in the Participant's Account periodically, at such times as may be determined by the Retirement Committee, in 
written or electronic form. 

ARTICLE VI 

INVESTMENTS 

6.1 Investment Options . Amounts credited hereunder to the Account of a Participant shall be 
invested as such Participant elects among the investment choices provided to the Participant. The investment 
options shall be determined by the Plan Administrator from time to time in its sole and absolute discretion. As 
necessary, the Plan Administrator may, in its sole discretion, discontinue, substitute or add an investment option. 
Each such action will take effect on such date established by the Plan Administrator. 

6.2 Special Investment Option for Former Participants in the Bay State Plan and Participants in the 
Plan . Former participants in the Bay State Plan who became Participants in the Plan, or Participants in the Plan on 
November I, 2000, shall have an additional special investment option applicable solely to their Transferred Bay State 
Account balances, or their Account balances in the Plan, valued as of November I, 2000, and any subsequent amounts 
contributed to such Participant's Account. Such Participants may invest their Transferred Bay State Account balances, or 
their Account balances in the Plan as of November 1, 2000, and any subsequent amounts contributed to such 
Participant's Account, in a subaccount which shall be credited with earnings equal to one percentage point higher than 
the effective annual yield of the average of the Moody's Average Corporate Bond Yield Index for the previous calendar 
month as published by Moody's Investor Services, Inc. (or any successor publisher thereto), or, if such index is no longer 
published, a substantially similar index selected by the Plan Administrator. A Participant's Transferred Bay State 
Account balance, or his Account balance in the Plan on November I, 2000, shall be invested pursuant to this special 
investment option from and after November I, 2000, and until such time as another investment choice is designated by 
him under this Plan with respect to all or a portion of his Transferred Bay State Account, or his Account balance in the 
Plan on November I, 2000. Subsequent amounts contributed to any such Participant's Account may be invested pursuant 
to this option as designated by the Participant pursuant to this Plan. However, any portion of a Transferred Bay State 
Account, or an Account balance in the Plan, subsequently transferred from the investment 
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option described in this Section to another investment option may not be reinvested under this Section. 

6.3 Election of Investment Options . A Participant, in connection with completing his or her Election Form, 
shall elect one or more of the previously described investment options, as applicable, to be used to determine the 
amounts to be credited or debited to his or her Account. No Election Form of a Participant shall be effective until such 
time as the Participant submits his initial investment election to the Company. The Participant may (but is not required 
to) elect to add or delete one or more investment options to be used to determine the amounts to be credited or debited to 
his or her Account, or to change the portion of his or her Account allocated to each previously or newly elected 
investment option. If an election is made in accordance with the previous sentence, it shall apply as of the first business 
day deemed reasonably practicable by the Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion, and shall continue thereafter for 
each subsequent day in which the Participant participates in the Plan, unless changed in accordance with the previous 
sentence. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion, may impose limitations on the 
frequency with which one or more of the investment options elected in accordance with this Section may be added or 
deleted by such Participant; furthermore, the Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion, may impose limitations on the 
frequency with which the Participant may change the portion of his or her Account allocated to each previously or newly 
elected investment option. 

6.4 Allocation of Investment Options . In making any election related to investment options, the Participant 
shall specify, in increments specified by the Plan Administrator, the percentage of his or her Account or investment 
option, as applicable, to be allocated or reallocated. 

6.5 No Actual Investment . Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan that may be 
interpreted to the contrary, the investment options are to be used for measurement purposes only, and a 
Participant's election of any such investment option, the allocation of his or her Account thereto, the calculation 
of additional amounts and the crediting or debiting of such amounts to a Participant's Account shall not be 
considered or construed in any manner as an actual investment of his or her Account in any such investment 
option. In the event that the Company, in its own discretion, decides to invest funds in any or all of the 
investments on which the investment options are based, no Participant shall have any rights in or to such 
investments themselves. Without limiting the foregoing, a Participant's Account shall at all times be a 
bookkeeping entry only and shall not represent any investment made on his or her behalf by the Company; the 
Participant shall at all times remain an unsecured creditor of the Company. 

ARTICLEVTI 

PAYMENTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS 

7 .I Distributions/Events Generally . Participants generally will not be entitled to receive a distribution of 
their Account balance until they experience a Separation from Service for any reason. A Participant may receive a 
distribution before Separation from Service, however, in accordance with this Article VII, upon (I) an Unforeseeable 
Emergency that occurs before 
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Separation from Service, or (2) a year that has been designated by the Participant in an Election Form and that occurs 
before Separation from Service. 

7.2 In-Service Distributions . 

(a) General Pavments . A Participant may elect in ills or her Election Form to receive his or her 
Compensation deferred for a Plan Year, and all amounts credited or debited thereto, in a specified year 
while employed with an Employer. The Participant, in an Election Form, may elect to receive such an in­
service distribution as either a lump sum or equal annual installments over a period of not more than 15 
years. If a Participant does not make such an election, the payment shall be made in a lump sum. 

If a Participant elects to receive an in-service distribution as a lump sum, the amount of the lump sum 
payment will be based on the value of the Participant's account as of March 15 of the designated year. 
The distribution date generally shall be on or as soon as administratively practicable after the March 31 " 
of such year, or, if later, within such time frame permitted under Code Section 409A and the guidance 
and regulations thereunder. 

If a Participant elects to receive installments, the amount of each installment payment will be based on the 
value of the participant's account as of the March 15 preceding the distribution of each installment 
payment. The distribution date generally shall be each subsequent March 31, or if later, within such time 
frame permitted under Code Section 409A, and the guidance and regulations thereunder. 

(b) Modifying In-Service Distributions . 

(I) Pre-2005 Account. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, a Participant may modify his 
election as to the form or time of distribution of his entire Pre-2005 Account, and earnings 
thereon, by a writing filed with the Retirement Committee at any time prior to the commencement 
of payment. A Participant's modification of ills election as to the form or time of commencement 
of payment shall be ineffective, unless (I) the modification election is filed with the Retirement 
Committee more than 12 months prior to the time of commencement of payment, or (2) a 
Participant elects by written instrument delivered to the Company prior to the time of 
commencement of payment to have his Pre-2005 Account reduced by I 0%. This reduction shall 
be forfeited and used by the Plan to reduce expenses of administration. This reduction is intended 
to discourage a Participant from modifying his election as to the form or time of commencement 
of payment within the period set forth in clause (I) above and prevent him from being deemed in 
constructive receipt of his Pre-2005 Account prior to its actual payment to him. 
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(2) Post-2004 Account . The Company, in its discretion, may allow a Participant to modify his 
election as to the form or time of distribution of his entire Post-2004 Account, and earnings 
thereon, or of any portion of his or her Post-2004 Account and earnings thereon, if (I) such 
election does not take effect until at least 12 months after the date on which the election is made, 
(2) the first payment with respect to which such election is made is deferred for a period of not 
less than five (5) years from the date on which such payment would otherwise have been made, 
and (3) any election related to a payment to be made at a specified date is made at least 12 months 
prior to the date of the first scheduled payment. For purposes of the Plan, the term "payment" 
means each separate installment and not the collective group of installment payments. 

(3) Precedence of Distributions . With respect to both Pre-2005 Accounts and Post-2004 Accounts in 
the event a Participant has a Separation from Service, Unforeseable Emergency, or other event 
that triggers distribution of benefits under Article VII of this Plan, all amounts subject to an in­
service distribution shall be paid in accordance with other applicable provisions of the Plan and 
not under this Section 7.2. If, however, a Participant made an election to postpone an in-service 
distribution under Section 7 .2(b ), and the Participant experiences a Separation from Service, the 
distribution will be made in accordance with Section 7.2(b) and not Section 7.3. 

7.3 Distributions After Separation from Service . 

(a) Generally. If a Participant experiences a Separation from Service, the provisions of this Section 7.3 shall 
apply to the distribution of the Participant's Account. The Participant may elect, in his or her Election 
Form to receive such benefits as either a lump sum or in equal annual installments over a period not to 
exceed 15 years. If no such election is made, payment shall be made as a lump sum. 

(b) Pre-2005 Account . 

(I) Lump Sum . If payment of a Participant's Pre-2005 Account is to be made in a lump sum, the 
lump sum payment generally shall be made on or as soon as administratively practicable after the 
March 31 " immediately after the date in which the Participant experiences a Separation from 
Service. 

(2) Installments. If payment of a Participant's Pre-2005 Account is to be made in annual installments, 
the distribution of the first annual installment payment generally shall be made on or as soon as 
administratively practicable after the March 31 " immediately after the date in which the 
Participant experiences a Separation from Service. The amount of this first installment payment 
shall be based on the value of the Participant's Account as of the March 15 preceding the 
distribution date of this installment payment. Each subsequent installment payment generally shall 
be paid on or as soon as administratively 
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practicable after each subsequent March 31. The amount of each such installment shall be based 
on the value of the Participant's Account as of the March 15 preceding the distribution date of 
such installment. 

(3) Modifications to Time and Form of Payment. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, a 
Participant may modifY his election as to the form or time of distribution of his entire Pre-2005 
Account, and earnings thereon, by a writing filed with the Retirement Committee at any time prior 
to the commencement of payment. A Participant's modification of his election as to the form or 
time of commencement of payment shall be ineffective, unless (I) the modification election is 
filed with the Retirement Committee more than 12 months prior to the time of commencement of 
payment, or (2) a Participant elects by written instrument delivered to the Company prior to the 
time of commencement of payment to have his Pre-2005 Account reduced by I 0%. To clarifY 
how these provisions operate with respect to a Participant who originally elected to commence 
distribution upon Separation from Service, such a Participant may elect to be paid on or as soon as 
administratively practicable after one of the following permitted times: (a) the March 31 " 
immediately after the one-year anniversary date of the request to modifY the election (regardless 
of whether the Participant experiences a Separation from Service before such date), or (b) the 
March 31 ''immediately after the date of the modified election, provided however, that under this 
option the Participant's Pre-2005 Account shall be reduced by I 0%. This reduction shall be 
forfeited and used by the Plan to reduce expenses of administration. This reduction is intended to 
discourage a Participant from modifYing his election as to the form or time of commencement of 
payment within the period set forth in clause (I) above and prevent him from being deemed in 
constructive receipt of his Pre-2005 Account prior to its actual payment to him. 

(c) Post-2004 Account. 

(1) Lump Sum. 

(i) Non-Specified Employees . If payment of a Participant's Post-2004 Account is to be made 
to the Participant in a lump sum, and the Participant is not a Specified Employee of any 
Employer, the lump sum payment generally shall be made on or as soon as 
administratively practicable after the March 31 "immediately after the date in which the 
Participant experiences a Separation from Service. 

(ii) Specified Employees . If payment of a Participant's Post-2004 Account is to be made to 
the Participant in a lump sum, and the Participant is a Specified Employee of any 
Employer, the lump sum 
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payment generally shall be made on or as soon as administratively practicable after the 
later of (I) the March 31 "immediately after the date in which the Participant experiences 
a Separation from Service, or (2) the date that is six (6) months after the date in which the 
Participant experiences a Separation from Service, unless due to such Participant's death, 
in which case payment generally shall be made to the Beneficiary as soon as practicable 
after the date of the Participant's death. 

(2) Installments . 

(i) Non-Specified Employees . If payment of a Participant's Post-2004 Account is to be made 
to the Participant in annual installments, the distribution of the first annual installment 
payment generally shall be made on or as soon as administratively practicable after the 
March 31 " immediately after the date in which the Participant experiences a Separation 
from Service. The amount of this first installment payment shall be based on the value of 
the Participant's Account as of the March 15 preceding the distribution date of this 
installment payment. Each subsequent installment payment generally shall be paid on or as 
soon as administratively practicable after each subsequent March 31. The amount of each 
such installment shall be based on the value of the Participant's account as of the March 15 
preceding the distribution date of such installment. 

(ii) Specified Employees . If payment of a Participant's Post-2004 Account is to be made to 
the Participant in annual installments, and the Participant is a Specified Employee of any 
Employer, the distribution of the first annual installment payment generally shall be made 
on or as soon as administratively practicable after the later of (I) the March 31 " 
immediately after the date in which the Participant experiences a Separation from Service, 
or (2) the date that is six ( 6) months after the date in which the Participant experiences a 
Separation from Service, unless due to such Participant's death, in which case such 
installment payment generally shall be made to the Beneficiary as soon as practicable after 
the date of the Participant's death. The amount of this first installment payment shall be 
based on the value of the Participant's Account as of the March 15 preceding the 
distribution date of this installment payment. Each subsequent installment payment 
generally shall be paid on or as soon as administratively practicable after each subsequent 
March 31. The amount of each such installment shall be based on the value of the 
Participant's account as of the March 15 preceding the distribution date of such 
installment. 
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(3) Modifications to Time and Form of Payment . The Company, in its discretion, may allow a 
Participant to modifY his election as to the form or time of distribution of his entire Post-2004 
Account, and earnings thereon, or of any portion of his or her Post-2004 Account and earnings 
thereon, if ( 1) such election does not take effect until at least 12 months after the date on which 
the election is made, (2) the first payment with respect to which such election is made is deferred 
for a period of not less than five (5) years from the date on which such payment would otherwise 
have been made, and (3) any election related to a payment to be made at a specified date is made 
at least 12 months prior to the date of the first scheduled payment. For purposes of the Plan, the 
term "payment" means each separate installment and not the collective group of installment 
payments. 

7.4 Unforeseeable Emergency/Hardship Distributions. 

(a) Pre-2005 Account . Upon a finding that a Participant has suffered an Unforeseeable Emergency, 
the Retirement Committee may, in its sole discretion, make distributions from the Participant's 
Pre-2005 Account (including his Transferred Bay State Account or Transferred Columbia 
Account, if applicable). The amount of such a distribution shall be limited to the amount 
reasonably necessary to meet the Participant's needs resulting from the Unforeseeable Emergency. 
Any distribution pursuant to this Subsection shall be payable in a lump sum. The distribution shall 
be paid within 30 days after the determination of an Unforeseeable Emergency. 

(b) Post-2004 Account . Upon a finding that a Participant has suffered an Unforeseeable Emergency, 
the Retirement Committee may, in its sole discretion, make distributions from the Participant's 
Post-2004 Account and/or allow a Participant to suspend his Annual Deferral Amount entirely in 
accordance with the guidance under Code Section 409A. The amount of such distribution shall be 
limited to the amount necessary to satisfY such Unforeseeable Emergency plus amounts necessary 
to pay taxes reasonably anticipated as a result of the distribution, after taking into account the 
extent to which such hardship is or may be relieved through reimbursement or compensation by 
insurance or otherwise or by liquidation of the Participant's assets (to the extent the liquidation of 
such assets would not itself cause severe financial hardship). Any distribution pursuant to this 
Section 7 .4(b) shall be payable in a lump sum. The distribution shall be paid within 30 days after 
the determination of an Unforeseeable Emergency. 

7.5 Distribution Provisions Applicable to a Transferred Bay State Account . Notwithstanding any other 
provision in the Plan, the following provisions shall apply to the form and time of payment of the balance of a 
Transferred Bay State Account: 
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(a) General Payment Rules . The portion of a Transferred Bay State Account not paid pursuant to Section 7.2 
shall be paid to a Participant following his separation from service, or to his Beneficiary in the case of 
death, in the form selected by the Participant, by written instrument delivered to the Retirement 
Committee before November 1, 2000. If no form is selected by the Participant, payment shall be made in 
a lump sum. The provisions of Section 7 .2(b) shall apply with respect to the election of the form of 
payment of a Transferred Bay State Account and the modification of such election. 

(b) Modifications to General Payment Rules . Any former employee of Bay State Gas Company who (I) was 
a participant in the Bay State Plan immediately prior to November I, 2000, (2) terminated employment 
with Bay State Gas Company prior to November I, 2000, for any reason other than Retirement, death or 
Disability (as such terms were defined in the Bay State Plan immediately prior to November I, 2000), and 
(3) as ofNovember I, 2000, bad not commenced payment of his Account shall not commence payment of 
his Transferred Bay State Account until the earlier of the Participant's attainment of age 65, Disability or 
death. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Retirement Committee may, in its sole discretion, 
vary the manner and time of making the payment of a Participant's Transferred Bay State Account to such 
former Bay State employee, and may make such distributions over a longer or shorter period of time or in 
a lump sum. 

7.6 Automatic Cash-Out . In the event a Participant's Account balance at the time distribution begins, or 
following a distribution of an installment payment is $15,000 or less, that balance shall be paid to the Participant or his 
Beneficiary in a lump sum on the next annual installment distribution date notwithstanding any form of benefit payment 
elected by the Participant. 

7.7 Withholding for Taxes . To the extent required by the law in effect at the time payments are made, an 
Employer shall withhold from the payments made hereunder any taxes required to be withheld by the federal or any state 
or local government, including any amounts which the Employer determines is reasonably necessary to pay any 
generation-skipping transfer tax which is or may become due. A Beneficiary, however, may elect not to have 
withholding of federal income tax pursuant to Code Section 3405(a)(2). 

7.8 Payment to Guardian . The Retirement Committee may direct payment to the duly appointed guardian, 
conservator or other similar legal representative of a Participant or Beneficiary to whom payment is due. In the absence 
of such a legal representative, the Retirement Committee may, in its sole and absolute discretion, make payment to a 
person having the care and custody of a minor, incompetent or person incapable of handling the disposition of property 
upon proof satisfactory to the Retirement Committee of incompetency, status as a minor, or incapacity. Such distribution 
shall completely discharge the Company from all liability with respect to such benefit. 
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ARTICLEVID 

BENEFICIARY DESIGNATION 

8.1 Beneficiary Designation . Subject to Section 8.3, each Participant shall have the right, at any time, to 
designate one or more persons or an entity as Beneficiary (both primary as well as secondary) to whom benefits under 
the Plan shall be paid in the event of the Participant's death prior to complete distribution of the Participant's Account. 
Each Beneficiary designation shall be in a written form prescribed by the Retirement Committee and shall be effective 
only when filed with the Retirement Committee during the Participant's lifetime. 

8.2 Changing Beneficiary . Subject to Section 8.3, any Beneficiary designation may be changed by a 
Participant without the consent of the previously named Beneficiary by the filing of a new designation with the 
Retirement Committee. The filing of a new designation shall cancel all designations previously filed. 

apply: 
8.3 Community Property . If the Participant resides in a community property state, the following rules shall 

(a) Designation by a married Participant of a Beneficiary other than the Participant's spouse shall not be 
effective unless the spouse executes a written consent that acknowledges the effect of the designation, or 
it is established that the consent cannot be obtained because the spouse cannot be located. 

(b) A married Participant's Beneficiary designation may be changed by a Participant with the consent of the 
Participant's spouse as provided for in Section 8.3(a) by the filing of a new designation with the 
Retirement Committee. 

(c) If the Participant's marital status changes after the Participant has designated a Beneficiary, the following 
shall apply: 

(I) If the Participant is married at the time of death but was unmarried when the designation was 
made, the designation shall be void unless the spouse has consented to it in the manner prescribed 
in Section 8.3(a). 

(2) If the Participant is unmarried at the time of death but was married when the designation was 
made: 

(i) The designation shall be void if the spouse was named as Beneficiary, unless the 
designation is reaffirmed when the Participant is unmarried. 

(ii) The designation shall remain valid if a nonspouse Beneficiary was named. 
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(3) If the Participant was married when the designation was made and is married to a different spouse 
at death, the designation shall be void unless the new spouse has consented to it in the manner 
prescribed above. 

8.4 No Beneficiary Designation . If any Participant fails to designate a Beneficiary in the manner provided 
above, if the designation is void or if the Beneficiary designated by a deceased Participant dies before the Participant or 
before complete distribution of the Participant's benefits, the Participant's Beneficiary shall be the person in the first of 
the following classes in which there is a survivor: 

(a) The Participant's spouse; 

(b) The Participant's children in equal shares, except that if any of the children predeceases the Participant 
but leaves issue surviving, then such issue shall take, by right of representation, the share the parent 
would have taken if living; 

(c) The Participant's estate. 

ARTICLE IX 

PLAN ADMINISTRATION 

9.1 Allocation of Duties to Committees . The Plan shall be administered by the Benefits Committee, as 
delegated by the ONC Committee. The Benefits Committee shall have the authority to make, amend, interpret, and 
enforce all appropriate rules and regulations for the administration of the Plan and decide or resolve any and all 
questions, including interpretations of the Plan, as may arise in such administration, except as otherwise reserved to the 
ONC Committee herein, or by resolution or charter of the respective committees. Members of the Retirement Committee 
or Benefits Committee may be Participants under the Plan. 

In its discretion, the Plan Administrator may delegate to any division or department of the Company the 
discretionary authority to make decisions regarding Plan administration, within limits and guidelines from time to time 
established by the Plan Administrator. The delegated discretionary authority shall be exercised by such division or 
department's seruor officer, or his/her delegate. Within the scope of the delegated discretionary authority, such officer or 
person shall act in the place of the Plan Administrator and his/her decisions shall be treated as decisions of the Plan 
Administrator. 

Specifically, the Plan Administrator hereby delegates certain of its discretionary authority with respect to the 
Plan to the Retirement Committee. Pursuant to the foregoing sentence, the delegation by the Plan Administrator to the 
Retirement Committee includes, but shall not be limited to, the ability to solicit and receive deferral elections, establish 
enrollment periods, distribute account statements, receive distribution elections and any permitted modifications thereto, 
make distributions, and deterrlline claims under the Plan. 
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9.2 Agents . The Retirement Committee, Benefits Committee or ONC Committee may, from time to time, 
employ agents and delegate to them such administrative duties as it sees fit, and may from time to time consult with 
counsel who may be counsel to the Company. 

9.3 Information Required by Plan Administrator. The Company shall furnish the Plan Administrator with 
such data and information as the Plan Administrator may deem necessary or desirable in order to administer the Plan. 
The records of the Company as to an employee's or Participant's period or periods of employment, Separation from 
Service and the reason therefore, reemployment and Compensation will be conclusive on all persons unless determined 
to the Plan Administrator's satisfaction to be incorrect. Participants and other persons entitled to benefits under the Plan 
also shall furnish the Plan Administrator with such evidence, data or information as the Plan Administrator considers 
necessary or desirable to administer the Plan. 

9.4 Binding Effect of Decisions . The decision or action of the Retirement Committee, Benefits Committee 
and/or the ONC Committee (or any duly authorized delegate of any such committee) with respect to any question arising 
out of or in connection with the administration, interpretation and application of the Plan and the rules and regulations 
promulgated hereunder shall be final, conclusive and binding upon all persons having any interest in the Plan. 

9.5 Section 16 Compliance . 

(a) In General . This Plan is intended to be a formula plan for purposes of Section 16 of the Securities 
Exchange Act (the "Act"). Accordingly, in the case of a deferral or other action under the Plan that 
constitutes a transaction that could be covered by Rule 16b-3(d) or (e), if it were approved by the ONC 
Committee ("Board Approval"), it is intended that the Plan shall be administered by delegates of the 
Board, in the case of a Participant who is subject to Section 16 of the Act, in a manner that will permit the 
Board Approval of the Plan to avoid any additional Board Approval of specific transactions to the 
maximum possible extent. 

(b) Approval of Distributions : This Subsection shall govern the distribution of a deferral that (i) is being 
distributed to a Participant in cash, (ii) is made to a Participant who is subject to Section 16 of the Act at 
the time the interest in phantom Company Common Stock, if any, would be liquidated in connection with 
the distribution, and (iii) if paid at the time the distribution would be made without regard to this 
subsection, could result in a violation of Section 16 of the Act because there is an opposite way 
transaction that would be matched with the liquidation of the Participant's interest in phantom Company 
Common Stock (either as a "discretionary transaction," within the meaning of Rule 16b-3(b)(l), or as a 
regular transaction, as applicable) ("Covered Distribution"). In the case of a Covered Distribution, if the 
liquidation of the Participant's interest in the phantom Company Common Stock in connection with the 
distribution has not received Board Approval by the time the distribution would be made if it were not a 
Covered Distribution, or if it is a discretionary transaction, then the actual distribution to the Participant 
shall be delayed only until the earlier of: 
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(IJ In the case of a transaction that is not a discretionary transaction, Board Approval of the 
liquidation of the Participant's interest in the phantom Company Common Stock in connection 
with the distribution, or 

(2) The date the distribution would no longer violate Section 16 of the Act, e.g., when the Participant 
is no longer subject to Section 16 of the Act, or when the time between the liquidation and an 
opposite way transaction is sufficient. 

ARTICLE X 

CLAIMS PROCEDURE 

I 0.1 Claim . Claims for benefits under the Plan shall be made in writing to the Retirement Committee. The 
Retirement Committee shall establish rules and procedures to be followed by Participants and Beneficiaries in filing 
claims for benefits, and for furnishing and verifying proof necessary to establish the right to benefits in accordance with 
the Plan, consistent with the remainder of this Article. 

I 0.2 Review of Claim . The Retirement Committee shall review all claims for benefits. Upon receipt by the 
Retirement Committee of such a claim, it shall determine all facts that are necessary to establish the right of the claimant 
to benefits under the provisions of the Plan and the amount thereof as herein provided within 90 days of receipt of such 
claim. If prior to the expiration of the initial 90 day period, the Retirement Committee determines additional time is 
needed to come to a determination on the claim, the Retirement Committee shall provide written notice to the 
Participant, Beneficiary or other claimant of the need for the extension, not to exceed a total of 180 days from the date 
the application was received. If the Retirement Committee fails to notify the claimant in writing of the denial of the 
claim within 90 days after the Retirement Committee receives it, the claim shall be deemed denied. 

I 0.3 Notice of Denial of Claim . If the Retirement Committee wholly or partially denies a claim for benefits, 
the Retirement Committee shall, within a reasonable period of time, but no later than 90 days after receiving the claim 
(unless extended as provided above), notify the claimant in writing of the denial of the claim. Such notification shall be 
written in a manner reasonably expected to be understood by such claimant and shall in all respects comply with the 
requirements of ERISA, including but not limited to inclusion of the following: 

(a) the specific reason or reasons for denial of the claim; 

(b) a specific reference to the pertinent sections of the Plan on which the denial is based; 

(c) a description of any additional material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and 
an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; and, where appropriate, 
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(d) an explanation of the Plan's review procedures. 

I 0.4 Reconsideration of Denied Claim . Within 60 days after receipt of the notice of the denial of a claim or 
within 60 days after the claim is deemed denied as set forth above, if applicable, such claimant or duly authorized 
representative may request, by mailing or delivery of such written notice to the Benefits Committee, a reconsideration by 
the Benefits Committee of the decision denying the claim. If the claimant or duly authorized representative fails to 
request such a reconsideration within such 60 day period, it shall be conclusively determined for all purposes of the Plan 
that the denial of such claim by the Benefits Committee is correct. In connection with the claimant's appeal of the denial 
of his or her benefit, the claimant may review pertinent documents and may submit issues and comments in writing. 

After such reconsideration request, the Benefits Committee shall determine within 60 days of receipt of the 
claimant's request for reconsideration whether such denial of the claim was correct and shall notify such claimant in 
writing of its determination. In the event of special circumstances determined by the Benefits Committee, the time for 
the Benefits Committee to make a decision may be extended by an additional 60 days upon written notice to the claimant 
prior to the commencement of the extension. The notice of decision shall be in writing and shall include specific reasons 
for the decision, written in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant, as well as specific references to the 
pertinent Plan provisions on which the decision is based. If the decision on review is not furnished within the time period 
set forth above, the claim shall be deemed denied on review. 

If such determination is favorable to the claimant, it shall be binding and conclusive. If such determination is 
adverse to such claimant, it shall be binding and conclusive unless the claimant or his duly authorized representative 
notifies the Benefits Committee within 90 days after the mailing or delivery to the claimant by the Benefits Committee 
of its determination that claimant intends to institute legal proceedings challenging the determination of the Benefits 
Committee and actually institutes such legal proceedings within 180 days after such mailing or delivery. 

10.5 Employer to Supply Information o To enable the Retirement Committee or the Benefits Committee to 
perform its functions, each Employer shall supply full and timely information to the respective committee of all matters 
relating to the retirement, death or other cause for Separation from Service of all Participants, and such other pertinent 
facts as the respective committee may require. 

ARTICLE XI 

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF PLAN 

11.1 Plan Amendment o The Benefits Committee, the ONC Committee or the Board shall have the authority 
to amend the Plan. The ONC Committee or the Board shall have the exclusive authority to amend the Plan regarding 
eligibility for the Plan, the amount or level of benefits awarded under the Plan, and the time and form of payments for 
benefits from the Plan. In 
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addition, the ONC Committee or the Board shall also have the exclusive authority to make amendments that constitute a 
material increase in compensation, any change requiring action or consent by a committee of the Board pursuant to the 
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the New York Stock Exchange or other applicable law, or such other 
material changes to the Plan such that approval of the Board is required. Unless otherwise determined by the ONC 
Committee, the Benefits Committee shall have the authority to amend the Plan in all respects that are not exclusively 
reserved to the ONC Committee or the Board. 

The respective committee may at any time amend the Plan by written instrument, notice of which is given to all 
Participants, and to Beneficiaries. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, no amendment shall reduce the amount 
accrued in any Account prior to the date such notice of the amendment is given. 

11.2 Plan Termination . The ONC Committee or the Company at any time may partially or completely 
terminate the Plan if, in its judgment, the tax, accounting or other effects of the continuance of the Plan, or potential 
payments thereunder, would not be in the best interests of the Employers. 

(a) Partial Termination . The ONC Committee may partially terminate the Plan by instructing the Retirement 
Committee not to accept any additional Annual Deferral Amounts. If such a partial termination occurs, 
the Plan shall otherwise continue to be administered with respect to Account balances credited before the 
effective date of such partial termination, and distribution shall be made at such times as specified under 
this Plan. 

(b) Complete Termination . The ONC Committee may completely terminate the Plan by instructing the 
Retirement Committee not to accept any additional Annual Deferral Amounts, and by terminating all 
ongoing Annual Deferral Amounts. If such a complete termination occurs, the Plan shall cease to operate 
and the Employers shall pay out each Pre-2005 Account in equal monthly installments over the following 
period, based on the Pre-2005 Account balance: 

Accgynt Balance Pa~out Period 

Less than $50,000 Lump Sum 

$50,000 but less than $100,000 3 Years 

More than $100,000 5 Years 

Payments shall commence within 65 days after the ONC Committee terminates the Plan, and earnings 
shall continue to be credited on the unpaid Account balance. Employers shall pay out each Post-2004 
Account in a manner consistent with Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-3G)(4)(ix) or any successor 
guidance under Code Section 409A. 
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ARTICLE XII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

12.1 Unfunded Plan. The Plan is an unfunded plan maintained primarily to provide deferred compensation 
benefits for a select group of"management or highly-compensated employees" within the meaning of Sections 201,301 
and 401 of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), and therefore is exempt 
from the provisions of Parts 2, 3 and 4 of Title I of ERISA. Nothing contained in the Plan shall constitute a guaranty by 
the Company or any other Employer or any other entity or person that the assets of the Company or any other Employer 
shall be sufficient to pay any benefit hereunder. 

12.2 Company and Employer Obligations • The obligation to make benefit payments to any Participant 
under the Plan shall be a joint and several liability of the Company and the Employer that employed the Participant. 

12.3 Unsecured General Creditor . Participants and Beneficiaries shall be unsecured general creditors, with 
no secured or preferential right to any assets of the Company, any other Employer, or any other party for payment of 
benefits under the Plan. Any life insurance policies, annuity contracts or other property purchased by the Employer in 
connection with the Plan shall remain its general, unpledged and unrestricted assets. Obligations of the Company and 
each other Employer under the Plan shall be an unfunded and unsecured promise to pay money in the future. 

12.4 Trust Fund . Subject to Section 12.3, the Company may establish separate subtrusts for deferrals by 
employees of each Employer, pursuant to a trust agreement entered into with such trustees as the Benefits Committee 
may approve, for the purpose of providing for the payment of benefits owed under the Plan. At its discretion, each 
Employer may contribute deferrals under the Plan for its employees to the subtrust established with respect to such 
Employer under such trust agreement. To the extent any benefits provided under the Plan are paid from any such 
subtrust, the Employer shall have no further obligation to pay them. If not paid from a subtrust, such benefits shall 
remain the obligation of the Employer. Although such subtrusts may be irrevocable, their assets shall be held for 
payment of all the Company's general creditors in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy. 

12.5 Nonalienation/Nonassignability • Neither a Participant nor any other person shall have any right to 
commute, sell, assign, transfer, pledge, anticipate, mortgage, or otherwise encumber, transfer, hypothecate, or convey in 
advance of actual receipt the amounts, if any, payable hereunder, or any part thereof or rights to, which are expressly 
declared to be unassignable and nontransferable. No part of the amounts payable shall, prior to actual payment, be 
subject to seizure or sequestration for the payment of any debts, judgments, alimony, or separate maintenance owed by a 
Participant or any other person, nor be transferable by operation of law in the event of a Participant's or any other 
person's bankruptcy or insolvency. 

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the Account of any Participant shall be subject to and payable in the 
amount determined in accordance with any qualified domestic relations order, 
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as that term is defined in Section 206(d)(3) of ERISA. The Retirement Committee shall provide for payment in a lump 
sum from a Participant's Account to an alternate payee (as defined in Code Section 414(p )(8)) as soon as 
administratively practicable following receipt of such order. Any federal, state or local income tax associated with such 
payment shall be the responsibility of the alternate payee. The balance of an Account that is subject to any qualified 
domestic relations order shall be reduced by the amount of any payment made pursuant to such order. 

12.6 Indemnification. 

(a) Limitation of Liabilitv . Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or any trust established under 
the Plan, none of the Company, any other Employer, any member of the Retirement Committee, the 
Benefits Committee or the ONC Committee, nor an individual acting as an employee or agent or delegate 
of any of them, shall be liable to any Participant, former Participant, Beneficiary, or any other person for 
any claim, loss, liability or expense incurred in connection with the Plan or any trust established under the 
Plan, except when the same shall have been judicially determined to be due to the willful misconduct of 
such person. 

(b) Indemnitv . The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Retirement Committee, 
the Benefits Committee and the ONC Committee, or any employee of the Company or any individual 
acting as an employee or agent of either of them (to the extent not indemnified or saved harmless under 
any liability insurance or any other indemnification arrangement with respect to the Plan or any trust 
established under the Plan) from any and all claims, losses, liabilities, costs and expenses (including 
attorneys' fees) arising out of any actual or alleged act or failure to act made in good faith pursuant to the 
provisions of the Plan, including expenses reasonably incurred in the defense of any claim relating thereto 
with respect to the administration of the Plan or any trust established under the Plan, except that no 
indemnification or defense shall be provided to any person with respect to any conduct that has been 
judicially determined, or agreed by the parties, to have constituted willful misconduct on the part of such 
person, or to have resulted in his or her receipt of personal profit or advantage to which he or she is not 
entitled. In connection with the indemnification provided by the preceding sentence, expenses incurred in 
defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding, or incurred in connection with a civil or criminal 
investigation, may be paid by the Company in advance of the fmal disposition of such action, suit, 
proceeding, or investigation, as authorized by the Retirement Committee, the Benefits Committee or the 
ONC Committee in the specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the party to be 
indemnified to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that the person is entitled to be 
indemnified by the Company pursuant to this paragraph. 

12.7 No Enlargement of Employment Rights . The Plan shall not constitute a contract of employment 
between an Employer and the Participant. Nothing in the Plan shall give any 
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Participant or Beneficiary the right to be retained in the service of an Employer or to interfere with the right of an 
Employer to discipline or discharge a Participant at any time. 

12.8 Protective Provisions . A Participant shall cooperate with his Employer by furnishing any and all 
information requested by the Employer in order to facilitate the payment of benefits hereunder, and by taking such 
physical examinations as the Employer may deem necessary and taking such other action as may be requested by the 
Employer. 

12.9 Governing Law • The Plan shall be construed and administered under the laws of the State of Indiana, 
except as preempted by federal law. 

12.10 Validity • In case any provision of the Plan shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, said illegality 
or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts hereof, but the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal 
and invalid provision had never been inserted herein. 

12.11 Notice • Any notice required or permitted under the Plan shall be sufficient if in writing and hand 
delivered or sent by registered or certified mail. Such notice shall be deemed as given as of the date of delivery or, if 
delivery is made by mail, as of the date shown on the postmark on the receipt for registration or certification. Mailed 
notice to the Retirement Committee or the Benefits Committee shall be directed to the Company's address. Mailed notice 
to a Participant or Beneficiary shall be directed to the individual's last known address in the applicable Employer's 
records. 

12.12 Successors . The provisions of the Plan shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Employers and their 
successors and assigns. The term successors as used herein shall include any corporate or other business entity that shall, 
whether by merger, consolidation, purchase, or otherwise, acquire all or substantially all of the business and assets of an 
Employer, and successors of any such corporation or other business entity. 

12.13 Incapacity of Recipient • If any person entitled to a benefit payment under the Plan is deemed by the 
Plan Administrator to be incapable of personally receiving and giving a valid receipt for such payment, then, unless and 
until a claim shall have been made by a duly appointed guardian or other legal representative of such person, the Plan 
Administrator may provide for such payment or any part thereof to be made to any other person or institution then 
contributing toward or providing for the care and maintenance of such person. Any such payment shall be a payment for 
the account of such person and a complete discharge of any liability of the Company, any other Employer, the Plan 
Administrator and the Plan. 

12.14 Unclaimed Benefit. Each Participant shall keep the Plan Administrator informed of his or her current 
address and the current address of his or her Beneficiaries. The Plan Administrator shall not be obligated to search for 
the whereabouts of any person. If the location of a Participant is not made known to the Plan Administrator within 
three years after the date on which payment of the Participant's benefit may first be made, payment may be made as 
though the Participant had died at the end of the three-year period. If, within one additional year after such three-year 
period has elapsed or within three years after the actual death of a Participant, the Plan 
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Administrator is unable to locate any Beneficiary of the Participant, then the Plan Administrator shall have no further 
obligation to pay any benefit hereunder to such Participant, Beneficiary, or any other person and such benefit shall be 
irrevocably forfeited. 

12.15 Tax Compliance and Payouts . 

(a) It is intended that the Plan comply with the provisions of Code Section 409A of the Code, so as to prevent 
the inclusion in gross income of any amounts deferred hereunder in a taxable year that is prior to the 
taxable year or years in which such amounts would otherwise actually be paid or made available to 
Participants or Beneficiaries. This Plan shall be construed, administered, and governed in a manner that 
affects such intent, and neither any Participant, Beneficiary, nor Plan Administrator shall not take any 
action that would be inconsistent with such intent. 

(b) Although the Plan Administrator shall use its best efforts to avoid the imposition of taxation, interest and 
penalties under Code Seetion 409A, the tax treatment of deferrals under this Plan is not warranted or 
guaranteed. Neither the Company, the other Affiliates, the Plan Administrator, the Retirement 
Committee, nor any designee shall be held liable for any taxes, interest, penalties or other monetary 
amounts owed by any Participant, Beneficiary or other taxpayer as a result of the Plan. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Plan, (I) in the event that the Internal Revenue 
Service prevails in its claim that amounts contributed to the Plan for the benefit of a Participant, and/or 
earnings thereon, constitute taxable income under Code Section 409 A, and guidance and regulations 
thereunder, to the Participant or his Beneficiary for a taxable year prior to the taxable year in which such 
contributions and/or earnings are distributed to him, or (2) in the event that legal counsel satisfactory to 
the Company, and the applicable Participant or his Beneficiary, renders an opinion that the Internal 
Revenue Service would likely prevail in such a claim, the Post-2004 Account, to the extent constituting 
such taxable income, shall be immediately distributed to the Participant or his Beneficiary. For purposes 
of this Section, the Internal Revenue Service shall be deemed to have prevailed in a claim if such claim is 
upheld by a court of fmal jurisdiction, or, if based upon an opinion of legal counsel satisfactory to the 
Company and the Participant or his Beneficiary, the Plan fails to appeal a decision of the Internal 
Revenue Service, or a court of applicable jurisdiction, with respect to such claim to an appropriate 
Internal Revenue Service appeals authority or to a court of higher jurisdiction within the appropriate time 
period. 

{Signature on following page} 

25 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has caused the NiSource Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan 
to be executed in its name by its duly authorized officer, effective as of November I, 2012. 

NISOURCE INC. 

By: /s/ Joel Hoelzer 

Its: V.P. Human Resources 

Date: 11120/2012 

COLUMBUS/1585131v.14 
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POLICY SUBJECT: Executive Severance Policy 

EFFECTIVE DATE: June l, 2002 

REVISED: January I, 2012 

I. Puroose . The NiSource Executive Severance Policy ("Policy") was established to provide Severance Pay and other benefits to 
terminated executive-level employees of NiSource Inc. and certain subsidiaries and affiliate corporations ("Company") who 
satisfY the terms of the Policy. Benefits under the Policy shall be in lieu of any benefits available under the NiSource Severance 
Policy or any other severance plan or policy maintained by the Company or any Affiliate; provided however that benefits will 
not be payable under the Policy if the relevant termination of employment results in the employee being eligible for a payment 
under a Change in Control and Termination Agreement. The Policy is amended and restated effective January I, 2012. 

2. Administration . The Policy is administered by the Officer Nomination and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors 
of the Company ("Committee"). The Committee bas the complete discretion and authority with respect to the Policy and its 
application. The Committee reserves the right to interpret the Policy, prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations 
relating to it, determine the terms and provisions of severance benefits and make all other determinations it deems necessary or 
advisable for the administration of the Policy. The determination of the Committee in all matters regarding the Policy shall be 
conclusive and binding on all persons. The Committee may delegate any of its duties under the Policy to the Senior Vice 
President of Human Resources and hereby delegates to the Senior Vice President of Human Resources the authority to develop 
and implement administrative guidelines regarding the operation of the Policy. 

3. Scope . The Policy will apply to all full-time or part-time regular, non-union employees of the Company and each of its 
affiliated entities (collectively, "Affiliates" and each an "Affiliate") whose job scope level, as established by the Company, is 
D2 (or its equivalent) or above ("Participants"). 

4. Eligibility for Severance Pay . A Participant becomes entitled to receive severance pay ("Severance Pay") only if he or she is 
terminated by an Affiliate for any of the following reasons, provided that such a termination event constitutes a "separation 
from service" as defined under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and applicable guidance 
thereunder, and further provided the conditions described in Section 5 below are met: 

(a) The Participant's position ts eliminated due to a reduction in force or other restructuring. 

(b) The Participant's position is moved by the Company more than 50 miles from its current location and results in the 
Participant having a longer commute of at least 20 miles and the Participant chooses not to relocate, and such events are 
considered a "good reason" termination under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and 
applicable guidance thereunder. 

(c) The Participant's employment is constructively terminated. Constructive termination shall be defmed in a marmer consistent 
with the guidance for a "good reason" termination under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, 
and applicable guidance thereunder, and means (I) the scope of the Participant's position is changed materially or (2) the 
Participant's base pay is reduced by a material amount or (3) the Participant's opportunity to earn a bonus under a short­
term cash incentive compensation plan of the Affiliates is materially reduced or is eliminated, and, in any such event, the 
Participant chooses not to remain employed in such position, If a Participant does not assert constructive termination within 
14 days of being informed of a change described in (I), (2) or (3) above, in a written instrument delivered to the Senior 
Vice President of Human Resources, such change will not be deemed a constructive termination. The decision as to 
whether such a change constitutes constructive termination shall be made by the Committee, not the Participant. If the 
Participant disagrees, the Participant must follow the claims procedure set forth in Section 14. 



5. Conditions to Receipt of Benefits. 

(a) Severance Pay is not available to a Participant otherwise eligible for Severance Pay who transfers to another position with 
any Affiliate. 

(b) Severance Pay is not available to a Participant whose position is eliminated due to (I) the sale of the Affiliate or assets of 
the Affiliate which employs the Participant on the date of termination or (2) the outsourcing of work, where in either such 
event the purchaser of the Mfiliate or assets of the Affiliate or the outsourcing service provider makes an offer of 
employment to the Participant that, if it were an Affiliate, would not constitute "constructive termination" as described in 
Section 4( c). 

(c) A Participant must execute and not revoke the release described in Section 6 below. 

(d) During the period in which a Participant is entitled to consider the execution of the release described in Section 6, or during 
such other period as is otherwise agreed to by the Company and the Participant, he or she may be required to complete 
unfinished business projects and be available for discussions regarding matters relative to the Participant's duties. 

(e) A Participant must return all Affiliate property and information to the Affiliate. 

(f) A Participant must agree to pay all outstanding amounts owed to any Affiliate and authorize the Affiliate to withhold any 
outstanding amounts from his or her final paycheck and/or Severance Pay. 

6. Amount of Severance Pay. The amount of Severance Pay to which a Participant is entitled under the Policy is 52 weeks of base 
salary at the rate in effect on the date of termination. 

A Participant who is receiving benefits under a short term disability plan maintained by any Affiliate will be entitled to 
Severance Pay at the end of the period of payment of short term disability if, and only if, ( 1) he or she is not then eligible for 
benefits under a long term disability plan maintained by an Affiliate, and (2) he or she is not offered employment with an 
Affiliate that, in the discretion of the Committee, is comparable to that held by the Participant at the time the applicable period 
of short term disability commenced. A Participant will not be entitled to Severance Pay at the end of the period of long term 
disability. 

Severance Pay will be paid to a Participant in one lump sum cash payment as soon as practicable after the date of the 
Participant's termination of employment, but in no event later than the 15 • day of the 3 "'month after such date, provided that 
the Participant has executed a valid release of all Affiliates, and their respective officers, directors and employees, from any and 
all actions, suits, proceedings, claims and demands relating to the Participant's employment with all Affiliates and the 
termination thereof, and the applicable revocation period has expired within this period. Severance Pay shall be reduced by 
applicable amounts necessary to comply with federal, state and local income tax withholding requirements. 

7. Benefits . 

(a) Welfare Benefits. A Participant entitled to Severance Pay shall receive, at the time of payment of Severance Pay, a lump 
sum payment equivalent to 130% of 52-weeks of COBRA (as defined in Section 4980B of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended, and Sections 601-609 of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, or any 
successor sections) continuation coverage premiums in lieu of any continued medical, dental, vision, and other welfare 
benefits offered by the Company or any Affiliate. Such 52-week period of COBRA continuation coverage shall be included 
as part of the period during which the Participant may elect continued group health coverage under COBRA. 

(b) Outplacement Services. A Participant entitled to Severance Pay shall receive outplacement services, selected by the 
Company at its expense, for a period commencing on the date of termination of employment and 
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continuing until the earlier to occur of the Participant accepting other employment or 12 months thereafter. 

8. No Re-employment . A Participant who receives benefits pursuant to the Policy shall not be eligible for re-employment with 
any Affiliate, unless the Committee or its delegate provides the Participant with a written waiver of the Section. 

9. Independent Contractor Status . A Participant who receives benefits pursuant to the Policy shall not be eligible at any time after 
termination of employment to enter into a consulting or independent contractor relationship with any Affiliate pursuant to 
which relationship he or she shall perform the same or similar services, upon the same or similar terms and conditions, as were 
applicable to such Participant on the date of termination of employment. 

10. Death of Participant . It a Participant dies prior to receiving Severance Pay to which he or she is entitled under the Policy, 
payment will be made to the representative of his or her estate. 

II. Term of Policy. The term of the Policy, as amended and restated herein, will commence on January 1, 2012 and will expire on 
December 31,2014. 

12. Amendment or Termination . 

(a) The Policy may be amended or terminated by the Committee at any time during its term when, in its judgment, such 
amendment or termination is necessary or desirable. No such termination or amendment will affect the rights of any 
Participant who is then entitled to receive Severance Pay or other benefits under the Policy at the time of such amendment 
or termination. The Policy can only be changed by written endorsement by an officer of the Company and only when the 
Company attaches the written amendment to the Policy. No agent or other employee, other than an officer of the Company, 
has the authority to change or waive any provision of the Policy. 

(b) Severance benefits under the Policy are not intended to be a vested right. 

13. Governing Law . The terms of the Policy shall, to the extent not preempted by federal law, be governed by, and construed and 
enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of Indiana, including all matters of construction, validity and performance. 

14. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

(a) Severance Pay and other benefits pursuant to the Policy shall not be subject in any manner to anticipation, alienation, sale, 
transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance or charge prior to actual receipt by a Participant, and any attempt to so 
anticipate, alienate, sell, transfer, assign, pledge, encumber or charge prior to such receipt shall be void and no Affiliate 
shall be liable in any manner for, or subject to, the debts, contracts, liabilities, engagements or torts of any person entitled to 
any Severance Pay or other benefits under the Policy. 

(b) Nothing contained in the Policy shall confer upon any individual the right to be retained in the service of any Affiliate, nor 
limit the right of any Affiliate to discharge or otherwise deal with any individual without regard to the existence of the 
Policy. 

(c) The Policy shall at all times be entirely unfunded. No provision shall at any time be made with respect to segregating assets 
of any Affiliate for payment of any Severance Pay or other benefits hereunder. No employee or any other person shall have 
any interest in any particular assets of any Affiliate by reason of the right to receive Severance Pay or other benefits under 
the Policy, and any such employee or any other person shall have only the rights of a general unsecured creditor of an 
Affiliate with respect to any rights under the Policy. 

15. Claims Procedure . A claim for benefits under the Policy shall be submitted in writing to the Committee. If a claim for benefits 
under the Policy by a Participant or his or her beneficiary is denied, either in whole or in part, the 
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Committee will let the claimant know in writing within 90 days. If the claimant does not hear within 90 days, the claimant may 
treat the claim as if it had been denied. A notice of a denial of a claim will refer to a specific reason or reasons for the denial of 
the claim; will have specific references to the Policy provisions upon which the denial is based; will describe any additional 
material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and explain why such material information is necessary; 
and will have an explanation of the Policy's review procedure. 

The claimant will have 60 days after the date of the denial to ask for a review and a hearing. The claimant must file a written 
request with the Committee for a review, During this time the claimant may review pertinent documents and may submit issues 
and comments in writing. The Committee will have another 60 days in which to consider the claimant's request for review. If 
special circumstances require an extension of time for processing, the Committee may have an additional 60 days to answer the 
claimant. The claimant will receive a written notice if the extra days are needed. The claimant may submit in writing any 
document, issues and comments he or she may wish. The decision of the Committee will tell the claimant the specific reasons 
for its actions, and refer the claimant to the specific Policy provisions upon which its decision is based. If the decision on 
review is not furnished within the time period set forth above, the claim shall be deemed denied on review. 

If such determination is favorable to the claimant, it shall be binding and conclusive. If such determination is adverse to such 
claimant, it shall be binding and conclusive unless the claimant or his duiy authorized representative notifies the Committee 
within 90 days after the mailing or delivery to the claimant by the Committee of its determination that claimant intends to 
institute legal proceedings challenging the determination of the Committee and actually institutes such legal proceedings within 
180 days after such mailing or delivery 

16. Rights Under ERISA . Each Participant in the Policy is entitled to certain rights and protection under the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"). ERISA provides that all Policy Participants shall be entitled to: 

(a) Examine, without charge, at the Company's office all Policy documents. 

(b) Obtain copies of all Policy documents and other Policy information upon written request to the Committee. The Committee 
may make a reasonable charge for the copies. 

In addition to creating rights for Policy Participants, ERISA imposes duties upon the people who are responsible for the 
operation of an employee benefit plan. The people who operate the Policy, called "fiduciaries" of the Policy, have a duty to do 
so prudently and in the interest of the Policy Participants and beneficiaries. No one, including the Company, any affiliate or any 
other person, may fire a Participant or otherwise discriminate against a Participant in any way to prevent him or her from 
obtaining a benefit or exercising his or her rights under ERISA, If a Participant's claim for a benefit is denied in whole or in 
part, he or she must receive a written explanation of the reason for the denial. A Participant has the right to have the Committee 
review and reconsider his or her claim. Under ERISA, there are steps a Participant can take to enforce the above rights. For 
instance, if a Participant requests materials from the Committee and does not receive them within thirty (30) days, he or she 
may file suit in a federal court. In such a case the court may require the Committee to provide the materials and pay the 
Participant up to $110 a day until the Participant receives the materials, unless the materials were not sent because of reasons 
beyond the control of the Committee. If a Participant has a claim for benefits, which is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, 
he or she may file suit in a state or federal court. If it should happen that the Policy fiduciaries misuse the Policy's money, or if 
a Participant is discriminated against for asserting his or her rights, he or she may ask assistance from the United States 
Department of Labor, or he or she may file suit in a federal court, The court will decide who should pay the court costs and 
legal fees. If the Participant is successful, the court may order the person he or she has sued to pay these costs and fees. If the 
Participant loses, the court may order him or her to pay these costs and fees, for example, if it finds his or her claim to be 
frivolous. If a Participant has questions about the Policy, he or she should contact the Committee. If a Participant has any 
questions about this statement or about his or her rights under ERISA, he or she shouid contact the nearest Area Office of the 
United States Labor-Management Services Administration, Department of Labor. 
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17. Policy Facts. 

Company: NiSource Inc. 

Address: 
801 E, 86th A venue 

Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

Plan Name: NiSource Executive Severance Policy 

Type of Plan: Severance Policy-Welfare Benefits Plan 

Policy Year: Calendar Year 

Employer Identification Number (EIN): 35-1719974 

Policy Administrator: Officer Nomination and Compensation Committee ofNiSource Inc. 

Business Address: 
801 E, 86th A venue 

Merrillville, Indiana 464 I 0 

Agent for Service of Legal Process: Officer Nomination and Compensation Committee ofNiSource Inc. 

(Address) 
80 I E, 86th A venue 

Merrillville, Indiana 46410 

5 



NiSource Inc. 
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 

Eamlogs as defined In item S03(d) of Regulation 8-K: 

Add: 

~e~~come from continuing operations '*)(to) 

Fixed Charges 

Amoriliiiiion of capitalized interest C•J 

Distributed income of equity investces 

Share of pre-tax losses of equity investees for wbicb charges arising guarantees __ lll1::)tl!:li:tded in fixed ...,..,. 
Deduct: 

Interest capitalized (oJ 

Preference secwity dividend requirements of consolidated subsidiaries ldJ 

Non-Controlling interest in pre-:tiix irffiOiri'6'_ofMibsidiari~~ that fuiV(i ri.Ol'~ui':i'ed fixed chaiges 

December 31. 
2012 

453,457,181 

34,850,000 

December 31, 
2011 

424,873,958 

18,800,143 

December 31, 
2010 

442,73{1,583 

36,741.190 

(11,762) 

December 31, 
2009 

423,724,907 

2,924,805 

(46.769) 

Exhibit 12 

December 31, 
2008 

422,708,986 

7,941,413 

(5~07) 

$ 1,082,747,679 s 880,914,656 $ 871.286,992 s 793,630,532 $ 953,865,623 

Fixed charges as defined in item 503(d) of Regulation S-K: 

btterest on long-term de_bt 

Other interest 

Capitalized interest dwing period C.J, 

Amortization of premium, reacquil>ition premium, discount and expense on debt, net 

Interest portion of rettt expense 

Non-controlling interest 

Plus J)referred stock dividends; Preferred dividend rcqu.iremcnt$ of subsidiary 

Preferred dividend requirements factor 

Preference s~t). di~ldend ~tS'Or corisolidated subsidiaries 1~ 
Fixed charges 

~io of eaminJW to .fixed cbarg,es 
1"' Income Statement amounts have been adjusted for discontinued operations. 

s 

$ 

s 

• 

39S;ZH,583 $ 

28,541,916 

9,699,158 

16,982,524 

4S3~457of8d !!if$" 

s 
0.66 

453,457,181 

453,457,181 s 

2J9 

ro•Excludes adjustment for minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries or income or loss from equity investees. 

36,2.913,295 

35,399,618 

8,941,809 

17.619,236 

424,813,95$ 

0.65 

424,873,958 

424,813,95& 

2.07 

$ 390,690,947 s 386,73_7,382 $ 35.8,736,132 

22.85\,904 5,.268,937 37,561.475 

10,287,487 13,020,255 7.682,146 

18,912,006 18,74$,102 - 18,734,540 

(11.762) (46,769) (5,307) 

$ 442;130,583 $ m,724.9&7i#lllgrJ!2~.9so', 

s $ $ 

0.68 0.67 

442.730,583 423,724,907 422.708,986 ,, 442,730,583 s 423~724,907 $ 422~708,986 

1.97 1.87 2.26 

I<)NiSource is a public utility following ASC 980 and therefore does not add amortization of capitalized interest or subtract interest capitalized in determining earnings, nor reduces 
fixed charges for Allowance for Funds Used During Construction. 

(d) Preferred dividends, as defined by SEC regulation S-K, are computed by dividing the preferred dividend requirement by one minus the effective income tax rate applicable to 
continuing operations. 



SUBSIDIARIES OF NISOURCE 

as of December 31, 2012 

Segment/Subsidiary 

GAS DISTRIBUTION OPERATIONS 

Bay State Gas Company d/b/a Columbia Gas of Massachusetts 

Columbia Gas of Kentucky, Inc. 

Columbia Gas of Maryland, Inc. 

Columbia Gas of Ohio, Inc. 

Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc. 

Columbia Gas of Virginia, Inc. 

NiSource Retail Services, Inc. 

ELECTRIC OPERATIONS 

Northern Indiana Public Service Company* 

GAS TRANSMISSION AND STORAGE OPERATIONS 

Columbia Gas Transmission, L.L.C. 

Columbia Gulf Transmission Company 

Central Kentucky Transmission Company 

Crossroads Pipeline Company 

NiSource Gas Transmission & Storage Company 

NiSource Midstream & Minerals Group, L.L.C. 

CORPORATE AND OTHER OPERATIONS 

Columbia Energy Group 

Energy USA, Inc. 

EnergyUSA-TPC Corp. 

NiSource Capital Markets, Inc. 

NiSource Corporate Services Company 

NiSource Development Company, Inc. 

NiSource Energy Technologies, Inc. 

NiSource Finance Corp 

NiSource Insurance Corporation, Inc. 

NIPSCO Accounts Receivable Corporation 

Columbia Gas of Ohio Receivables Corporation 

Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania Receivables Corporation 

* Reported under Gas Distribution Operations and Electric Operations. 

State of Incorporation 

Massachusetts 

Kentucky 

Delaware 

Ohio 

Pennsylvania 

Virgirua 

Delaware 

Indiana 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Indiana 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Delaware 

Indiana 

Indiana 

Indiana 

Delaware 

Indiana 

Indiana 

Indiana 

Utah 

Indiana 

Delaware 

Delaware 
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Exhibit 23 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-170385, 333-170385-01 and 333-179821 on Forms S-3, and 
Registration Statement Nos., 333-127812, 333-107743, 333-166888, 333-170706 and 333-181461 on Forms S-8 of our reports dated February 
19, 2013, relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules ofNiSource Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company"), 
and the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form I 0-K of the Company 
for the year ended December 31,2012. 

Is/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Chicago, Illinois 

February 19, 2013 
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Exhibit 31.1 

Certification Pursuant to 
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

I, Robert C. Skaggs, Jr., certify that: 

I. I have reviewed this Annual Report ofNiSource Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and I 5d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(1) and 15d-15(1)) for the registrant and bave: 

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material infonnation relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation; and 

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over fmancial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifYing officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting 
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial 
information; and 

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant's internal control over fmancial reporting. 

Date: February 19,2013 By: Is/ Robert C. Skaggs, Jr 

Robert C. Skaggs, Jr. 

Chief Executive Officer 
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Exhibit 31.2 

Certification Pursuant to 
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

I, Stephen P. Smith, certifY that: 

I. I have reviewed this Annual Report ofNiSource Inc. on Fonn I 0-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 ; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifYing officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(!)) for the registrant and have: 

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation; and 

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
timctions): 

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting 
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, sununarize and report financial 
information; and 

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 19,2013 By: is/ Stephen P. Smith 
----------~~~~==---------­

Stephen P. Smith 

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
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Exhibit 32.1 

Certification Pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

In connection with the Annual Report ofNiSource Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2012 as filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Robert C. Skaggs, Jr., Chief Executive Officer of the Company, 
certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the 
Company. 

Is/ Robert C. Skaggs, Jr 

Robert C. Skaggs, Jr. 

Chief Executive Officer 

Date: February 19,2013 
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Exhibit 32.2 

Certification Pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

In connection with the Annual Report ofNiSource Inc. (the "Company"') on Form !O-K for the year ending December 3!, 2012 as filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Conunission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Stephen P. Smith, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company, certifY, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002, that: 

(I) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or IS(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the 
Company. 

lsi Stephen P. Smith 

Stephen P. Smith 

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Date: February 19,2013 




